
 
1 

 

 
AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 20, 2022 
9:00 A.M. 

 
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 

BOARD ROOM 
6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 

 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 
VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 885 499 122# 
 

PURSUANT TO AB361 AND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7-2, ADOPTED BY THE IEUA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ON JULY 6, 2022, IEUA BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE TO BE 
CONDUCTED THROUGH TELECONFERENCE IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND 
PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19. THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE FOR 

ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON. 
 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing the number 
provided above.   Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of the 

meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 
 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING  
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address the 
Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three minutes 
per speaker.  Thank you. 

 

 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda 
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


 
2 

 
PRESENTATION 
 

• NATIONAL WATER RESEARCH INSTITUTE UPDATE – NWRI Executive 
Director Kevin Hardy 
 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
 

1. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

 
NOTICE: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by the Board by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes unless any Board members, 
staff or the public requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for 
separate action. 
 

 

A. MINUTES 
Approve minutes of the June 1, 2022 and June 15, 2022 Board Meetings. 
 

B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin) 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the total disbursements for the 
month of May 2022, in the amount of $23,459,920.32.  

 

C. CONTRACT AWARD FOR BANANA BASIN INFILTRATION 
RESTORATION (Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Approve the award for the Banana Basin Infiltration Services, 
Contract No. 4600003154 to Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc. for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $127,068.00; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 
non-substantive changes. 

 
D. CONTRACT AWARD FOR PLUMBING SERVICES (Eng/Ops/WR) 

Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Approve the award to provide Plumbing Services, Contract No. 
4600003151 to Pro-Craft Construction for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$300,000 over five years with a fixed price period of two years with 
three one-year options to extend with Consumer Price Index 
increases; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the service contract. 
 
E. COLLECTION SYSTEM CONDITION ASSESSMENT AND 

OPTIMIZATION SERVICE CONTRACT AND PROJECT BUDGET 
AUGMENTATION (Eng/Ops/WR)(Finance & Admin) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Approve an amendment to CDM Smith’s engineering services 
contract in the amount of $669,325, a 23% increase, for a not-to-
exceed amount of $3,626,734; 
 



 
3 

2. Approve a total project budget augmentation for the Regional System 
Asset Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $329,000 
in the RO Fund; 

 
3. Approve a total project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole 

and Pipeline Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $341,000 in the 
NC Fund; and 
 

4. Authorize the General Manager to contract and budget 
augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
F. RP-1 SOLIDS THICKENING PROJECT DESIGN CONSULTANT 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 (Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Approve a contract amendment for the Regional Plant No. 1 Solids 
Thickening Building, Project No. EN22044, to Carollo Engineering, 
Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $880,393 increasing the 
maximum authorized contract from $13,677,502 to $14,557,895 
(6.0% increase); and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to contract, subject to non-
substantive changes. 

 
G. RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE PROJECT CONSTRUCTION 

CHANGE ORDER RATIFICATION (Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board ratify the change order for the 
construction contract for the Wineville, Jurupa, Force Main, Project No. 
RW15003.06, to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $188,188.27. 

 
H. CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES 

WITH PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT FINANCIAL ADVISORS 
(Finance & Admin) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Ratify the extension of the contract for Financial Advisory Services 
with PFM for three years for a not-to-exceed amount of $75,000, 
effective July 1, 2022; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract extension. 
 
 

2. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. CONTRACT AWARD FOR FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 
(Community & Leg) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 

 

1. Approve the award of Contract No. 4600003162 to Carpi and Clay to 
provide federal legislative advocacy services for a monthly retainer 
fee of $7,000 for three years, with the option of two additional one-
year extensions for a not-to-exceed amount of $420,000; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the service contract, 
subject to non-substantive changes. 



 
4 

 
B. IE WORKS/WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 

Staff recommends that the Board authorize IEUA to participate as a 
customer in IE Works, Inland Empire Water Wastewater Apprenticeship 
Pathways Collaborative. 
 
 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT 
UPDATES (POWERPOINT)  

 
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
B. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM INNOVATIVE 

FEDERAL STRATEGIES (WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 
 

C. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST 
ADVISORS (WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 

 
D. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) (Community 

& Leg) 
 
E. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY 

UPDATE (POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 

F. 4TH QUARTER STRATEGIC PLANNING AND RESOURCES UPDATE 
(POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 

 
G. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – JULY 2022 (POWERPOINT) 

(Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
H. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/ 

POWERPOINT) (Finance & Admin) 
 
 

4. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
(WRITTEN) 
June 21, 2022 SAWPA Commission meeting. The July 19, 2022 SAWPA 
Commission meeting agenda was not available at time of printing.  
 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
REPORT (WRITTEN) 
July 12, 2022 MWD Board meeting 
 

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 
(WRITTEN)   
July 7, 2022 Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee meeting 

 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT (WRITTEN) 
June 23, 2022 Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting 



 
5 

 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT (WRITTEN)  
July 7, 2022 CDA Board meeting 
 

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT  
The next IERCA Board meeting is on August 1, 2022 

 
 

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (WRITTEN) 
 

 

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

7. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
 

A. CONFERENCE REPORTS 
 
 

This is the time and place for the Members of the Board to report on prescheduled Committee/District 
Representative Assignment meetings, which were held since the last regular Board meeting, and/or any 
other items of interest. 
 

 
 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a) – 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

1. Kaiser vs. IEUA, Case No. CIVDS 1933655 
 

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8 - 
CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

Property: APN 0229-283-836 
Property Negotiator: Shivaji Deshmukh 
Negotiating Parties: IEUA and ARES Industrial Acquisitions, LLC 
Under Negotiation: Terms and Price 

 
9. WORKSHOP ITEM 

 
A. UPDATE ON THE CHINO BASIN PROGRAM (POWERPOINT) 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 

Declaration of Posting 

 
I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or 
dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1A 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

1 

 
 

MINUTES  
REGULAR WORKSHOP OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 1, 2022 

10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Steven J. Elie, President 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer  
 

DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Michael Camacho, Vice President  
Jasmin A. Hall, Director 
Paul Hofer, Director 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager 
Stephen Brown, Network Administrator 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I 
Jason Marseilles, Deputy Manager of Engineering & Construction Management 
Randy Lee, Director of Operations & Maintenance 
Alex Najera, Manager of Human Resources 
Ernie Rodelo, Safety Analyst 
Daniel Solorzano, Network Administrator 
Wilson To, Technology Specialist II  
Brian Wilson, P.E., CCM, Senior Engineer 
  

STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager  
Andrea Carruthers, Communications Officer 
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 
Warren Green, Manager of Contracts & Procurement 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Administrative Assistant II 
Nolan King, Network Administrator 
Cathleen Pieroni, Senior Policy Advisor 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 

 
OTHERS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Elie called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. Engineering Services Analyst Stacey 
Scott led the Pledge of Allegiance. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro took roll call 
and established a quorum.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments.  
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 
 
        
1. WORKSHOP ITEM 

 
A. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE 

Senior Engineer Brian Wilson provided a presentation on the RP-5 Expansion 
Project.   
 

    INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 
 
2. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 

Deputy General Manager Christiana Daisy stated that the Laboratory department received 
its completion letter for the Onsite Assessment performed in March 2022, which is a 
Biennial requirement for the renewal of its state accreditation. Now, the laboratory will be 
able to amend its current certificate to add Per and Polyfluoroalkyl Substance (PFAS) 
testing in both potable and non-potable matrices to its capability. The laboratory is also 
participating in a gap assessment to determine the tools and resources necessary to 
implement the new accreditation standard before January 1, 2024. 
 
Deputy General Manager Daisy announced that there will be a tour of RP-5 following the 
meeting for those who would like to join. 
 

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
There were no future requested agenda items from the Board of Directors. 

 
4. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS  

Director Hall commended staff for the progress that has been made in line with the project 
timeline. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business, President Elie adjourned the meeting at 10:32 a.m.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
APPROVED:  JULY 20, 2022 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

1 

 
 

MINUTES  
MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2022 

10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Steven J. Elie, President 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer  
 

DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Michael Camacho, Vice President  
Jasmin A. Hall, Director 
Paul Hofer, Director 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager  
Joshua Aguilar, Senior Engineer 
Adham Almasri, P.E., Principal Engineer 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Stephen Brown, Network Administrator 
Pietro Cambiaso, Acting Director of Planning & Resources 
Andy Campbell, Groundwater Recharge Supervisor 
Lucia Diaz, Manager of Facilities & Water System Programs 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
Christopher Garcia, Environmental Resources Planner I 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Elizabeth Hurst, Chino Basin Program Manager 
Joel Ignacio, Senior Engineer 
Randy Lee, Director of Operations & Maintenance 
Scott Lening, Manager of Operations 
Liza Munoz, Senior Engineer 
Stacey Scott, Engineering Services Analyst 
Daniel Solorzano, Network Administrator 
Wilson To, Technology Specialist II  
Ryan Ward, Assistant Engineer 
Juan Zamorano, Electrical and Instrumentation IV 
  

STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Kevin Asprer, Associate Engineer 
Andrea Carruthers, Communications Officer 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Operations & Maintenance 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

Warren Green, Manager of Contracts & Procurement 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Administrative Assistant II 
Nolan King, Network Administrator 
Lisa Morgan-Perales, Senior Water Resources Analyst 
Kanes Pantayatiwong, Manager of Information Technology 
Cathleen Pieroni, Senior Policy Advisor 
Jesse Pompa, Manager of Grants 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
James Simpson, Engineering Consultant 
Nicole Slavin, External Affairs Specialist I 
Travis Sprague, P.E., Principal Engineer 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Marty Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
 

OTHERS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Jason Craig, Colony High School 
Maureen Erbeznik, Maureen Erbeznik and Associates 
Julie Miller Kalbacher, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
Keane Misawa, Chino Hills High School 

 
A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Elie called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. Assistant Engineer Ryan Ward led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro took roll call and 
established a quorum.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 
 
NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
The following staff member from Agency Management was introduced: 
 

• Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager, hired June 13, 2022, Agency 
Management 

 
The following staff member from the Engineering Department was recognized: 
 

• Brian Wilson, Principal Engineer, reclassified January 9, 2022, Engineering 
 

The following staff member from the Finance Department was recognized: 
 

• Maria Guzman, Financial Analyst II, promoted May 29, 2022, Finance 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

The following staff members from the Information Technology Department were introduced:  
 

• Stephen Brown, Network Administrator, hired May 31, 2022, Information 
Technology 

• Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I, hired May 31, 2022, 
Information Technology 
 

The following staff members from the Operations & Maintenance Department were introduced 
and recognized: 
 

• Sean French, Facilities Specialist, hired June 13, 2022, Facilities Management 

• Thomas Poleski, Electrical & Instrumentation Technician II, hired May 31, 2022, 
Maintenance 

• Manuel Aceves, Mechanic II, reclassified May 1, 2022, Maintenance 

• Juan Zamorano, Electrical & Instrumentation Technician IV, promoted May 29, 
2022, Maintenance 
 

The Board of Directors welcomed Ms. Day, Mr. Brown, Mr. Contreras, Mr. French, and Mr. Poleski 
to the IEUA team. The Board of Directors congratulated Mr. Wilson, Ms. Guzman, Mr. Aceves, 
and Mr. Zamorano on their reclassifications and promotions.   
 
PRESENTATION  
 
RECOGNITION OF 2022 SOLAR CUP TEAMS 
President Elie provided a brief background on the Metropolitan Water District’s Solar Cup 
Program and announced that the three schools sponsored by IEUA won a total of 16 awards. 
President Elie recognized Chino Hills High School’s team advisor Keane Misawa, Colony High 
School’s team advisor Jason Craig, and Metropolitan Water District’s Solar Cup Coordinator Julie 
Miller Kalbacher on behalf of their teams and the program.  
 

 
1. CONSENT ITEMS 

President Elie requested to pull Item 1I for discussion.  
 
A. MINUTES 
 
B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-10, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 

DETERMINATIONS REGARDING SPECIAL RULES FOR CONDUCTING 
MEETINGS THROUGH TELECONFERENCE 

 
C. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin)  

 
D. FY 2022/23 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN (Audit) 
 
E. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-9, ADJUSTING PLAN CHECK AND 

INSPECTION FEES (Eng, Ops & WR) (Finance & Admin) 
 
F. CCWRF 12KV BACKUP GENERATOR CONTROL CIRCUIT IMPROVEMENTS 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD (Eng, Ops & WR)  
 
G. RP-1 SOLIDS THICKENING PROJECT SKID-MOUNTED ROTARY DRUM 

THICKENER PROCUREMENT (Eng, Ops & WR)   
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

4 

H. MASTER SERVICES CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR PROJECT CONTROLS 
SERVICES (Eng/Ops/WR) 

 
I. PULLED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
J. FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENT AND RATE 

RESOLUTIONS (Finance & Admin) 
 
K. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-8, ESTABLISHING THE 

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 (Finance & Admin) 
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR TULE, AGENDA ITEM NOS. 1A 
THROUGH 1H, 1J AND 1K WERE APPROVED AS 
RECOMMENDED BELOW, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 

o Approved the minutes of the May 18, 2022 Board Meeting.  
 

o Adopted Resolution No. 2022-6-10, making certain findings and determinations 
regarding special rules for conducting meetings through teleconference. 

 
o Approved the total disbursements for the month of April 2022, in the amount of 

$17,315,824. 
 

o Approved the FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan; and directed the Manager of Internal 
Audit to implement the FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.  

 
o Adopted Resolution No. 2022-6-9, establishing the fee for IEUA’s services for 

review of applications, plans and inspections of construction for development 
connections. 

 
o Awarded a construction contract for CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control 

Circuit Improvements, Project No. EN17006.01, to Southern Contracting Co. for 
$1,027,480; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, subject 
to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Authorized the procurement of a skid-mounted rotary drum thickener system as 

a single source according to the proposal dated May 6, 2022, in the amount of 
$712,932; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, subject 
to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Approved contract amendments for the Project Control Master Services Contracts 

to CAPO Projects Group and KRD Management Consulting, LLC for an aggregate 
amount of $1,750,000, increasing the contract from $1,250,000 to $3,000,000 (a 
140% increase) with a four-year term extension through June 2026; and 
authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-
substantive changes. 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

5 

 
 

o Approved the amendments to the FY 2022/23 adopted budget; and adopted Rate 
Resolutions Nos. 2022-6-1 through 2022-6-7. 

 
o Adopted Resolution No. 2022-6-8, establishing the appropriations limit for Fiscal 

Year 2022/23. 
 
I. PURCHASE OF AGENCY-WIDE INSURANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 

(Finance & Admin) 
Manager of Contracts & Procurement Warren Green provided the staff presentation. 
President Elie highlighted that insurance premium rates have been increasing and 
there will be additional, significant rate increases due to inflation.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR HOFER, THE BOARD AUTHORIZED 
THE PURCHASE OF AGENCY-WIDE INSURANCE 
POLICIES PROVIDING COVERAGE THROUGH 
FISCAL YEAR 2022/23, FOR A TOTAL NOT-TO-
EXCEED INSURANCE BUDGET AMOUNT OF 
$1,862,000 FOR THE FOLLOWING POLICIES: A. 
EXCESS GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 
(PROJECT $755,000); B. PROPERTY, BOILER & 
MACHINERY INSURANCE (PROJECTED 
$930,000); AND C. EXCESS WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION INSURANCE (ACTUAL 
$109,685), BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 
2.  ACTION ITEMS  
 

A. CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION 2022 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ELECTION FOR SEAT B, SOUTHERN NETWORK 
Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro provided the staff presentation.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR TULE, THE BOARD DETERMINED 
THE AGENCY’S VOTE FOR THE CALIFORNIA 
SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION 2022 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ELECTION FOR SEAT 
B, SOUTHERN NETWORK BY SELECTING      
DON BARTZ, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

6 

B. ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEARS 2022/23 – 2031/32 TEN-YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN & TEN-YEAR FORECAST (Finance & Admin) 
Acting Assistant General Manager Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro provided the staff 
presentation.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR TULE, THE BOARD ADOPTED 
THE FISCAL YEARS 2022/23 – 2031/32 TEN-
YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND TEN-
YEAR FORECAST, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 
 
3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. WATER STORAGE INVESTMENT PROGRAM (WSIP)/CHINO BASIN PROGRAM 
(CBP) UPDATE  
Chino Basin Manager Elizabeth Hurst provided an update on the WSIP/CBP noting 
that staff is planning to hold workshops in July and August to provide additional project 
updates.  
 

B. CONSTRUCTION TRENDS 
Principal Engineer Adham Almasri provided a presentation on current construction 
trends. 

 
C. FY 2021/22 FINANCIAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT COMMUNICATIONS  

 
D. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OPERATIONAL AND INTERNAL CONTROL AUDIT 

REPORT – REVIEW OF PROCURE TO PAY PROCESSES FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES – PLANNING & RESOURCES 

 
E. INTERIM AUDIT REPORT: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OPERATIONAL AND 

INTERNAL CONTROL AUDIT REPORT – REVIEW OF PROCURE TO PAY 
PROCESS FOR MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 

 
F. PROGRESS UPDATE FOR ALL PROCURE TO PAY AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
G. REPORT OF OPEN AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
H. INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT FOR JUNE 

2022 
 
I. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM INNOVATIVE FEDERAL 

STRATEGIES (Comm & Leg Affairs) 
  

J. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 
(Comm & Leg Affairs) 

 
K. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (Comm & Leg Affairs) 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

7 

 
L. RECYCLED WATER GROUNDWATER RECHARGE UPDATE (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
M. SARS-COV-2 WASTEWATER SAMPLING (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
N. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PRADO BASIN HABITAT SUSTAINABILITY 

COMMITTEE (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
O. REGIONAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
P. FY 2022/23 ADOPTED BUDGET FOR THE INLAND EMPIRE REIGONAL 

COMPOSTING AUTHORITY (Finance & Admin) 
 
Q. FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 THIRD QUARTER BUDGET VARIANCE, PERFORMANCE 

UPDATES, AND BUDGET TRANSFERS (Finance & Admin) 
 
R. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (Finance & Admin) 
 

 
5. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Tule reported that at the June 7 Board meeting, the Commission approved 
the application of a grant under the 2021 Urban and Multi-benefit Drought Relief Grant 
Program for Disadvantaged Community Involvement Set-Aside Funding. The 
Commission also authorized staff to issue an RFP for the Santa Ana River Watershed 
Weather Modification Pilot Program Operations services. He added that the 
Commission discussed creating an onboarding package for new commissioners. 
 
 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REPORT 
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh reported that on June 1 the allocation officially 
began and the data for Week 1 shows that together the State Water Project (SWP)-
dependent agencies met the target and were 6% under the Week 1 limit of 1157 
AF/day, with an actual usage of 1088 AF/day. IEUA agencies were 35% under the 
target for Week 1. He stated that staff is working closely to support customer agencies 
and keeping this momentum as we continue in the allocation. 
 
General Manager Deshmukh added that Metropolitan is also increasing the message 
that it is imperative to save water now in its drought messaging as well as distributing 
marketing materials throughout our service area to promote participation in Water-Use 
Efficiency programs. Metropolitan staff introduced proposed policy principles for the 
Bay Delta, which would serve to update and consolidate older policy principles from 
2006 – 2009. The draft policy principles identify regulatory constraints at the SWP’s 
South Delta export facilities as the main issue in being able to move Metropolitan’s 
water through the Delta. It further states that projects such as new Delta Conveyance 
and Sites Reservoir would improve Metropolitan’s ability to capture and move water in 
wetter water years. Metropolitan plans to bring a final version of the updated Bay Delta 
policy principles to the Board in September for adoption. Consistent with 
Metropolitan’s energy and climate plans, the Board authorized the purchase and 
installation of two 500 kW/2,000 MWh Battery Energy Storage Systems adjacent to 
the two existing solar facilities at the Weymouth plant at a total estimated cost to 
complete the project of $12.5 million. 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

8 

 
C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 

Director Tule reported that at the June 2 Committee meeting, the Committee approved 
the May 5, 2022 Policy meeting minutes; FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget Amendment 
for the Regional Wastewater Programs; and FY 2022/23 -2031/32 Ten-Year Forecast.  
 
 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT 
President Elie reported that at the May 26 Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting, 
Watermaster approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 budget. The Board also discussed 
storage recovery expenses.  
 
 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Tule reported that at the June 2 Special Board meeting, the Board approved 
contract amendments with King Lee Technologies and American Water Chemicals 
and the other items were routine in nature.   
 
 

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Hofer reported that at the June 6 Special IERCA meeting, the Board approved 
the purchase of wheel loaders and reviewed the budget.    
 

 
6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

General Manager Deshmukh stated that a new National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Permit was adopted by the California Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, Santa Ana Region, on Friday, June 3, 2022. This permit renews the existing 
NPDES permit issued in 2015 that the Regional Board had administratively extended after 
it expired in October 2020. NPDES permits are required to be renewed every five years. 
Starting in 2009, IEUA had consolidated all the regional water recycling facilities under a 
single permit to streamline the permit renewal process and reporting. He shared that the 
new permit includes new effluent permit limitations for several compounds and metals. 
Other significant changes include requirements for an Asset Management Plan, Climate 
Change Action Plan, effluent toxicity limit, effluent toxicity reporting using TST statistical 
method, and effluent PFAS, 1,2,3-Trichloropropane and primary maximum contaminant 
level monitoring. 
 

 
7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Director Tule requested an overview of landscape design and rebate programs. Director 
Hofer requested a summary of the drought updates provided at weekly meetings with 
MWD staff.  
 

 
8. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND CONFERENCE REPORTS 

Vice President Camacho stated he attended the Los Angeles Beirut Sister Cities 
Committee Dinner Banquet on June 4 and the IERCF Celebration on June 7. Vice 
President Camacho commended Manager of Regional Compost Authority Jeff Ziegenbein 
and his staff for the great work happening at IERCF.  
 
Director Hall stated she attended the Orange County Water District Webinar on May 24; 
the STAR Employee Awards Virtual Ceremony on June 8; the WELL 2022 Southern 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

9 

California Conference on June 10 and 11; and the IEWorks Pre-apprenticeship Program 
Graduation and IE Black Workers Center Building Trades Career Fair on June 13. 
 
Director Tule commended staff on the NPDES permit and ELAP certification. 
 
President Elie stated that he attended the Chino Hill State of the City on May 31 and the 
Chino Hills City Council Meeting for the Solar Cup Team Recognition on June 14.  
 
 

9. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board recessed to Closed Session at 11:19 a.m.: 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a) – CONFERENCE 
WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

1. Kaiser vs. IEUA, Case No. CIVDS 1933655 
 

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Four Cases 

 
The meeting resumed at 12:20 p.m. and Counsel Marty Cihigoyenetche stated that the 
Board took reportable action on one case under item 9B in Closed Session as follows -  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR TULE, THE BOARD APPROVED A 
SETTLEMENT WITH THE SAN ANTONIO WATER 
COMPANY REGARDING OUTSTANDING METER 
EQUIVALENT UNIT CHARGES, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 
 

    Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
    Noes:  None 
 
    Absent: None 
 

Mr. Cihigoyenetche noted that the Board did not take any additional reportable action in 
Closed Session.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
President Elie adjourned the meeting at 12:20 p.m.  

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  JULY 20, 2022 



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1B 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

 Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of May 2022 were $23,459,920.32.  Disbursement activity 
included check payments of $626,547.26 to vendors and $4,989.48 for worker's compensation 
related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House (ACH) of 
$17,641,714.39 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $3,535,688.02. The total payroll was 
$1,644,862.26 for employees and $6,118.91 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of May 2022 in the amount of $23,459,920.32.

07/13/22Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of Fiscal 
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements 
associated with operating requirements.

On June 15, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the April 2022 Report on General 
Disbursements totaling $17,315,824.00.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22153



Page 1 of 1

Background
Subject: Report on General Disbursements

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter.
Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 
in largest to smallest dollar value.

Table 1:  Disbursement Details

Attachment Payment Type Amount
2A Vendor Checks $ 626,547.26
2B Workers' Comp Checks $ 4,989.48
2C Vendor ACHs $ 17,641,714.39
2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll) $ 3,535,688.02
2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors $ 6,118.91
2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees $ 1,644,862.26

Total Disbursements $23,459,920.32

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor

Vendor Amount Description

WM LYLES COMPANY $ 8,256,851.27

Professional Svc’s for EN17110-RP-4 Process 
Improvements; EN18006 RP-1 Flare Improvements; 
EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd; EN19006- RP-5
Biosolids Facility; EN19043- RP-1 Centrifuge Foul Air Line.

METROPOLITAN WATER 
DISTRICT $ 1,863,619.05 March 2022 Water Purchases

CHINO BASIN DESALTER 
AUTHORITY $ 1,775,799.60 7/20 – 6/21 MWD Pass Thru

SO CALIF EDISON $ 1,063,221.14 03/07/22 – 05/17/22 Electricity

INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL 
COMPOSTING AUTHORITY $ 790,443.64

02/22 & 03/22 RP1 Biosolids; 02/22 & 03/22 RP2 Biosolids;
05/22 Redwood Energy Storage Rebate

ARCADIS U.S. INC $ 783,921.74
Professional Svc’s for WR18028- Chino Basin Water Bank 
Planning Authority; EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd; 
EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility

PERS $ 718,436.89 05/22 Health Ins; P/R 08, 09, 10, 110 Def Comp;
2014 Arrears Admin Fee

INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE $ 700,958.52 P/R 09, 10, 110; Dir 05 Taxes



























































































































































IEUA’s Business Goal under Fiscal Responsibility



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1C 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

Contract Award for Banana Basin Infiltration Restoration



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

22162

Linked

https://www.dropbox.com/s/dawrxu3njtsz788/Jeremy%20Harris%20Construction%20Contract.pdf?dl=0


Contract Award Banana Basin
Infiltration Restoration 

Brent Ritzinger
RW GWR O&M Specialist

July 20, 2022



Banana Basin Recharge Site

west eastS
an

 S
ev

ai
n

e 
C

h
.

2



The Infiltration Restoration Process

• Drain to Hickory Basin
—First by gravity
—Second by Pumping (IEUA staff)

• Dry Out Floors (2 weeks)
• Work Process

—Scrape material from side slopes
—Scrape material from floors
—Haul away material
—Rip and smooth basin floors

3



4

Pumping Banana Basin

APR 4, 2019



5

Track Walked Slopes



• Request for Proposal posted on May 11, 2022 and A non-mandatory site 
walk was conducted on May 18, 2022

• The site walk was attended by one firm

• One bid received on May 25, 2022

• IEUA and CBWM will cost share the Banana Basin work using the 
basin’s Pro Rata for Fiscal Year 2021/22 (IEUA 77% and CBWM 23%)

6

Contractor Selection

Bidder Bid

Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc. $127,068.00



7

Recommendation

• Approve the award for the Banana Basin Infiltration Restoration
Services, Contract No. 4600003154 to Jeremy Harris Construction,
Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $127,068.00; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to
non-substantive changes.

The Infiltration Restoration Project is consistent with IEUA’s business goal of Water Reliability 
to develop and implement an integrated water resource management plan.



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1D 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

N/A

Contract Award for Plumbing Services



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

22164

Linked

https://www.dropbox.com/s/ya04twxu99s16sv/Plumbing%20Services%20Contract.pdf?dl=0


Plumbing Services Contract

Frank Sotomayor

Facilities Program Supervisor 

July 2022



• Plumbing services are occasionally needed to 
ensure a safe and clean environment for 
Agency staff to carry out essential Agency-
related business.

• Contracted Services Include:
—Hydro jetting
—Snake draining
—Leak repairs
—Fixture replacements
—Restroom restoration

2

Plumbing Services 



Proposal Evaluation

Selection Criteria

• Experience and knowledge of personnel 
(Individual or Company)

• Record of performance (work history)
• References
• Cost Rate Sheet
• Exceptions taken to the specifications

Three proposals were received on May 2, 2022, and were scored based on
predetermined weighted criteria.

Proposers  Ranked using Selection Criteria

1. Pro-Craft Construction Inc

2. SoCal Sewer Construction Inc

3.  GM Plumbing Corporation

3



4

Proposal Evaluation Results

The evaluation of the three proposals received 
concludes that Pro-Craft Construction, Inc would provide 
best value to the Agency.

—Best Value
• Past performance, cost, experience, references, and 

competitive pricing
—Contract term: 5 years

• Two years with fixed price
• Three one-year options to extend with Consumer Price 

Index increases
—Experience with IEUA

• Current service provider
• Staff is satisfied with their services
• Provided additional plumbing renovation projects



Recommendation

• Approve the award to provide Plumbing Services, Contract No. 4600003151 to Pro-Craft 
Construction for a not-to-exceed amount of $300,000 over five years with a fixed price period 
of two years with three one-year options to extend with CPI increases; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the service contract.

The Agency Janitorial Services Contract, is consistent with the IEUA's Business Goal of Business Practices specifically the Efficiency & 
Effectiveness objective that IEUA will apply best industry practices in all processes to maintain or improve the quality and value of the 

services we provide to our member agencies and the public.

5



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1E 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

Collection System Condition Assessment and Optimization Service Contract 
Amendment & Projects' Budget Augmentation 

In late 2020, CDM Smith was awarded a consulting service contract to conduct the condition
assessment on 41 sewer siphons as part of the Collection System Condition Assessment and
Optimization project. This initial effort will lead towards CDM Smith’s development of a
comprehensive sewer system maintenance optimization program which will enhance Inland
Empire Utilities Agency's (IEUA) planning and maintenance of the collection assets. To-date,
CDM Smith gathered condition data on 39 siphons.

The current contract amount to complete the assessment of the last two siphons will not be
adequate due to the significant bypass efforts needed, larger volume for debris removal, and
extensive traffic control at each site. Staff is recommending an amendment to CDM Smith’s
contract for a not-to-exceed amount of $669,325 to complete the two remaining assessments.
This will increase the contract from $2,967,409 to $3,636,734 (23% increase). The proposed
contract amendment will support the development of a comprehensive sewer system
maintenance optimization program.
Staff is also recommending a total project budget augmentation to support the amended services
requested in the amount of $329,000 for EN19024 and $341,000 for EN19028.

1. Approve an amendment to CDM Smith's engineering services contract in the amount of
$669,325, a 23% increase, for a not-to-exceed amount of $3,626,734;
2. Approve a total project budget augmentation for the Regional System Asset Management
Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $329,000 in the RO Fund;
3. Approve a total project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole and Pipeline Project, No.
EN19028, in the amount of $341,000 in the NC Fund; and
4. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract and budget augmentation, subject to
non-substantive changes.

$ 670,000

EN19024/Regional System Asset Management
EN19028/NRW Manhole and Pipeline

If approved, the total project budget for Project EN19024 will increase from $3,590,419 to 
$3,919,419 (9% increase) in the RO Fund and for Project No. EN19028, the project budget will 
increase from $915,000 to $1,256,000 (37% increase) in the NC Fund.

1000 10800 501000 127100 EN19024/EN19028

07/13/22
07/13/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N   Y

10500 160000 1271001000

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Collection System Condition Assessment and Optimization Service Contract award is
consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset
Management and Water Quality objectives, that IEUA will ensure that systems are well
maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and accommodate
changes in regional water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated
regulatory requirements.

On October 20, 2021, IEUA's Board of Directors approved the award of a construction contract
to Tharsos, Inc. in the amount of $168,540 for the Glen Meade Trunk Critical Repair Project,
No. EN19024.
On September 16, 2020, IEUA's Board of Directors approved the service contract with CDM
Smith for a not-to-exceed amount of $2,910,909 for the Condition Assessment and Optimization
of the Collection System, Project Nos. EN19024 & EN19028.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
a Statutory Exemption as defined in Section 15262 of the State CEQA Guidelines. When the
project will be implemented, it will be subject to future environmental evaluation.

Attachment 1- PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Service Contract

Statutory Exemption

22157



 
 

Attachment 1 



Collection System Condition Assessment 
and Optimization Engineering Service Contract 

Amendment and Projects’ Budget Augmentation 
Project No. EN19024 and EN19028

Ryan Ward, E.I.T.
Associate Engineer

July 20, 2022



Project Overview/Location

2

Collection Sewer 
System

Brine Sewer 
System

Regional Sewer 
System

Collection Sewer System

• Two independent sewer systems
• Regional Sewer System
• Brine Sewer System

City BSS – Siphons RSS – Siphons

Rancho Cucamonga 4 -

Ontario 5 10

Fontana 3 4

Chino 1 14

Chino Hills - -

Claremont - -

Total Assets 13 28

Total Length of Assets 4,745 feet 9,601 feet
Brine Sewer System (BSS)
Regional Sewer System (RSS)



Project Goals/Objectives

3

• Goals
– Enhance asset data
– Develop risk management framework
– Support asset management best 

practices
• Objectives

– Conduct assessment, inspection and 
cleaning

– Develop maintenance optimization plan

Coordination
Development of Condition 
Assessment Implementation 
Plan

Implementation
Condition Assessments, 
Inspections, and Cleaning

Evaluation
Available Data and 
Information

Optimization
Collection System Enhanced 
Management Program

Path to Meeting Goals & Objectives

Recent Effort: 
Discovery of 

Potential Sewer 
Failure 4-inch hole 

in sewer line 



Project Status

4

• Status on Assessment, Inspection, and Cleaning/Optimization Program
– Substantially Completed 39 Siphons (out of 41)
– Cost to date:  $1,945,008 
– 2 remaining siphons requires additional funds to assess due to higher cost on traffic control/bypass/cleaning

ETS Siphon (BSS): 
Challenges -

bypass/cleaning/access

NSST Siphon 
(RSS): 
Challenges -
traffic/bypass/
cleaning



Project Budget and Schedule

5

Description Cost

Asset Management/Inspection Support (actuals/projected) $1,463,685 
Asset Management $471,687
Inspection Support $991,998

Other Engineering Consulting Support (actuals/projected) $75,000 
Engineering Consultant (GHD Contract)   $75,000 

CDM Smith's Service Contract (actuals/projected) $3,636,734
CDM Smith’s Service Contract $2,967,409
Amendment to CDM Smith’s Contract (this action) $669,325

Required Total Project Budget: $5,175,419 
Total EN19024’s Budget for RSS Assets $1,256,000
Total EN19028’s Budget for BSS Assets $3,919,419
EN19028 Current Total Project Budget (NC Fund): $915,000
EN19024 Current Total Project Budget (RO Fund): $3,590,419

Requested Budget Augmentation to EN19024 (this action) + $341,000
Requested Budget Augmentation to EN19028 (this action) + $329,000

EN19028 Total Project Budget (revised): $1,256,000
EN19024 Total Project Budget (revised): $3,919,419

Contract Milestone Date

Complete Condition Assessment Aug. 2022

Complete Planning/Optimization Dec. 2022



Recommendation

6

This project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management 
objective that IEUA will ensure the Collection's System is well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, 

sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the environment, and 
meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

• Approve an amendment to CDM Smith's engineering services contract in the 
amount of $669,325, a 23% increase, for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$3,636,734;

• Approve a total project budget augmentation for the Regional System Asset 
Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $329,000 in the RO 
Fund; 

• Approve a total project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole and 
Pipeline Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $341,000 in the NC Fund; 
and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the amendment to the contract, 
and budget augmentation subject to non-substantive changes.



 
 

Attachment 2 



�

����������	
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������	���	� �!� ����"�# �$���������������%�����& ����!'�'���	(( ((� ���)��	'�� �	�� ����'�'*	�'�����%��& ���++ ��'���(,(� ��	(( �(���-./0�123-451-�56738673-�92:4�;<�=>?@�>A?�@AB@C@?�;ABD�BE;<�FFFFF�?>G�DH�FFFFFFFFFFFI�JKJJI�LG�>A?�L@BM@@A�BE@�/AN>A?�7=O;C@�:B;N;B;@<�5P@AQGI�>�6RA;Q;O>N�S>B@C�8;<BC;QBI�DCP>A;T@?�>A?�@U;<B;AP�;A�BE@�1DRABG�DH�0>A�V@CA>C?;AD�RA?@C�>A?�LG�W;CBR@�DH�BE@�N>M<�DH�BE@�0B>B@�DH�1>N;HDCA;>�XE@C@;A>HB@C�YZ[\]̂_̀Za\̀bcd�]\e\]]\f�[g�̀h�ijklmn�̀Zf�i5P@AQGno�>A?�186�0=;BE�/AQp��M;BE�DHH;Q@<�NDQ>B@?�;A�4>AQED�1RQ>=DAP>I�1>N;HDCA;>�>A?�VD<BDAI�6><<>QER<@BB<�XE@C@;A>HB@C�C@H@CC@?�BD�><�i1DA<RNB>ABnoI�HDC�OCDH@<<;DA>N�?@<;PA�<@CW;Q@<�;A�<ROODCB�DH�qCDr@QB<�73stKJupKK�>A?�73stKJvpKK�>A?�<E>NN�C@W;<@�BE@�1DABC>QB�><�E@C@;A�>=@A?@?w�( ��'���%�"�x�(��� ��%����y�	�!�( �z'� (x�	!!(��& �%�++��'�{��	�	{�	�&$��1DA<RNB>AB�>A?|DC�<RLQDA<RNB>AB|<RLQDABC>QBDC�<@CW;Q@<�<E>NN�L@�C@W;<@?�;A�>QQDC?>AQ@�M;BE� }~������I�ME;QE�;<�>BB>QE@?�E@C@BDI�=>?@�>�O>CB�E@C@DHI�>A?�;AQDCODC>B@?�E@C@;A�LG�BE;<�C@H@C@AQ@p�( ��'���('�x����� �(	�'��x�( ���!��	�	{�	�&x�'(�� z'( !����� 	!$��/A�QD=O@A<>B;DA�HDC�BE@�>??;B;DA>N�SDC��C@OC@<@AB@?�LG�BE;<�1DABC>QB�5=@A?=@ABI�5P@AQG�<E>NN�O>G�1DA<RNB>AB�>�������� ��  !�
�}�
�
������������x���x������HDC�>NN�<@CW;Q@<�OCDW;?@?�;A�>QQDC?>AQ@�M;BE� }~������x�C@H@C@AQ@?�E@C@;AI�>BB>QE@?�E@C@BDI�>A?�=>?@�>�O>CB�E@C@DHp��~���������������������������������x�����������~������������#���������������������
�����"��~�������S/-37007-.I�BE>B�BE@�O>CB;@<�E@C@BD�E>W@�=RBR>NNG�QDW@A>AB@?�>A?�>PC@@?�><�O@C�BE@�>LDW@�5=@A?=@AB�3R=L@C�9DRC�;B@=<I�>A?�;A�?D;AP�<D�E>W@�Q>R<@?�BE;<�?DQR=@AB�BD�L@QD=@�;AQDCODC>B@?�;ABD�BE@�1DABC>QB�?DQR=@AB<p�'�+	�!� ��'� �"�'+'�' (�	{ ��,$� �!��(�'�&�'���$�X5�6RA;Q;O>N�S>B@C�8;<BC;QBo��FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�0E;W>r;�8@<E=R�E�������������������������������X8>B@o��������-ED=><�1p�9>N�I�q7�������������������������X8>B@o��@A@C>N�6>A>P@C���������������������������������������������������qCDr@QB�6>A>P@C�|�1N;@AB�0@CW;Q@��@>?@C��

��������������������������  �¡¢�£��¢¡¤¡£¢¥¦�¤¢�¤�¦§¥����̈ £

©ª«¬ª«««



���������	
�����������
����	��������������������� !���	��!" 	���#�



����������	��
�	�������������������������������

�

������������� !"#$�%&���'$�()"*�+$�,-.�/0)��1$2$�,.*�.3�2450'"�670*070"8�9-"./��:�;<�=04>�**�9#".?"�@A0.)��@9�B%;�C��+?>D"/7E� FGHIJGHIK�KL�MLIJNKNLI�FOOHOOGHIK�PIJ�QPNIKHIPIRH�STKNGNUPKNLI�LV�KWH�MLXXHRKNLI�YZOKHG�FOOHKO�[\]̂ _̀abc̀̀ d�VLe�YNTWLI�MXHPINIf�PIJ�gIOTHRKNLI��h"�'��'$�,-.�/0)E�@h��+407A�i�8�'"7�0."3�0.�+"57"4>"'������>��7A"�,.*�.3�2450'"�670*070"8�9-"./�� ,269&�7)�/*"�.��.3�/).3?/7�0.85"/70).8�)j�;��805A).�>�''"*8�i07A0.�,269k8�'"-0).�*�8"i"'�8�87"4� !++&��.3�>'0."�8"i"'�8�87"4� l++&$��m)�3�7"����7)7�*�)j�:<�>�''"*8�A�#"�>"".�/*"�."3��.3�0.85"/7"3��i07A�7i)��33070).�*�>�''"*8� @?/�4).-��,.7"'/"57)'�!"*0"j�+"i"'�@6,!n�:;o�:C��.3�@6,!n�:<o�::&�8/A"3?*"3�j)'�'"5�0'8��.3�/*"�.0.-��.3�0.85"/70).�0.�*�7"o���p(?."$��65).�/)45*"70).�)j�7A"8"�7i)�>�''"*8���55')q04�7"*��Brs�)j�7A"�)'0-0.�**��8/)5"3�805A).�>�''"*8�i0**�A�#"�>"".�/*"�."3��.3�0.85"/7"3�i07A0.�7A"�"87�>*08A"3�/).7'�/7�>?3-"7�j)'�j0"*3�i)'t$�l�8"3�).�5')-'"88�7)�3�7"��.3�4)30j0"3�j0"*3�i)'t�5*�.8�3"8/'0>"3�>"*)i��7A"�/)87�7)�/)45*"7"�7A"�'"4�0.0.-�j)?'�807"8�/).80870.-�)j�j0#"�.)7o�"7o0.85"/7"3�805A).�>�''"*8�i0**�"q/""3�7A"�'"4�0.0.-�5')D"/7�>?3-"7�3?"�7)�807"�/).3070).8�7A�7�30jj"'�80-.0j0/�.7*��j')4�iA�7��88?4"3�3?'0.-�8/)50.-��.3�0.070�*�j0"*3�i)'t�5*�..0.-$��u"."'�**����7�7A"�j)?'�'"4�0.0.-�807"8��7A"�j)**)i0.-�/).3070).8�."/"8807�7"���-'"�7"'�*"#"*�)j�5*�..0.-��".-0.""'0.-��).807"�/))'30.�70).���.3�i)'t�7)�/)45*"7"�7A"�/*"�.0.-��.3�@@mv�0.85"/70).8E��wNfWHe�KWPI�FIKNRNTPKHJ�xXLyOc�h?'0.-�j0"*3�'"/)..�088�./"��.3�0.�5'"5�'�70).�)j�7A"�@).3070).�988"884".7�,45*"4".7�70).�1*�.� @9,1&��07�i�8�3"7"'40."3�7A�7�j*)i�4).07)'0.-�i�8�."/"88�'��7)�#"'0j��8"i"'�j*)i�'�7"8��.3�5�77"'.8��7�/"'7�0.�807"8�0.�)'3"'�7)�5')5"'*��3"80-.�>�5�88�5?450.-�8�87"48$��z*)i�4).07)'0.-���?7A)'0{"3�7A')?-A���8/)5"��4".34".7��.3�j?.3"3�7A')?-A�7A"�/).7'�/7�/).70.-"./��i�8�/).3?/7"3�0.�+"57"4>"'����%$��mA08�j*)i�4).07)'0.-�/).j0'4"3�A0-A"'�7A�.��.70/05�7"3�j*)i�'�7"8�j)'�7A0'7"".�805A).8$��mA"�A0-A"'�j*)i�'�7"8�'"|?0'"3�@h��+407Ak8�7"�4�7)�'"o3"80-.��.3�'".7�*�'-"'��4)'"�"q5".80#"�>�5�88�5?450.-�8�87"48�7)�8�j"*��30#"'7�j*)i�iA0*"�7A"�805A).8��'"�/*"�."3��.3�0.85"/7"3$���YLIPe�}eH~gIOTHRKNLI$�mA"�>�8"�8/)5"��88?4"8�@@mv�0.85"/70).�j)'��**�805A).8�0.��//)'3�./"�i07A��9++@�o19@1�5')7)/)*8���**)i0.-�j)'�8).�'�0.85"/70).8�iA"'"�@@mv�0.85"/70).8�08�0.j"�80>*"$��h?'0.-�7A"�j0"*3�i)'t�5*�..0.-��8).�'�5'"o0.85"/70).8�i"'"�"45*)�"3�).�8"#"'�*�805A).8�7)�-�?-"�3">'08�#)*?4"8��5')#030.-�045)'7�.7�3�7��7A�7��**)i"3�?8�7)�'"j0."�j0"*3�i)'t�5*�.8��.3�i)'t�3?'�70).8�5'0)'�7)�4)>0*0{�70).$���wNfWHe�KWPI�FIKNRNTPKHJ��H�eNOc�+05A).�3"i�7"'0.-��.3�/*"�.0.-����/'070/�*�0.070�*�87"5�0.�5'"5�'0.-�7A"�>�''"*8�j)'���@@mv�0.85"/70).��/�.�#�'��80-.0j0/�.7*��j')4�807"�7)�807"��3"5".30.-�).�

����������������������������������������������������������



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�������� ����!���������"��"��#������� �����!�!�$��"����������!�%���!�����"������������$�����������&��!���!�����������������
��  ���"�����"� ���"�"�&��'"�������"&�����"�(������!���!�����""�""����� �"�&�������� �$���)���������*�������"�&���"��������!�"�$"���������� ����!�$��"������(�"������������""� �!����"�����+� &�������� �"��"������!�$��"��� ��������(�"����������!����������"�����,���-�*�(�����,*.���'��/0����1���*�$��"-������2���(������3����!��4�$�-'��'$�-�"��#�"���������������������������!���"&�����,��"��&������������ ������&��!��!�/2��$�����!"��56���#� ����������78� ��������������&���!�����!�������������"��"���!�"�&����
�� ���������
�����!�!�&������"����!����������
���!�$�&�""��
��##���������!��$��!��������
������"�� �����5��"�"�����(����&��!�#���!�#���!�(��-�"�����
����!�#����(��
�&������"��"��$��"��!��������5�	���	�����������)�!�����59��* ����,�� ����&����!�(�����!!����������$����$�&�""���!����##����������"�"����� &���������(��-����*�$��"-������2�����!��
�"��""#���55,:���"&��������,��"�!�$��"��� ���������+� &����"��#�&���������������"��(������"&��������"�����,���-�*�(�����,*.�27'�22�����1���*�$��"-������7�������"��������!"����$��� &����!���"�!�"��$�!�$���(���;<=>?�;<@A�BCD<EF�BG@HIJI<IKL�M=C<INODGGEC�;EP=EK>IKLQ��"���$�"�"�#���"�&��
�����(�"��""� �!������!���'$������"���"�(���!�����(�#���"�3�����
��#�(��-�$�� ���&������
�"��&�&����"����!������#��(���!�����!��
�$�&�""�&� &��
���9����
�#���!��������""������!�!�����& �����#�����5�	������� $����#�"��&�&����"�(����#���!����$��#��)������������#�� �"��!�������������!� �
�!�&����"����!����������!�
��!������"���,������$��������������������"��"��&�&����"����"�3���������(��-����""�����"�����"���"����#���!�(��-�&������
��������!���$���
����!��&� &�!�$�&�""�"�"�� "������"�����������#�#��('�����
��&��
"�����"������$�����"���,����"��#����������&���!�&� &"���!�&��
"��+��!"��������
�����$�!
���#������"��"�&���"��	�������"���#��(��"�&����"���"��������5�� ��
��	�����&���������#��5	�.�24'�2R��*�$��"-������S���!�5	�.�27'�22��*�$��"-����������&��1���$�!
���(����$����&��&�"�!������"&�����#���!��&������������� ���������$����������!���'��"�����"��&�&����"������!������#���������������
���!���"&��������!������"����������!������"�����#������������#���	���T"���������"� ����������!�&��� ������UVWWXYZ�[\�]̂ _̂̀_[aXb�c\\[Ỳ�̀[�d[Webf̀f�g_fb̂�h[Yi�59��* �����"���3��"���
��!!��������$�!
������� &�����#���!�(��-��"�&��&�"�!�$���(���j���������
���)�!�����&��&�"�!��!!��������(��-����&�������)��"�&����"���"���������k**,���(��$�����"����!������7���*,��"��
���$�������#���(���������"&������(��-���"�$����� &����!�"��#�����!������"���������*���"������4��l�m����!���������n	��������!��$���$������"�&���"����(������!�������""�"" ����������!���!�#�������"&���!�(����55,:����"�$����� &����!��������$�������#�����"�&�����5� &�����
�����&��������$������������"���(���� �����
�"���"����!�$���� &��"��!���!������"��������(�����!!��������#��!��
����!�#����!������#������&��1������	���T"��&�������"�"�  ���)�!����������$���$���(���!!��������#��!��
��"���3��"��!����� &�����������
���!���"&������(��-��9�"��&����"�#��������������� �#����(�������$������!����"��$���-!�(��#�������"�&�������������"�����!�!��������� ���"��

opqrstuv�wvxyzp{y�|o}�~�~���������������������o�����owww��



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !"#$%#&'� () # �*&"�+,,#%#&')-�.**&"%� . %/�0& %�() ��+1�',1�'%�2!&$��3&"%4�25 %�1�2&6%4�7"6'8�93227:;<=>;?@A�26B%) 8�C/;/;@D� E�F�GG�FHIF��
���J��K�F����K��LL����K����K����II�J�K��M�����K�HN�K��LL������
��M���J��FM���OK���K� �P���������QQQ��.) %�"�7"6'8�2�R�"�9.72:@S?>@SSA�26B%) 8�C/C/C?D� T�
M���KM�����K��F�K�J�J�U��G���J�K������GH�K��
�����VK��J�J�W��N�JH��K�����K��LL����K�������J�U�F�GG��
� �P�������X�QYZ�.'[#'��"#'[�\�])')[�1�'%� �JJ�K����������GK�
�K�������
�������
����J����J���K�����GG���K�J�W�KM�U�G���I��JI��K�L���J�W��N�� P�����������������_̂̀a�bcadecadf�ghifjf_k�l�������mmnopqr�26$$-�1�'%)-�+1�',1�'%�2!&$��s"&t��+t�'6��u6%*)--�9s+u:@S?>@SSA�26B%) 8�C/C/;vD� 	��U���K��K��J����K�L��W�K��F��������U���������GG�K�K��
��U���
��H�J�FHIF�J�U�F�GG�G�GK�I� �P����������ZZ��w&'%)')�x'%�"!�$%&"�y�-#�*�9wxy:@S<>@S?A�26B%) 8�C/C/CCD� 	��U���K��K��J����K�L��W�K��F��������U���������GG�K�K��
��U���
��H�J�FHIF�J�U�F�GG�G�GK�I� �P�������Q�Y����.'[#'��"#'[\�])')[�1�'%� �JJ�K����������GK�
�K�������
�������
����J����J���K�����GG���K�J�W�KM�L���J�W��N� �P����������Y����ghzzkacadf_k�bcadecadf�ghifjf_k�l�������p{|oq}}�() ��)',�26$$-�1�'%)-�+1�',1�'%�7&%)-��~�����;A@<@A?C?���3&"%4�25 %�1�2&6%4�7"6'8�93227:;<=>;?@A�26B%) 8�C/;/;@D�����������������������/�O�FM���OHUK�GN���������G���JH���U��������Z�������M����������J��X����J��I�K�����	���G�FM���G�GK�I����M�����
�����G�F��UHJ
�K�L���KM�G�G�K���GGHI�J�KM�K�KM��F��������U�����G��H�J�U���G���K�J�K��G��H����������
���J���GK�HK����W�KM�HK���U�F�GG����H��K��M�
M���KM����VF�K�J�L��W��K�G�KM�K�����K�U����JH�J������U���
��H�J�U�F�GG��G����GG����K������W�G�L����GG�K��KM��HFGK���I���J�J�W�GK���I�I��M���G���J�K���IF��K��KM��������
���J���GF�K�����L�U�KM�U�����G����M�G�G�K���G�F��K�H�������IF���K�J�L���U�F�GG�FHIF��
�����H����
�KM��HG���L����IF�����G��L���IH�K�F�����GG��
G��L�KM��M�������K�HN�K��LL�N�J��M���J��FM���OK���K���J���UH���J�F��K�����L�U�F�GG�F�F��K����II�J�K����GG�K��KM����K�����O�������N��	����GH�K�K����W�KM�KM����K���L���K������KM��HG���L����IF�����G�����KM�G�UHG��GK���K�W�������GG�K�K��I����GHUGK��K����K��LL����K�������HJ��
���K��H�HG�L��

��G�K����
H��K��KM��GF��J���J�K�HN���GG�K����JHGK�����J����W��G�W�KM���KM��W��N��������M���JJ�K�������GKG�L���F������
��U�F�GG�FHIF��
����J�K��LL����K�����G����H���J�U��W��N�F��I�KG��������HJ�J����KM���U�����GK�I�K��K���IF��K���E�G�J����G�FM�����L�
H��K������J�J�U��G����HI�G����H�K���J����G�I�����U�����G�W���G�GK�I�G�FM��G��G�V�J��G��L�������
���J���GF�K��������F����K�J�L���KM�G�G�K����M��U�G��F��F�G���G�F���GGHI�G�KM�K��M���J��FM���OK���K�W�������J�K����I�����F�����J�KM�K�������
���GF�K����GM�LKG�W����U��GK�
�J��K���
MK��HKG�J���L�K�F����K�HN�K��LL�����GH�K��
����G�V�W��N��
�J��G��GK��KM��
����GG�KW������J���W��NG��U�F�GG�W�H�J���I�������F����KM��H
M�W��N��J����KM�H
M���K��F���K�J�������J���K���IF��K��KM��W��N����
���
�J�GHGG���G�W�KM���K���L���K�����I�������W�L�����F��K�������LH���GK���K���GH���KM�K�W�H�J�����W�L���G�IF��L��J�U�F�GG�FHIF��
���J�J�HU���GM�LK��
��L�������
���GF�K����W��N�WM�M�

������ ¡�¢¡£¤¥�¦¤�§�̈�©ª©«¬¬«®«̄««®°̄®±²ª°®�°«²³±�¢¢¢́ ¯



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

������ �
��!���"���������"#��� " ��  ���"�����"#�$�%�  �%�&%��
�����"��!!����"�����"�"#� � �"�����'()*+,-�.,/-0�1'.2345674558�2/9*()0�:;:;:6<�=�>?@A�BCADECADF�GHIJA;�K�%#���K�$"� L������M�� ������
�� ��
��N$��������OONPQ����N������&�"�����RS�P������S��� �%#�����T#� � �%#���� ����"������� "���&��!��� "����T���L���TKU���N��O��K�$"� L������V����#�#�� ���"����$�����W#�$�"��� �
��!���"���#�
#�����$�� �����&����&���"�����#��������������������������"#���"#���"#��� �%#�� ��������������"#� ���"��"���X� ������"#��SY��K&�"#�T��&Z �����"��W%��������"�"#�� �&������% "���&� �%#������"#�� �&��"���L� ����� � "�&�����#�������� ����������L�%��������� "�&�"��"���&%��"��"��������!����W"���������L�����"���������  ���"���!�������
� "� ��T#������"������� " ��  ���"�����"#�#�
#���"#�����"��%�"�����$�� ���&�������W"���������L�����"�����$�%�  �%�&%����"��� �"�%������%���"���������"��!!����"����� ���[������$�����L�%��&�" ����������������"#���$����� "�&�"��"���&%��"���X� ��������������"��W%��������"��% "���&� �"���TKU���N��O�������"��%�"���%�"�� �W"���� #�!" ��!�������
������� %�"����!���"#� � �"����T#��S�"���!�\�"�����#� ���!��&���"#�"���!���� "���"��� �������$����&&���"���!���"#� � �"��� �&%��!���
�"#��$�%�  �%�&%��
�����"��!!����"�����]��#�����  �&������$��N #�!"��
��!�"#��������
������� %�"�������L�� %�����
���"����� ������������ ����������%%��W�&�"����N����%�������� ,̂_̀+�à+-/+�b/*c(dd�1̂ab345674558�2/9*()0�:;:;ef<�=�GgJJhACADF?h�BCADECADF�GHIJA;�K�%#���K�$"� L������i�� �������N$��������OO�PQ���#��OON�������OVN������&�"����RS��� �%#��� � "�&���X���������OON������ ���"���$�#�����W� "��
� "�%�%��"� ��� �����"�������������������� %�"���������"#�����
�������"��"����j���&$��������������T#�����
����� �%�k$��
�"�!���"#� � �"���  �&���!�������"#� �%�������� �%#��� � "�&�������$����"�������"#���
#�"#��� ���!�!���N"#���
#�%��
 ���������
�%�  ���� �%#�������� ������"#��"�"#�������!���$�%�  �%�&%��
��l��������� ����� ��"��!���!���� "�������������"#��%��m�"�������������!� � "�&�#������� ���"��� ���"��&�����"#�"�!���N"#���
#�%��
 �������%�� ��"������ �!�� ��#��
������"������������$���
������%�&%��� � "�&�������$�����  ����"�������"�!�����#����"#�� �%#�� ������������������� %�"�����T#������"������� " �"�����"����� �"��%�����$���
������%�&%��� � "�&�����"��!!����"����� ���[������$�����L�%��&�" ����������������"#���$����� "�&�"��"���&%��"���X� ������ �%#�����!�
���"����������$�� �����&� ������"�������� �&�������
������ ����� � "�&� �%#�� ��"#������� ��!�������
������� %�"��������%��m�"���!���"#� � �"����n_-*(-(�o-*+,p+q*_,�r+ds+c�1nor345t74568�2/9*()0�:;:;::<�=�GgJJhACADF?h�BCADECADF�GHIJA;�K�%#���K�$"� L��������� �������N$��������uV�PQ���#���iN��������vN������&�"�����S��� �%#��� � "�&���X���������VVN����� ���"���$�#�����W� "��
� "�%�%��"� ��� �����"�������������������� %�"���������"#�����
�������"��"����K�%"�&$�������������T#�����
����� �%�k$��
�"��  �&���"#�"�!�������"#� �%�������� �%#��� � "�&�������$����"�������� ��
�!���N"#���
#�%��
 ���� "�%�%��"� ��� "���������"#���% "���&��������� "���&� �%#��� "��"��� ���������
�%�  ���� �%#�������� ������"#��"�"#�������!���$�%�  �%�&%��
��Y����
�!��������� "�
�"������"��� ��� �������"#�"�"#�� "�%�%��"� ������!��w����&�L��
�"#��� ���!�!���N"#���
#�%��
 ���!�� �$�����Q������������  ������"��&�����"#�"�!�W��
�"#�� "�%�%��"� �"���� "����!��"������"��������$���%�"��N��"�� ��������� ���"������������"#�������"����L�%�������� "�&�"��"���&%��"���K����"#���&&���$��� "�%�%��"� ��$ "��"�"#��� ���!�!���N"#���
#�%��
 ������$���
������%�&%��� � "�&��� ���"��&�����"��$�����  ����"�������"�!�����#����"#�� �%#�� ������������������ %�"����T#��

xyz{|}~�������y����x��������������������������x�����x�����



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

������������ � ������������� ���!"�����#���
��!���"!$"��� � ��$��������%%���������� ���&!�����#��"��$���� ����!��������'���#����� ��$��������$"������(� ������ �"'�����%�
!�������������#�� ����!$� ����!���������� �$�������
������ �)��� � ��$� �"'�� ��%�!����� ��%�������
������� "����������"��*�����%����'� � ������+,-.,//0.,-123,3-/4/,56�� ��� ��#����#������'��%�����)��7��  �������)��'�������%���
������� �����
�%�����)��7���
� �� ��� �)����� �����������
��'���$"��$����������%� ��!���� ��'� ��� !���������������������
�������
�����$���
�$����� � ��#�����'��!������ �"������#!�
����8'� ���$��'� �#���� "����#��)�����'��#� ������ !""��$������ �"� ����$�9����#�������"�������%��:�#���������	��������!�'���9��
������������%�����)��7������;'�!�����!�'��������&!� ���� ���
�����
�<=��;$��'> � !#$�������"��� ��������8�$�?��7�����@A������B�CCD���������$�������%��7�E�$ $��'��$��;����������8'�$� �<��?��7�������<������;������F������G����*�������
���<=��;$��'�	����HIJ�� � KLMN�OMPQ�RSTUVWX�YZN�[MN\]�̂_ÌMab�c_deÌ_]�fZed�gZeNdhbZZQ�RHf̂ �ij_k̀W��VkkMÌjaNklJ�� VQQ_k_ZNMb�m_abQ�OZPn�Tlk_jMkal��� �

opqrstuv�wvxyzp{y�|o}�~�~���������������������o�����owww��



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !"#"� �$%%&%%'& #�( !�)(" #& ( *&�+,#"'"-(#"� �.%#"'(#&�#����',/&#&�0�1",2� �345456�78�9#2�1:%#&'�1�;#2�<9; =>�)(:�3633�� � � � � �8�4� ?#&'� @#:4� A "#� A "#���%#� <�#(/���%#��� �� �� �� �� ��B� C:,(%%�D;'," E� � � � ��F� GHIJKJLMNJHO�P�QRSHIJKJLMNJHO� B� KT� UVWXYZ� UVWXYZ�[� \RN]̂� B� KT� U_̀W_aF� U_̀W_aF�_� QJTMTTRSIKb� B� KT� U[̀W[à� U[̀W[à�Y� c]Ŝ �dRONMK� F� ef� UF[ẀBV� U_̀W_[X�a� c]Ŝ �gMNhi�MOj�k]RK� V� j� UYWFZV� U_aWXXB��̀ � � � � ��X� lmnopp�qrsntuv�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� UBXXWVVV�V� � � � � ��BZ� <9(||"*��� #9�/� � � � ��BB� }~M��Jh��HON~HKT� V� j� UYẀ̀ Y� UYBWV̀Y�BB� GJTh���KKHeMOhR��H~��HON~HKT� B� KT� UBZWZZZ� UBZWZZZ�BF� � � � � ��B[� ��o��t���zuy�z{�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� UaBWV̀Y�B_� � � � � ��BY� 1#9;*#;9(/�)�!"|"*(#"� %� � � � ��Ba� �H�TN~]hN]~MK�SHjJ�JhMNJHOT�~R�]J~Rj� Z� KT� UZ� UZ�B̀� � � � � ��BX� wy�r�yr�o{��z�t�t�oytzup�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� UZ�BV� � � � � ��FZ� �/&( " E�( !�? %,&*#"� � � � � ��FB� �KRMOJO��MOj��OT̂RhNJHO� a� TiJ�NT� UXWF̀F� U_VWa[F�FF� � � � � ��F[� �{�outuv�ou���upn��ytzu� �� �� �� U_VWa[F�F_� � � � � ��FY� \]INHNMK� � � � U[ZZWaZa�Fa� �HONJO�ROhb� BZ�� � � U[ZWZaB�F̀� �� �� ���� ��FX� � � � � ��FV� <+<$�� �� �� �� ���6�����$%%;',#"� %� � � � ���� �KRMOJO��MOj�JOT̂RhNJHO�eJKK�Hhh]~�H�R~�a�jMbT�eJNi�TJO�KR�TiJ�NT�RMhi�jMb�� ���� c]Ŝ �~RONMK�P�N~M��Jh�hHON~HKT����TT]SR�a�eH~f�jMbT���F�eRRfROj�jMbT���B�TRN]̂�jMb����� \RN]̂�hHTNT�MTT]SR�U[Z���H~�I]~bJO��Ib̂MTT�̂ĴR�MN�RON~MOhR�NH��ONM~JH�\HhhR~cM~f��Q��� }~M��Jh�hHON~HK�MTT]SRT�OH�~HMj�hKHT]~R�� � � �� �

��� ¡¢£¤�¥¤¦§̈�©§�ª�«�¬¬®̄ ®̄°±®²®®±°³°²±́µ³±�³®µ¶́�¥¥¥·²



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !�"�#$%&'(�)*& &*&(+�,-(�./�01�"&*&1��,++(++$(�*�!�"�2!&�*(�!�.(�3%*&$&4!*&1��#+*&$!*(�*1�01$% (*(�5�6&%71��89898:�;#!+*('��<'=�>?�2!/�8@88�� � � � � �A19� �*($� B*/9� )�&*� )�&*�01+*� <1*! �01+*��� �� �� �� �� ��C� D/%!++�E=$%&�-� � � � ��F� GHIJKJLMNJHO�P�QRSHIJKJLMNJHO� C� KT� UVWXYX� UVWXYX�V� ZRN[\� C� KT� UC]WX]V� UC]WX]V�X� QJTMTTRSIK̂� C� KT� U_WV̀F� U_WV̀F��̀ a[S\�bRONMK� F� cd� UFFẀeC� UX̀WCXF�_� a[S\�fMNgh�MOi�j[RK� CF� i� UeW]k̀� Uk̀W]Ce�e� � � � � ��k� lmnopp�qrsntuv�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� UC̀]WX]k�Y� � � � � ��C]� <'!||&.�01�*'1 � � � � ��CC� }~M��Jg��HON~HKT� CF� i� Ùek� U_WYV]�CF� � � � � ��CV� ��o��t���zuy�z{�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� U_WYV]�CX� � � � � ��C̀� 6*'=.*='! �21"&|&.!*&1�+� � � � ��C_� �H�TN~[gN[~MK�SHiJ�JgMNJHOT�~R�[J~Ri� ]� KT� U]� U]�Ce� � � � � ��Ck� wy�r�yr�o{��z�t�t�oytzup�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� U]�CY� � � � � ��F]� 0 (!�&�-�!�"���+%(.*&1�� � � � ��FC� �KRMOJO��MOi��OT\RgNJHO��F��ThJ�NTPiM̂�� C_� ThJ�NT� UkWFeF� UCVFWV̀F�FF� � � � � ��FV� �{�outuv�ou���upn��ytzu� �� �� �� UCVFWV̀F�FX� � � � � ��F̀� Z[INHNMK� � � � UFkYW_Y]�F_� �HONJO�ROĝ� C]�� � � UFkWY_Y�Fe� �� �� ���� ��Fk� � � � � ��FY� <3<,�� �� �� �� ������:��,++=$%*&1�+� � � � ���� �KRMOJO��MOi�JOT\RgNJHO�cJKK�Hgg[~�H�R~�k�iM̂T�cJNh�iH[IKR�ThJ�NT�RMgh�iM̂�� ���� a[S\�~RONMK�P�N~M��Jg�gHON~HKT����TT[SR�k�cH~d�iM̂T���F�cRRdROiT���F�TRN[\�iM̂���  HgMK�gHOORgNJHOT�M~R�JO�RTNJ�MNRi�MOi�JN�JT�MTT[SRi�T[~ghM~�R�CF�̀��N��~HS�JO�R~N�JT�¡¢������ }~M��Jg�gHON~HK�MTT[SRT�~HMi�gKHT[~R�� � � � �

£¤¥¦§̈©ª�«ª¬®¤̄�°£±�²³²́µµ́¶·́¸́ ·́¶¹¶̧·º»³¹·£¹́»¼º£«««½̧



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !�"�#$%&'(�)*& &*&(+�,-(�./�01�"&*&1��,++(++$(�*�!�"�2!&�*(�!�.(�3%*&$&4!*&1��#+*&$!*(�*1�01$% (*(�5�6&%71��8989:;�<='1>(�,>(�?(�3?*@!  A�2!/�8B88�� � � � � �C19� �*($� D*/9� )�&*� )�&*�01+*� E1*! �01+*��� �� �� �� �� ��F� G/%!++�H?$%&�-� � � � ��I� JKLMNMOPQMKR�S�TUVKLMNMOPQMKR� F� NW� XYZ[\]� XYZ[\]��̂ _UQ̀a� F� NW� XF\Zbb\� XF\Zbb\�[� TMWPWWUVLNc� F� NW� XFIZ]bb� XFIZ]bb�b� d̀Va�eURQPN� F� fg� XFIZ]h[� XFIZ]h[�\� d̀Va�iPQjk�PRl�m̀UN� �̂ l� XhZ[Î� XIIZI\Y�h� � � � � ��n� opqrss�tuvqwxy�zu{|}|r~� �� �� �� XhIZ[F[�Y� � � � � ��F]� E'!@@&.�01�*'1 � � � � ��FF� ��P��Mj��KRQ�KNW� �̂ l� X[Z\I]� XF̂Zn\]�FI� � � � � ��F̂� ��r��w���}x|�}~�zu{|}|r~� �� �� �� XF̂Zn\]�F[� � � � � ��Fb� 6*'?.*?'! �21"&@&.!*&1�+� � � � ��F\� �K�WQ�̀jQ̀�PN�VKlM�MjPQMKRW��U�̀M�Ul� F� NW� X]� X]�Fh� � � � � ��Fn� z|�u�|u�r~��}�w�w�r|w}xs�zu{|}|r~� �� �� �� X]�FY� � � � � ��I]� 0 (!�&�-�!�"���+%(.*&1�� � � � ��IF� �NUPRMR��PRl��RWaUjQMKR� �̂ l� XnZIhI� XI[ZnF\�II� � � � � ��Î� �~�rxwxy�rx���xsq��|w}x� �� �� �� XI[ZnF\�I[� � � � � ��Ib� _̀LQKQPN� � � � XFFFZ]Y]�I\� �KRQMR�URjc� F]�� � � XFFZF]Y�Ih� �� �� ���� ��In� � � � � ��IY� E3E,�� �� �� �� �:88�:���,++?$%*&1�+� � � � ���� �NUPRMR��PRl�MRWaUjQMKR�fMNN�Kjj̀��K�U��̂�lPcW�� � � ���� �caPWW�fMNN�LU�PNM�RUl�Qk�K̀�k�QkU�Pl�PjURQ�j̀N�U�Q�� � � ��� �

����� ¡¢�£¢¤¥¦�§¥�̈�©�ª«ª¬¬®̄¬°¬¬̄®±®°̄²³«±̄�±¬³́²�£££µ°



���������	
������	���������������������������
����

�

�� !�"�#$%&'(�)*& &*&(+�,-(�./�01�"&*&1��,++(++$(�*�!�"�2!&�*(�!�.(�3%*&$&4!*&1��#+*&$!*(�*1�01$% (*(�5�6&%71��898988�:;1�*!�!���*('.(%*1'�<( &(=>�2!/�8?88�� � � � � �@19� �*($� A*/9� )�&*� )�&*�01+*� B1*! �01+*��� �� �� �� �� ��C� D/%!++�EF$%&�-� � � � ��G� HIJKLKMNOKIP�Q�RSTIJKLKMNOKIP� C� LU� VGWXYYG� VGWXYYG�Z� [SO\]� C� LU� VẐXGG_� VẐXGG_��̂ RKUNUUSTJL̀� C� LU� VC_X̂ab� VC_X̂ab�a� c\T]�dSPONL� C� ef� VCYXYŶ� VCYXYŶ�Y� c\T]�gNOhi�NPj�k\SL� �̂ j� VbX̂ZW� VZZXŴ_�W� � � � � ��b� lmnopp�qrsntuv�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� VCZCXWYZ�_� � � � � ��C|� B'!==&.�01�*'1 � � � � ��CC� }~N��Kh��IPO~ILU� �̂ j� VCXa||� VYX|||�CG� � � � � ��CZ� ��o��t���zuy�z{�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� VYX|||�Ĉ� � � � � ��Ca� 6*'F.*F'! �21"&=&.!*&1�+� � � � ��CY� dSTI�S��IPS��I~�[\hOKIP�HNPiILS� C� LU� V̂ X̂Ca|� V̂ X̂Ca|�CW� � � � � ��Cb� wy�r�yr�o{��z�t�t�oytzup�wrxyzyo{� �� �� �� V̂ X̂Ca|�C_� � � � � ��G|� 0 (!�&�-�!�"���+%(.*&1�� � � � ��GC� �LSNPKP��NPj��PU]ShOKIP� �̂ j� VbXGWG� VZZX|bb�GG� � � � � ��GZ� �{�outuv�ou���upn��ytzu� �� �� �� VZZX|bb�Ĝ� � � � � ��Ga� [\JOIONL� � � � VGCaX||C�GY� �IPOKP�SPh̀� C|�� � � VGCXa||�GW� �� �� ���� ��Gb� � � � � ��G_� B3B,�� �� �� �� �8����?��,++F$%*&1�+� � � � ���� �LSNPKP��NPj�KPU]ShOKIP�eKLL�Ihh\~�I�S~�̂�jǸU�� � � ���� HKPKTNL�O~N��Kh�hIPO~ILU�N~S�~S�\K~Sj�j\S�OI�NLK�PTSPO�� � ���� [\~hiN~�S�KP�OiS�KPOS~hS]OI~�eKLL�PIO�KT]NhO�J\KLjKP�U�\]UO~SNT�� � ��

������ ¡�¢¡£¤¥�¦¤�§�̈�©ª©«¬¬«®«̄««®°̄®±²ª°®�°«²³±�¢¢¢́ ¯



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1F 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

RP-1 Solids Thickening Project Design Consultant Contract Amendment No. 3

The Regional Water Recycling Plant No.1 (RP-1) Solids Thickening Project will improve the
processes upstream of the digesters and construct additional capacity to permit future
improvements that would increase the overall treatment capacity. During the review of the
Design Intent Memorandums, staff identified necessary modifications and additions to the scope
of the existing design consultant contract with Carollo Engineering, Inc. The proposed
amendment, No. 3, is intended to encapsulate these modifications in the design contract: (a)
analyze the existing plant capacity at RP-1 to better plan future projects; (b) add an additional
boiler to supply heat demand while maintaining redundancy; (c) re-evaluate a prior evaluation of
beneficial use of digester gas; (d) rehabilitate Disolved Air Floatation Thickeners (DAFT) 1 & 2
to treat scum from the treatment processes; (e) remove items from the scope that were originally
intended for demolition; (f) remove the planned 12 kV facility and associated appurtenances; (g)
consolidate the SCADA controls for the digesters into a single location; (h) update the asset
register to facilitate IEUA Asset Management processes; and (i) plan and provide an increased
level of treatment of digester gas based on needs identified in the design process. The contract
amendment to Carollo Engineering, Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $880,393, increases the
maximum authorized contract from $13,677,502 to $14,557,895 (6.0% increase).

1. Approve a contract amendment for the Regional Plant No.1 Solids Thickening Building,
Project No. EN22044, to Carollo Engineering, Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $880,393
increasing the maximum authorized contract from $13,677,502 to $14,557,895 (6.0% increase);
and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

EN22044/RP-1 Solids Thickening Project

None.

1000 10900 595000 127151 EN22044

07/13/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-1 Solids Thickening Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater
Management, specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment
facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainability managed,
and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

Awarded a consultant contract for the RP-1 Capacity Recovery, Project Nos. EN24001 and
EN24002 to Carollo Engineers Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount of $13,637,633 on December
20, 2017.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
the Common Sense Exemption as defined in Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Proposed Amendment No. 3 to Project EN22044

Project Environmental Impact Report

22135



 
 

Attachment 1 



RP-1 Solids Thickening Project
Design Consultant Amendment

Project No. EN22044

Travis Sprague, P.E.
Principal Engineer

July 2022



2

Project Location (City of Ontario)

CA State Route 60

E. Walnut St.

IEUA RP-1

Solids Thickening 
Project Footprint

Future Liquid Treatment 
Capacity Project



3

Purpose

• Staff identified scope items to be added or removed from the project
• Scope Changes incorporated in Amendment No. 3:

Added Scope Removed

o Rehabilitation of Dissolved Air
Floatation Thickeners (DAFT) 1 & 2

o New boiler and gas system
improvements

o Stress Test / Capacity Analysis
o Updated Digester Gas Beneficial

Use Study
o Changes to SCADA control strategy
o Increased level of treatment for

digester gas
o Modified electrical service to new

facilities

o Demolition Items (Belt Press Building
and Other System Appurtenances)

o 12 kV Building (Deferred to Future
Project)

o New Southern California Edison (SCE)
Service (Deferred to Future Project)

o New Generators (Deferred to Future
Project)



Major Amendment Items

4

CA State Route 60

IEUA RP-1

New Solids 
Thickening Building

Deferred 12 
kV Building

Modified 
Electrical Service

Deferred 
Building Demo

DAFT Rehab &
Additional Boiler



5

Project Budget

Description Estimated Cost

Design Services $10,142,949
Design + Review Services $7,846,604
Amendment No. 3 $880,393
IEUA Design Support Services $650,000
Skid-Mounted RDT Trailer $765,952
Construction Services $10,000,000
Engineering Services During Construction (5%) $5,000,000
IEUA Construction Support Services (5%) $5,000,000
Construction $110,000,000
Construction Contract Estimate $100,000,000
Contingency, 10% $10,000,000
Total Project Cost: $130,142,949

Total Project Budget*: $133,080,000

Project Milestone Date

Design Contract
Final Design June 2023
Bid + Award Oct. 2023

Construction Contract
Notice to Proceed Oct. 2023
Close-out Aug. 2026



6

Recommendation

• Approve a contract amendment for the Regional Plant No.1 Solids
Thickening Building, Project No. EN22044, to Carollo Engineering,
Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $880,393 increasing the
contract from $13,677,502 to $14,557,895 (6.0% increase); and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract
amendment, subject to non-substantive changes.

The RP-1 Solids Thickening Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management specifically 
the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet 

evolving requirements, sustainability managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.



Attachment 2 



�

����������	
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������	���	 !�" !����# $!�%������������������&#'�(�)�!�)(�!!�(�)�&!�*(�!&�+����,!�������'(-#("&�.�&�'("&��	�	�(�/��!��*!�/�.��,(�0!�(�)�����1!�����23�!����4�!�����4�.�!��������5678�9:;5<=95�=>?;@>?;5�56<??�AB�CDEF�DGE�FGHFIFE�AGHJ�HKAB�LLLLL�EDM�JN�LLLLLLLLLO�PQPPO�RM�DGE�RFHSFFG�HKF�7GTDGE�?CUAIF�VHATAHAFB�=WFGXMO�D�>YGAXAUDT�ZDHFI�@ABHIAXHO�JIWDGA[FE�DGE�F\ABHAGW�AG�HKF�9JYGHM�JN�8DG�]FIGDIEAGJ�YGEFI�DGE�RM�̂AIHYF�JN�HKF�TDSB�JN�HKF�8HDHF�JN�9DTANJIGAD�_KFIFAGDNHFI�IFNFIIFE�HJ�AGHFIXKDGWFDRTM�DB�̀abcde�fgh�̀=WFGXMei�DGE�9DIJTTJ�?GWAGFFIBO�7GXj�SAHK�JNNAXFB�TJXDHFE�AG�<ÂFIBAEFO�7ÎAGFO�kKJFGA\O�DGE�lJB�=GWFTFB�_KFIFAGDNHFI�IFNFIIFE�HJ�DB�m̀ngopqrfgreiO�NJI�UIJNFBBAJGDT�EFBAWG�BFÎAXFB�NJI�HKF�<kst�lAuYAEB�v�8JTAEB�9DUDXAHM�<FXĴFIM�v�5KAXwFGAGW�kIJxFXHB�?;PPQyyO�?;PyQQtO�DGE�?;PyQQPO�DGE�BKDTT�IF̂ABF�HKF�9JGHIDXH�DB�KFIFAG�DCFGEFEz�� 8?957:;�{:V<O�89:k?�:{�Z:<|�=;@�8?<}79?8O�78�96=;~?@�5:�<?=@z��9JGBYTHDGH�o�BFÎAXFB�DGE�IFBUJGBARATAHAFB�BKDTT�RF�AG�DXXJIEDGXF�SAHK�9JGBYTHDGH�B�kIJUJBDT�JN�=CFGECFGH�EDHFE��YGF�PQO�PQPPO�DHHDXKFE�KFIFHJO�IFNFIFGXFE�KFIFAGO�DGE�CDEF�D�UDIH�KFIFJN�DB����2����������������	�����
�����j���� 8?957:;�87�O�9:>k?;8=57:;O�78�<?}78?@�5:�=@@�56?�{:ll:Z7;~z����7G�XJCUFGBDHAJG�NJI�HKF�SJIw�IFUIFBFGHFE�RM�HKAB�9JGHIDXH�=CFGECFGH�5SJO�=WFGXM�BKDTT�UDM�9JGBYTHDGH����������!��!!"�
���
�
������������4���4���3���NJI�DTT�DEEAHAJGDT�BFÎAXFB�UIĴAEFE�AG�DXXJIEDGXF�SAHK�	�����
�����O�IFNFIFGXFE�KFIFAGO�DHHDXKFE�KFIFHJO�DGE�CDEF�D�UDIH�KFIFJNj�5KAB�IFUIFBFGHB�DG�AGXIFDBF�HJ�HKF�9JGHIDXH�JN����QO���jQQj�� $���������������������
���2����������3���&���������������

���������������23�� �

�������������������� �¡��¢¢£¡¤¥¦�£¢¥§̈©§¥ª�¢�¥«̈¬�¤ª̈ª¡̈¬



�

����������	
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������ !! �"#��"$���" �%$&�� !�" & �'�"$( �)*�*$++,�-'( �$�� .�$�.�$/&  .�$!�% &��" �$0'( �$) �.) ����� )!#�$�.����.'��/�!'�"$( �-$*! .��"�!�.'-*) ����'�0 -') ���-'&%'&$� .����'��" �-'��&$-��.'-*) ��!1��234	35�67�2�6�89242926:�	;63�<=� �	�>44>�63;2366�:?�23�@=�AB�C*��-�%$+��$� &�D�!�&�-�E���FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�G"�($H��D !")*I"�����������������������������AD$� E� J&$"$)�K1J1�K*0,#�L"1D1#�L1M1�������AD$� E�J � &$+�C$�$/ &��� � ������������� N�- �L& !�. ���O�L&��-�%$+P��PQ"$&/ ��� � � � � ���� FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF���FFFFFFFF�����������������������������������������������������������������������������M&�-�C1�C�++!#�L1M1���������� AD$� E�����������������������������������G ��'&�N�- �L& !�. ��������� �R�S$+$�- �TU�V"�!�L$/ �W�� ���'�$++,�X U��S+$�I�Y���

Z[\]̂ _̀a�bacde[fd�gZh�iZbjjkilmnbkjmopqomrZjbmsptblrpriput

vwxywxzxxvwxywxzxx



����������	����
���	�������	���������	���� �!�	"�#	$��%%&$'()�&%(*+,*(-�%�(.+/�'-+-$+0/



�� ��������	
���
���
����
���������	
����	��������������������� ����������������������������������

�� ! "���#�"$%&'$%&()*+,,�--)+./�!/'.01�

23&%�,�4�,�,,��56/�7689:;�<=68>3%4�?/*/�?6:&0:=8@�*&>:&%%6�A&@8&'�*$=:6%�B(:@:(:%;�">%&0C�D�EF�G:$H8@@�"9%&3%�IJ:&.4�I"� �E�K�<3HL%0(M� N?O��<.@:';�7J:0P%&:&>�?6.L%0(�Q*+,,�--R�S�"$%&'$%&(�+./�!�QB='8(%'T�U%86�56/�<=68>3%M�?6%;%&(%'�J%6%:&�VW�"$%&'$%&(�+./�!�X.6�(J%�N%>:.&8@�?@8&(���QN?O�R�<.@:';�7J:0P%&:&>�?6.L%0(�Q*+,,�--R/�7J:;�8$%&'$%&(�:;�:&(%&'%'�(.�8''6%;;�;%9%68@�0J8&>%;�(.�(J%�;0.=%�.X�Y.6P�8(�(J%�6%Z3%;(�.X�A&@8&'�*$=:6%�B(:@:(:%;�">%&0C�QA*B"T�8&'�(.�=6.9:'%�(J%�8&(:0:=8(%'�@%9%@�.X�%XX.6(�&%%'%'�X.6�:$=@%$%&(8(:.&/�7J%�X.@@.Y:&>�=6.9:'%;�(J%�H8;:;�X.6�(J%�8$%&'$%&(�8;�Y%@@�8;�'%;06:=(:.&;�X.6�(J%�Y.6P�(8;P;�6%Z3:6%'�(.�8@@.Y�(J%�6%Z3%;(%'�0J8&>%W/�[\]̂]�_̀a�bcdefcdeg�h9%6�(J%�0.36;%�.X�'%9%@.=:&>�(J%�=6.L%0(�(J6.3>J�(J%�U%;:>&�A&X.6$8(:.&�5%$.68&'8�QUA5WR�=6%=868(:.&�8&'�!��=%60%&(�'%;:>&�;(8>%;4�6%>3@86�=6.>6%;;�$%%(:&>;�8&'�6%9:%Y�Y.6P;J.=;�Y%6%�0.&'30(%'�(.�8@@.Y�A*B"�(J%�.==.6(3&:(C�(.�=6.9:'%�X%%'H80P�.&�(J%�$8:&�%@%$%&(;�.X�(J%�'%;:>&/�7J6.3>J�(J:;�=6.0%;;4�A*B"�:'%&(:X:%'�8�&3$H%6�.X�:(%$;�(J8(�(J%C�X%@(�Y8668&(%'�X36(J%6�:&9%;(:>8(:.&i8&8@C;:;4�jk'8(%'�0.&X:6$8(:.&4�.6�'%;:>&�0J8&>%;/�7J%;%�:(%$;�86%�8;�X.@@.Y;M��/�<(6%;;�(%;(�(J%�;%0.&'86C�(6%8($%&(�=6.0%;;�(.�0.&X:6$�(J%�0366%&(�N?O��08=80:(C4�8&'�Y.6P�Y:(J�A*B"l;�?@8&&:&>�m6.3=�(.�'%(%6$:&%�(:$:&>�X.6�(J%�0.&9%6;:.&�(.�8�$%$H68&%�H:.6%80(.6�QnopR�WC;(%$/�,/�"'':(:.&�.X�q�&%Y�H.:@%6�(.�(J%�N?O��':>%;(%6�J%8(:&>�;C;(%$/�!/�B='8(:&>�.X�UA5��-4�U:>%;(%6�m8;�r%&%X:0:8@�B;%�<(3'C4�H8;%'�.&�6%0%&(@C�6%0%:9%'�0.$$%&(;�X6.$�A*B"/�-/�U%;:>&�X.6�(J%�6%J8H:@:(8(:.&�8&'�$.':X:08(:.&�.X�':;;.@9%'�8:6�X@.(8(:.&�(J:0P%&%6;�QU"s7;R���8&'�,�X.6�;03$�(J:0P%&:&>/�F/�IJ8&>%;�(.�(J%�'%$.@:(:.&�'68Y:&>;/�7J:;�Y:@@�:&0@3'%�0J8&>%;�(.�(J%�=6.L%0(�'%$.@:(:.&�6%Z3:6%$%&(;�8&'�6%$.98@�.X�'%$.@:(:.&�'68Y:&>;�(J8(�Y:@@�&.(�H%�'%9%@.=%'�H%C.&'�(J%�!��=%60%&(�'%;:>&�;(8>%/�D/�N%$.98@�.t�(J%�&%Y��,�P:@.9.@(�QPuR�%@%0(6:08@�H3:@':&>�X6.$�(J%�'%;:>&4�8;�8�&%Y�H3:@':&>�Y:@@�&.�@.&>%6�H%�&%%'%'�X.6�(J%�=6.L%0(/�E/�U:>%;(:.&�I.&(6.@�<(68(%>:%;�S�N%9:%Y�.X�(J%�=6.0%;;�0.&(6.@�&8668(:9%�Q?I+R�X.6�(J%�%1:;(:&>�':>%;(%6�;C;(%$�'%9%@.=%'�8;�=86(�.X�(J%�<I"U"�5:>68(:.&�?6.L%0(�Q*+�!��D/�FR�;.�(J8(�(J%�N?O��;C;(%$�08&�.=%68(%�:&�%:(J%6�(J6%%O=J8;%�.6�;:&>@%O=J8;%�':>%;(:.&�$.'%/�K/�B='8(:&>�(J%�A*B"�";;%(�N%>:;(%6�Y:(J�(J%�&%Y�%Z3:=$%&(�8&'�J86'Y86%�(.�H%�8''%'�(J6.3>J�(J:;�=6.L%0(/� /�*98@38(:.&�.X�8@(%6&8(:9%;�X.6�;063HH:&>�':>%;(%6�>8;�X6.$�(J%�80:'�':>%;(%6;/�7J%�Y.6P�&%%'%'�(.�:$=@%$%&(�(J%�8H.9%�:(%$W�VW�=6%;%&(%'�:&�(J%�(8;P;�H%@.Y/�

vwxyz{|}�~}���w����v���v~�������~���������v�~����~��������



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

������������

 !"#�$�%�&'()""� )"'�&)*+,-!(.� ()!'/),'�0(+*)""�'+�1+,23(/�'4)�15((),'�607$�1!8!*3'.������9�	:�	�������;�����:�����������<����:�	������������;��:��=�>?�	������������������������		����@�����������������9:����:���A=��B���	�������C����DE��B����������@�����������	�������;�����������?��F���������������	�������GF������H�9�	���	I�����������9��:�������������;�����:����	���:��������	������������:�������		�������������������	�������;��:����?J�������������K�	����=������G�K=L���������������������9������	����I����������������	���		���	���;��:��=�>?�	������������������������		�	��M:����	�������9����@�������9��������������������������:��������������		���������������������:���������=�>?�	�������������������	�	���������������	�������;���������������������:�	�9����@��	���9��:�;����;��9����C������	�;���=�>?�����=��������������N�G=�>NL���������������:���������;���9:���������	�����;��:��	������������������������		��������A=��	���������
����;���9��I����@�������������:�	���	I�������	O�?��K�������
���		���	������������������	���������	����������<�������	�������;�����:���������������������F������������������������������������G�����������	�;�P�QRSL�����	�����H�9��:������������	��;;���������9��:����	���������<�������	��������;����	��;;���T	��;;���	���	�@������	��U��V�	����:��	�����������������G������:��������	H��������:��
���		���	�������	������@	������:����	�����������	9�������<�	����	������������:��
���		���	�����������	����������<�������	��N��W@��������������;�������������;�����:��	���		���	�����;�������������������������������:��A��X��������		���������������������:��=�>?���������������������Y��F����������9��:�����Z	����������[��������@�����;����;��9����C������E����=�>?�����=�>N��\��9����C������	�9����@��	��������:���9��:��������9�	��9������:��������	���	���������������:���������������������;���������	�����;��:��	������������������������		��������A=������	��������	���������:����:��;��9����C������������	�	�;���@��:�;��������	�@��������������@��������	�	��������������		�����9��������@��������������������������U��]��������������	@����̂��;������\�������������F�����������������������9��:��������������9��������	�����:��̂��;��������������������������Z	��������	�������:��\�����_�������àbcdaefgbahi�j� èfkl�fmn�ocmfb�pleahh�qahl�rbfm�hsgtcllan�cm�abaulevmcu�kvetflw�j� èfkl�fmn�ocmfb�eaxvel�hsgtcllan�cm�abaulevmcu�kvetflw�yz{|}�{~��{��������|��{������������xbfml�hlfkk��cbb�uvmnsul�l�a�pleahh�qahl�xae�l�a�rbfm�fmn�uvbbaul�hftxbah�fh�ufbban�kve�cm�l�a�rbfmw��mfb�hch�vk�hftxbah��cbb�ga�xaekvetan�fl������h�bfgveflve��kfucbcl�w��k�hftxbah�ea�scea�vkkhcla�bfgveflve��fmfb�hch��������cbb��ve��nceaulb���cl��f�uvmleful�bfgveflve��lv�xaekvet�l�a�ea�schcla�fmfb�hahw���������h�rbfmmcm���evsx��cbb�xevdcna�cmkvetflcvm�ea�fencm��l�a�fmlcucxflan�kslsea�kbv��xev�aulcvmh�lv��r������� ¡�¢�£¤��¥¥¦¥h�l�a�lctcm��kve�l�a�§̈ ��a©xfmhcvm�xev�aulw�ªse�smnaehlfmncm��ch�xeabctcmfe��cmkvetflcvm�kevt�������cbb�vmb��«¦��¬�®�«®¦���¦�̄®°��±�²��q�ch��cbb�ga�nvustamlan�cm�l�a�eaxvel�vmua�cl�ch�fdfcbfgbaw�

³́µ¶·̧¹º�»º¼½¾́¿½�À³Á�Â³»ÃÃÄÂÅÆÇ»ÄÃÆÈÉÊÈÆË³Ã»ÆÌÉÍ»ÅËÉËÂÉÎÍ



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$�%�&�'(()*)+,�+-�./0�1+)2/3�*+�4567�8)9/#*/3�:/"*),9�;<#*/=�����>��	����� ?��>���� @���������������������>����>���A�	�����B�CD�E �����	�	����>���	??�������>����	��������������������E���� �	�� ����>�������� �� ?��>��������>�	��F���	����G��HI�	�	������>���A�	�����������E �����	�	����� �	�	�	� ?��J �E ����	������������������K	����E��� �?������ ����������������������	�	� ?��>���� @������>�����������	����? ���������������� ������ ?��>���������������	���������������>����>�	�J�	�� �����L�> J������� ����	 �J �����M�����>�� ������ �� ?�E �>�E ����	�	������� 	����������>��J������� ��>	�J>���>������������	��>��>��>�	������ ���� ����>��	���������	�	� ?��>��>���������M�������	�����E �����	�	����	����������������������J�	�	E	�M��������M�	����E��������J>��>�� �?�������>����������?������	�������� �����>����>����	N� ?� ���������J��> �������������E��N��E ���������J ���� ��E���������E�����>���? �����������M�	�����>�������J��>����E �����E��������� ��>��B�CD�E �����	�	�����	������ ?��>�	��� @�������������� ��� ���������>���>����E �������������	 �	����?�����>����>��E �����	�	����J���������� � ��������	�? �� J	O�P������>���� ?��>��E ����	��	��>�����>���E������� ���� ������	������	��P�F����� ������ ����>���������J����E��� �����>���J �����E ����	�	 ����� ������	������	��P�Q��������	�J����E��������E���� ������>����E ����	��	���E��N������>�������� ?������������� ��� ��>������	������	�	�������>�	�J������M����	 ���� ��?����� �	�� ��>���A�	���������	������	��������	�	����� ��>��E �����	�	������>�	���>����	�J����E����������J��>��>����J�E ����������� ���
����?���J �N���M�����? ���>�	���	N�������	��>��? �� J���O�D�����? �������������������	�	� ?��>���� @������������>������������?���������� �� ?��>����F�	�	��������� ���������� ��>��	�������������� ?��>���A�	�����E �����	�	����?��� ���������>�� E	������� J�J����������������? ���>��� 	���������J������	��	 ���	�J�����	������?� ��������	��??� ��������>�������������	� E	������? ���>���A�	���������	����	�	�����������>��J������� ��>	���>�	������	�	�J�	����? �����? �� J�����>��F���R
������� E���F���	�� ���J �N	> ������B����J��>���A�	�������	�	�	�����> ��J�����	�	�������������S�����������������F�	������G�S�FI���M�������	�����TE����������������	������	�����������  ��������J��>�E ��������� �U�? ��	���E���	�V�����F���	������	����������	�J������������E������� ��E����������� ����@ ��?�A�����	�	�G���>��������E ���� A����� A�������������� ���W��X����	>��>����������� ������������ ��������� �	� ?�	�?��� �� ��	�G���������>��� ����	�?���W��	�� A���	����� �>���� ������� �������� �� �����>�	�������J����E��	���J��>����� ���M���������? ����� �������>��?������	�?� ���>��>����������������	�	�� ��	��E��	>���	�������������? ���>����J�E �����������M����������������M��������Y���	��E��	>��>��	����? ���>����J�E �������>�	�	E��	N�J������������>��? �� J���O����Z �����������E�������	������  ��������J��>������� �������?��� ��������	���	��E�����? �����	������	���J��>������	��??�� ���������� ��������	���	������������������ ��������� ���� ������[ ��������������? �� J�����������G�������
�����	�����W�J��>������� ������J��>��	������	���?������	��F���� ��� �	��		�? ������� ��������	����� �� ���? �J����J��>���������	�����

\]̂_̀abc�dcefg]hf�i\j�k\dllmknopdmloqrsqot\ldourvdntrtkrwv



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!�����������"���#�	���������	������	�$� %���	�	����� ������������"��� ��&����� �	��������� ���� �� ������"�������� �� &��"����%�$ �������"�	�	$��	'�%������������"��& �� %���(����)$�������& ����� ��&� ������� ���"���#�	���������	������	�$� %��	���"�	�%������������"��$� %�����	���������������#�	������ ��� ��	�	���	������������� �����������������	*�� �����	��$��+���� ������ ��		�� ����& ���"������	������	�	�	����	�����"����& ����� �� $�������&� ���������"��� ����%�����		����"�������� �� &����"��������	������	�$� %���%����$���������� �������"��,-.�	�������/�������	� &��"����%�$ ����������� ������"�����������*�����$�������������& ���"�� �������	�	������"��� ������	��	�%����$��	���� ���� ������� ��&����� �	�� ��"��$� %��	�0�������	�1�������� �� ���� �� &������$���&��/����������	��������	����� ������2��	�%�����	�1�������* ��� ��&����� �	�� ��"���#�	���������	������	��������%"���������������3 ��������������& �� %�����������0�������
�����	�����2�%��"������� ������%��"���� ��		�� ����&������	�������� �������� �	��+���� ��� �	��		�& ��� ��&����� �	�� ��"������	������	�	�	����� ���� �� �������� ��"����	�����4��+���� ����	�������%���	��	����&����� �	������ ���� �� &��� $�$���� 	��& ���"����%�$ �������������	������	�	�	����� ��&����� �	���"�����������������%���	�� ������ ��"���� 5�������%����	����������	�����������$���6������� ����������$���6� ������������+��%���	�7�/�����& ��8�%�9 �����+��%����8 �� ������4���6� :)��;���7�
3:�����3�4����� <�
�
3:�����3�4���=� 9)�>�7��7����>�8�4����� ������7����>�8�4���!� 9)�>�7��7���
�3��)8
�4���4� ������7���
�3��)8
�4�
�6� 9��>+�8<��)+�?�3���)8
��>�8�4�
��� 9��>+�8<��)+�?�3���)8
�
�3��)8
�4�
�=� 9)�>�7���+��8+������
���)7��+����>
�4�
��� �������+��8+������
���)7��+����>
�����@� 9)�>�7��@��A)>��0AB��)�)7�3)8�7)>�3�8��7�0�332�
�8<>��>�8��+��<7������C�� 9)�>�7��@�A��33��>�A���)8����D6� 9)�>�7�3)8�7)>�
3:�����3�+��<7������6��� ��8�>�
3:�+�>�
�=����66!� 3�9>��E�3)8+����
3:�+�>�
�4�

FGHIJKLM�NMOPQGRP�SFT�UFNVVWUXYZNWVY[\][ŶFVNY_\̀ NX̂\̂U\à



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!��"����# �� ������$$��%� &'�(�)��(�*�)�*�(�)''���'+�)��#!�*'#�)'(��(�#�$$���� &'�(�)��(�*�)�*�(��'+�)��#!�*'#�)'(��(�#�$$��,� &'�(�)��(�*�)�*�(�-)'�#!�#-��(�#�$$��.� &'�(�)��(�*�)�*�(�(�-/��#-��#!�)�*����*(���(�#�$$���� -�
�&('+�)
��'+�)��(�#�$$#�%� �)'*�

��#!��#
�)���#����'#�!��-)���0�1�!2�3�&'�(�)�,�$$#��� �1�!�3����#�/����(''������#-�$$#�,� �1�!�3�&'�(�)�
��������
�$$#�.� �1�!�4�!�-�
��)�-�
�&('+�)5�!��"���	�����	����6����� �	�6 ������"�7 �����"����� ���� ����������8��,����������	7���������	��8�����������66 ���6 ���8�	���	9�8���:	��7��������8���	������/ "������������������������ 	��"�	������ �������,������������8���66 ���� ������ ���8��� 	������8��,����������	������	�"�����	��8���66 ���� ����6 �"����� ������ ���8�����"���	��	����6����� �	������� 	�	�6 ���8��;�����������<���������������%�������������������7�������	� ��	�����������������8�	���	9��=����� �� ������ �	����� ����>�������	�6 ���8����"�7 �������� ��8��6��������	� �� 6�!���%,
��������������+ �9�)�	������ �	�����* �	����� ��
�8������?@ABC@DEFA@GH�I�?DEJBKLGM�GN@OBPBOEQBRKGM�EKS�RNBKBRK�RP�NDRFEFA@�ORGQ�PRD�TUV�WX�N@DO@KQY�ZX�N@DO@KQY�[XX�N@DO@KQ�S@GBLK�\BA@GQRK@G]�?DEJBKLGM�GN@OBPBOEQBRKGM�EKS�ORGQ�JBAA�F@�ĜF\BQQEA�BK�@A@OQDRKBO�PRD\EQ�EG�NEDQ�RP�Q_@�OR\FBK@S�G@Q]�I� K̀ORDNRDEQ@�G@A@OQ@S�FRBA@D�S@QEBAG�EKS�S@GBLK�ODBQ@DBE�BKQR�Q_@�abcde�fgh�[ijk�l_@�abcde�fgh�[ij�mbee�nV�ĜF\BQQ@S�BK�@A@OQDRKBO�PRD\EQ�EG�N@D�Q_@�RDBLBKEA�GORN@�RP�JRDo]�pqrs�t�u�vwxqyz�{|}�~���{��zryz���qr��z�z����q��vrz��y�x��!���%.�"�	� ��������������� �����	������ 6��8����%<��!)�6 ��)�3%�(�>��	�1�
 ���	�*��������)�� ������� :����0�#�.��%�1��#�.�����������������8�	�!���"�	�� ����������	������ 6��8���������	� ��� 6�" �9��/ "�����������8�	�	������� �������������������������"�� �����	��8����8���" �����9��� �8������� �� ��������� ��������������	� �� 6��8�	�� �������+ �9�� �7��� �����������8�	���	9�"�������������� �� ��������8��������������"�� �����	���� �!���%.��������		�����8������	���� ������� �������	�!���%.5��!���	����-�	�&���6�������	��
�����?@ABC@DEFA@GH�I��NSEQ@S�abcde�fgh�[���ĜF\BQQ@S�BK�@A@OQDRKBO�PRD\EQ]�

���������������������� ��¡¡¢ £¤¥�¢¡¤¦§̈¦¤©�¡�¤ª§«�£©§© §¬«



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$�%�&�'()!�*+,"-./.0"0.12�"23�413.5.6"0.12#��7�� ��������	� ��� 8�9 �:���������� ����� 8�	���8� ���7������������������;����8���	��������<���������;����8���	������
�� ������;����8���	��� ���9��7�9�	���	�����	�8� ���7��������8���9�	7���������������	����������������  �	����������� ��7����9���=�	�	�����=�>�	�?�������9 ���@����� ���		� ���������@��� ������������� ����� ��	7�����	��7���9 ���� �� �����@������������A�B?��C 9������8��7��������	�	�������	�		� �	�9��7������� ��������8�����7��	����� 8��7���� D����	7 9����7�����7�@������� �� 8�=�>�	�?������������ ��8������7���8 ��	����7��:�������	������ 8��7����=�	�	����� ����� �����	����8������@���8��EF��7��:�������7��	���	������9 ����������7��8� 9�� ����� ��7����=�	�	�����97��7�9 ���������	���7����G�����	�H�� 8��7����=����	������7���		 �������7������������������8 �� ������ �I7����������������� ����7��:������ 8�	�������7��� ����������7��:�����JKLMEN��	�� ����� ����������	���	�		������=���O
��P�	��� ���7�	��8������E���������G�	�����7����7����7�@������� ������� ��8����� �� 8�=�>�	�?�������� ��� �����	����7��:�������	������ 8��7����=�	�	����@����� �� ��������� ��7���� D�����=������7��=�������<������������	���������9����	���	�� ��9�	������� �� �	�����	���� �������� �	���	����� 8�=�>�	�8 ��7���������7��	������� ������������������� �� 8��7�	��������������� ��7�9�	��������� ���97��7�������������7�����7�@������� �� 8�=�>�	�?�������9�	�	������7�����8���������� ��7��
����8���9 �:���G�����8 ���7�	���	:�������	��7��8 �� 9���Q�?��A����9��7���	B@�������9���	�8 ��=�>�	�?�������� ��������������7�������� �� ����	��7��������������7�@������� �����I ��� ��8����� �	��������8 ���R�� ����� ��R		�		��������� ������ ����S����9� 8��7��=�>�EQ�����7����������������� ��8� �������8 ����7�@������� �� 8��7��=�>�E�9�	�� ������		��7�����7�����������	��������� �� ����	� 8��7��	�	���������7����7������������������T;�U��T;V��������	�9 ���� �������� �@�������		����W��7��7�	����� ��7����	������	���9�	�� ������� ���������??��������� ������������7�����7�����������	����������7�@������� �X� ��8����� �	��������� ��7���Y������ 		�@���97�����7��=�>�	�9������� ������ ���Z�� �� ����	 �������	 ��  ���������9��7�������	��88�97���� �	����� �������8�������� �������7��������7����	��7���9 ������� ��� ������ �� 8��7��	�	�����@���7������ ��7��@ ���9�	����������7� �7��7��<������������	����	@���������8����97��7�������� ������������� ���7�����7�@������� �� 8��7��=�>����T;��������	�9 �����	 �@�����������7������	� ��� ��Y������7���88 ���@�� ������7������I	��������	�������8� �������8���@��:�������������7����7�������������9�	�����  ����� ����� ���7��������������7 �7��������7�����	��������� ������� ��� �	�U�T;N�9�	� ������ �����������������7��	@��	:	�@�� 9�9���������������7����T;���7�@������� ������	��������� ������	�8 ���7��=�>�	Q����[���������� ����8 ����7����T;�� ����� ���		�		������������ ������ �������9������=���� ��	������ 8�8������	�������� �������� �	�������A����9���������9��7������	��88�� ������9�8������I��� �������� �	��

\]̂_̀abc�dcefg]hf�i\j�k\dllmknopdmloqrsqot\ldourvdntrtkrwv



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!��"���� ��"���#�
�$�"�		 ���������%� ���� ���&��'�����
�	����(�&�)������� �*�����&� �&��&��!������������	����	)����������	�������������������+�������	�, ���&�����&�����������	����������&�)������� �-� ��,����� �� ,�"�%�	�#��������� ���.��&��������������� ���� �� ,��� )�)���� 	��.��������� ������&�	���, ����� ��.�	���� �� ��������� �"���/
��(�&�)������� ��.�������������� ���� �� ,��0�	�����"�%�����&�������� �� ����	1������������� ,����&�������� �� ����	����'����.��&���.����		� �&��.�	��	�����1������ �������������	��	���������� ��,����� �	����&����&�����2'����������������.����)�������.&�������� �������� ����� ���"�%��	�	���� ������ �� ��� �������1�	�&�� ��,����� �	�.����)��)�	��� �������,� �������	��,,������+����������,���������� �������� �	��	��&����	�����,�,��&�������� �����)��3��&��&��������� ��� �������45���&�)������� �� ,��&��"�%�	���&������	� ��.�	������� ���������&��"�%����&�)������� ����+�������	������	����2�� ���"���#�
�� ��������&�����&������-	��������,������	�������, ����� ������� ����67�� �����) ���.����)�����������,� ��89:�/
�� �"���#�
��%��&��� ����"���#�
�.������������&��, �� .���*����
����&��'�����������������	������	�	�$�% �� .�����&��!����������	)������������.���������+�	������������	�	� ,�	���� �������� �	�)�����, ������	���� ��� ��� ��&����&�)������� �� ,��&��"�%�	���&��,������	������������&�����&�)������� �� ,��&��"�%�	�. ���	�����)���&�����,������ ��� �������"���� �� ,����������������+�������	�, ���&����45��������	� ,��&��"�%�	�� ���� .���&�)������� ������������������ �� ,����� ������	���	����� ������������������������� ���� �� ,��� )�)���� 	���;��(������� �������� ��.��&�����<	�
5�"��������� ���� =���������	 ��&���� ��� ���������� ��� ��������	�������� �� ��������� ��&��
5�"��������	�, ���&��"�%�	��>��"���� ����	�������.���	��	����,����� �	������ ���� �� ,��� )�)���� 	��, ���&����&�)������� ������� ��,����� �	�� �"�%�	�#���������&�����������������.���	�� ������ ��&���� =�������.����	����������	�����������)����������� ����!>��
 ��� ,��&����.����.���	�.�������������������� �� ��������� ��&��!������������	����	���� �'�����&���� =����� ��������)�������������	�.&��&����.���	�.����������������.&��&�	����������� �)������� �������)����� ������������"��.���	�(�+�����, ��(�&�)������� ������� ��,����� �� ,�"�%�	�#�������"��.����? �� ������ "���� ����, ��!����������
���;�"�#� "�%��?@��#��?"�?@��������(��A�?��?"�
�5��@?� B�	�;�"��� "�%��?@��#��?"�?@����A@3�(��A�?��?"�
�5��@?
� B�	�;�"�!� 
@A�"
���?�C���?��D��A"�?C��A�?
��?"�
�5��@?
� B�	�;�
�#� "�%��?@��#��?"����A�?�� ? �;�
��� "�%��?@��#��?"���
�5��@?� ? �;�
�!� "�%��?@��#��?"���
�5��@?
��?"�"����A
� ? �;�
�;� "�%��?@��#��?"���"����A
� ? �;�
�>� "�%��?@��#��?"���"����A
� ? �

EFGHIJKL�MLNOPFQO�RES�TEMUUVTWXYMVUXZ[\ZX]EUMX̂[_MW][]T[̀_



���������	�
����������������������������������	����������������������������

��� �� �� �

!��"����# �� ������ !���� ����$ ��%����������
���&���'� !�(��#)��'��#!�������*��+�#��#!�
�,��)#� -�	�&����� !�(��#)��'��#!���+).�*��+�#��#!�
�,��)#
� -�	�&���%� /0123/���#�4���#��5��+!�#4��+�#��#!�
�,��)#� -�	�&���&� !�(��#)��'��#!���
�,��)#
� # �&���6� !�(��#)��'��#!���
�,��)#
��#!�!����+
� # �&���7� !�(��#)��'��#!���!����+
� # ���!�'� �+�,�*�,�+�!��)��+�#� # �&���'� !�(���*����+�,�*�,�+��+�#� # �&����� �8�
��#4�
�5�5��+!�#4��+�,�*�,�+��+�#� # ������� �*5�5��+!�#4��+�,�*�,�+�*))���+�#� # ����'7� ��
��*�
�#4+��+�#��!��4*���9�'� -�	�&���%� �8�
��#4�
.5!:��
�#4+��+�#��!��4*��� # �&���&� ;<<:&���+�=���)#�!*�.�#4��#!�+)�!�
����*-� # �&���6� ;<<:&��
�#4+��+�#��!*�.�#4� # �&���7� !�(��,)#�*)+�
�#4+��+�#��!*�.�#4�'� # �&���>� !�(��,)#�*)+�
�#4+��+�#��!*�.�#4��� # �&����� !�(���*���
,?�����,
�'� # �&���@� !�(���*���
,?�����,
��� # �&��'�� !�(���*���
,?�����,
�%� # �&��''� !�(���*���
,?�����,
�&� # �4#�@� �#
�*���#����)#�!����+
� # �&�#�'� �A�!�:�!�(���)+-��*�
�)*�4���#!�5+�#!�*
� -�	�&�#��� �A�!�:�!�(���#���'� -�	�&�#�%� �A�!�:�!�(���#����� -�	�&�#�&� �A�!�:��?�,B�#�#4�
,���.�++
��#!�����
� -�	�&�#�6� �A�!�!�(���#���'�
���*���)#���#B��#!�*�,-,+������� # �&�#�7� �A�!�!�(���#�����
���*���)#���#B��#!�*�,-,+������� # ��C��" �D���������� ���$ ���C�	��� E������������������F���	D�&�/G��	D	�'����������%H��F���	���G����G ������������� ������ $��C�����"���	�� ���������G�����$ ���C��%����������	G��������IJKF�" �D���� ���"��C��C�������������������������$$ ���� �� ����������� ������ $��C�	��� E�������������C� �C��C��7�����������@���������������'�������������������G�������	� ��	��KF�������������C�	���	D��

LMNOPQRS�TSUVWMXV�YLZ�[LT\\][̂ _̀T]\_abca_dL\T_ebfT̂dbd[bgf



���������	�
����������������������������������	�������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$%"&'(#")*�+�!&',-�'./�01234�567�89:�);(<$--"/�$.�"#"=-&>.$=�,>&<'-?�+�!&'@$.A)B�CDEF1G1F3H1I2CB�32J�ID121I2�IG�DKIL3L4E�FICH�GIK�HME�NO�P"&=".-B�QO�P"&=".-B�8OO�P"&=".-�/")$A.�<$#")->.")?�RST)�@$##�'#)>�("�/"%"#>P"/�'./�'//"/�->�-U"�)P"=$,$='-$>.)�->�'//&"))�<>/$,$"/�IDEK3H1I2�IG�5VWXC�8�32J�YZ�!"#$%"&'(#"�/>=;<".-)�@$##�("�);(<$--"/�$.�"#"=-&>.$=�,>&<'-?�[\]̂_�]̀�a]bc�deefĝ hi]jek�8Z�0$"#/�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-)�@$##�=>.)$)-�>,�%$);'#�>()"&%'-$>.)�>.#l?�T>�P>@"&�<"-"&�/'-'�=>##"=-$>.m�-")-$.Am�A&>;./�-")-$.Am�>&�%>#-'A"n=;&&".-�<"');&"<".-)�@$##�("�=><P#"-"/?�YZ�o."&A$p"/�"q;$P<".-�@$##�.>-�("�>P"."/�')�P'&-�>,�-U"�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-?�rZ�s-�$)�'));<"/�(l�-U"�/")$A.�'./�"%'#;'-$>.�-"'<�-U'-�);,,$=$".-�"t$)-$.A�)-'./(l�P>@"&�$)�P&>%$/"/�->�-U"�"#"=-&$='#�/$)-&$(;-$>.�)l)-"<�,>&�-U"�!u0v)�8�32J�Y?�w-'./(l�P>@"&�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-�'./�&"=><<"./'-$>.)�'&"�.>-�P'&-�>,�-U"�osxS�'))"))<".-?�yZ�!u0v)�8�32J�Y�"q;$P<".-�@$##�("�&"P#'="/�@$-U�#$z"�z$./�'./�)$p"?�{Z�o#"=-&$='#�/$)-&$(;-$>.�)l)-"<�='P'=$-l�$.=&"')"�/")$A.�$)�.>-�$.=#;/"/�')�P'&-�>,�-U$)�@>&z?�NZ�osxS�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-�/>")�.>-�$.=#;/"�wSu!u�$<P&>%"<".-)m�P&>A&'<<$.Am�>&�&'/$>�P'-U�);&%"l�"%'#;'-$>.?�9Z�S><P#"-"�>&�P'&-$'#�wSu!u�)l)-"<�=l("&)"=;&$-l�'.'#l)$)m�P'-=U$.Am�%"&$,$='-$>.m�'./�%'#$/'-$>.�@$##�.>-�("�P&>%$/"/?�|Z�w"=;&$-lm�,$&"�'#'&<m�#$AU-.$.A�P&>-"=-$>.m�#$AU-$.Am�'./�';/$>}%$);'#�)l)-"<)�'&"�.>-�$.=#;/"/�$.�-U"�=>./$-$>.�'))"))<".-?�QZ�R~S�='($."-�')�(;$#-�/&'@$.A�/"%"#>P<".-�$)�.>-�$.=#;/"/�$.�-U$)�)=>P"�>,�@>&z?�8OZ�!")$A.�@$##�.>-�$.=#;/"�Suv��$.-"&."-�)"&%$="m�-"#"PU>."�)"&%$="�>&�)l)-"<��>&�='-U>/$=�P&>-"=-$>.�)l)-"<)m�'//$-$>.)m�>&�<>/$,$='-$>.)?�88Z�o#"=-&$='#�'./�=>.-&>#�=$&=;$-�@$&$.Am�='(#")m�'./�=>./;$-�->�("�)U>@.�>.�)$.A#"}#$."�'./�=>.-&>#�)$.A#"}#$."�/$'A&'<)?��������������������������������������������� ��������	� ��� ��� ���������������������������� ���� �� ��������������		����������� ������������� �����������	����� �������� �������������	������	� ��������������	���� ��� ��������������	����� ��������� �������������� ��� ����	���� ���� ��������������� ����� �� ������������ ����	��������	����������� ������ �	���	�������	������	������������ ������������������	�����������	�������������������� ���� �� ��������������		���������� ��������� ������������������ ���������� �������	�	������	�� ���	� ��������� ���� ��	���������������� ������ ��������������	�������	��	����	�������������������������� ��� ���� ���������	�� ���� �� ����¡� ���� �������������¢ �� ������ ����� ����� �������������
���£����� ��¤��� �

����¤��¢¥����¦¤���¦¢� §�	����������� �����	���� ���� ��	����������������������� ������� ��������		������ ��������������� ������ ������ ������ ������������������	����	������

©̈ª«¬®̄�°̄±²³©́²�µ̈¶�·̈ °̧ ¹̧·º»¼°¹̧»½¾¿½»À̈ °̧»Á¾Â°ºÀ¾À·¾ÃÂ



���������	�
����������������������������������	��������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$�%�&�'()*+",�*-�./�$0�1,(23452",�675,859:��;�� ��������	� ��� <�= �>����������� ���������=����>?������������	���������������=������������@�������� �	������ =���� ��;����=�<��������	�����;�	��� A�����B =�������������=� <��;���C�	�����D�E���������������<��	�������� ������������������ ������ <�F�����
����������������	��������� ������G ��� ���	; =����;����;���C�	������ =���D����@������H�������I�DHJ�KLM�	<<�������������@������������� �������;�	������	���������������;����;��������@����������������<��������	�����;���DH�� ���@����� ������� ��;�	��� A������������������;�������< ��L���=�	�����������L���=������������@���������;���< �����;��	� ��� <�= �>�=����@��� ��<����� ���� ����;�������������@�������<� ���;����	�����������������=����@���		���� ��;���� A����� ���<������;��������������� <��<< �����;�����=���	�� ���� ���<� ���;���� A�������=����	����������	�����������@���NO���� ���� <��P����@���N� D�� ���� <����Q?������������H�������R�F��=���	�� �@��D�� ����S� ���;���� A����F��=����T �� ������U�?��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�W�T�D��XD�DXX��YF���D
��G��?��U�
��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����SX�TF���XT��V�T�U�
��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����DXXS�SD���TW��V�T�U�
�Y� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����
�G��XT���U�
�N� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����
�G��XT���U����� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�W�T�D��XD�DXX���V�T�U����� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�W�T�D��XD�DXX��
�G��XT��TF�F����V
�E���U�B��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX������D�SVXZ�F��WD���U�B��� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�TX����SVXXD��V�T�U�B�Y� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�B?�G�U�B�N� �V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�B?�G����[�� ���Q?�
�G��XT�V�\�TW�
Z��GBW��D�T�Z��V�?���XT����[�� ���Q?�
Z��GBW��D�IT�ZJ��V�?���XT�U����� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW��XZ�D��TF�GXT�DXV��V�T�E���U���Y� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�V�]X����XZ�D��TF�GXT�DXV��V�T�E���U���N� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�V�]X���V�WB��TW��V�T�U���[� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�V�]X���WDX�TF�TW��V�T�U���U� ���T��V�G�D�G�V�H��VF�TW�
��G��V�
]
���
��V�T�D�� ���� <��;�������������@�������<� ���;���� A��������� �������������;����=������������;���=�����������< ���;����=�DF��������F�	�	���	O��;�	��= ���� =�@��; 	�������;�����������������;����=��;��>�����H����������;�	�����		�������������	�����;��	�̂�� <��;��������������  ������;���;��>������H��������	�=�����	��;��@���������	��<����;�������������������;���=������������	���@�������	�̂����	 �������	����;���������������� ����C���� <��;��@��������  �������_�������	���� ����_��������	����< ���;���C��������  ���������	� <��;���;��>�����H�������������� ����B?�G�	;���	�=����@���������< ���;���� A�������;�	���������	�����������@���[O���� ���� <�P����=���	�� �@���������

àbcdefg�hgijkalj�m̀n�ò hppqorsthqpsuvwusx̀ phsyvzhrxvxov{z



���������	�
����������������������������������	��������������������������������

���� �� �� �

���!���"� ������ ����#$�%�&��'���	�(�)�����* ��+�'��,��-�����.�������&��'����+ �� ������/0#��� #$�%��1�+�/0#��� #$�%�(223��1�+�/0#�0� ��(3124�&��5(��
�/0#�/� #$�%�
�%��2+
�/0#�"� #$�%�&����1
�/0#�6� #$�%�
%#�&�1�
�/0#�7� #$�%�%2+�(21
�/0+�0� #$�%��8�&�.�	��� ���,���9����'���	�� �!����� ����*� ���,�����'����	���* ���,�����-$������������!������������,��9�#$�%����'���	�� �!��������* ���,����'��,��-�����.���������������������'����!���� ������� ��,���� :����* ����������������'���	��;<=>�?�@�ABCD=EBFG�HFGEIFJ�KEI<EDCBD=��,�� ��������	� ��� *�' �-�����L�* ������� ������%+	�* ���,����'�	�	���	�����,�	��� :����� ������������,���,���M�,�	������	�� ���� ��		���� ��,�� �������(�M��	�	�����# '�����������,�	�	�������,����,������	����	�	����'������	 ������� ���������,������!������� � �������NL�N�	�����M�,�	���� ��		�������OL���	 ����������� ���������,��	��������
%�&��������� ���� :�����',��,�� ����**���� ���,�����	 ��� *��,���P�	���������	����	�	����� ��� �	��� �������Q��� ��������� ��� ��� ���������		�	�!��'�����,�	��� :���������,��
%�&��������� ���� :�����',������ ��������,�� ���������*��P�!��������	�����������,�	���)�	�����,���%�� �� �����	���,���%+�* ���,���P�	���������	����	�	�����*�����,���,����	�*� ���,��
%�&��������� ���� :��������� ��������	 ��,����,��������,�	��,������!������� � �������������,���	�����M�,�	�� ���,���M�,�	������	�� ��� ��L��� ��,�	�������,��* �� '����'����!�����* ���������,�	���	-R�S�(���	���,���%+�* ���,���P�	���������	����	�	������	��������� �����,���,����	�*� ���,��
%�&��������� ���� :��������� ��������,���'������� '�	�����M�,�	�� ������ ���	���� ��� ��� ��,���M�,�	�� ������ ���S�% �������� �	�P������'��������L�'��,������� ������'������ ������ ���,���%+	���,��������� *��,�	�������� �����������	��	�� ��  ��������'��,�������8%�����������	��**�	 ��,���� �	��		�����!������� ���� ������* ���� ��� ��	���������������, � � ����,�������!��������������� ���� '������� ������ ��������,����,���M�,�	�� ��	�����M�,�	������	�� ��� ����TUVWXUYZ[VU\]�S� ÛXW\U_�̀ab�cdY�efU�UgW\eWhi�_WiU\eUY�\j\eUk�lWVV�[U�WhmVn_U_�Wh�efU�cWhZV�_U\Wih�\oUmWcWmZeWdh\p�

qrstuvwx�yxz{|r}{�~q���qy�������y���������q�y����y��������



���������	�
����������������������������������	��������������������������������

���� �� �� �

!"#$%�#&�'#()�*++,-$./#0+1�23�456��789�:;<�=56�6>?@=?AB�C?B6@=6<�@D@=6E�F?GG�H6�<6I?@6CJ�K@@LE?AB�=5K=�E;C?:?MK=?;A@�=;�KGG;F�@?ABG6NO5K@6�C?B6@=?;A�;O6<K=?;A�MKA�H6�?EOG6E6A=6C�=5<;LB5�O<;B<KEE?AB�;<�@;:=FK<6�M;A=<;G�M5KAB6@P�85KAB6@�=5K=�<6QL?<6�=56�E;C?:?MK=?;A�;:�6>?@=?AB�5K<CFK<6R?A@=<LE6A=K=?;A�;<�KCC?=?;A�;:�A6F�5K<CFK<6R?A@=<LE6A=K=?;A�K<6�A;=�?AMGLC6C�?A�=5?@�@M;O6�;:�F;<SP�TUVW�X�Y�Z[\U]̂�_̀Za�aVV̂]�b̂cdV]̂e��f�� ��������	� ��� g�h �i������ ������������������f��������		���j���	������	� ������	��������h�	��f���k����h ���l��g ����f�	������������������ �����f����	�����	�� ��������m h�����������f�	�	�������n�	�����f����f�	�o��������� ��f���� p���������	�� ���� �� �������� ��f���		�������	�������������h����f��������n�������q� � ��r�������������������������������� ���������� �������s����h�������������n�������q�tt	��	h���f����������	g ����	s��	�h�����	���h���	��������� ������� ��� ��f���h����g ���f��g �� h����	�	���	u�v�w�x�	���������������������	�� ���	�	���	��v���w�������������	�� ���	�	���	��v��������	�	��oo����	�	�����v�jw��	�	����������������	�� ���	�	���	��v�y�h�z ����������������������	�� ���	�	���	��v�y�h�{� ��t ��� ��
�	�����v�w���	����y ����qg ��� �� ����	��gg������o���f�	��� p���|��v���������t����g����}�
��������	�qg ��� �� ����	��gg������o���f�	��� p���|��v�
�� ������t����g����
�������~�	�������������
��������	�qg ��� �� ����	��gg������o���f�	��� p���|���6G?I6<KHG6@��v��OCK=6C�������@@6=��6B?@=6<�:;<�������7N2�������=D�?A�����>M6G�:;<EK=P�TUVW���Y�a�d\��dĉV]̂e��UV���e���d�c�̀�U��U]d����f�� ��������	� ��� g�h �i����������f����	���� g��� ��	� ���	�� �� ����� ���f������	������	�����������g� ���f����h���w�	�	����	 ��f����f����f��� ����� ������	�� ���o��� �������� ��f�����	�����j����g�����	�	������f����������h �i�� ���g ���f�	��� p������������� �	�	���� g���������	�	� g��� ��	� ����������	����f��� ����	�g����� ��������� �������g� ��j����� �� �g�����f����f����������g��h ���o���������o����m h�������f��g������	�	���	��������������g��	f ������f��������������������������h��f�������������������������������	�� ����������o�������������
o	�n������	�		� �	�h��f������������ ��f����� �������� ��� �����	������� �f��� ��� �	�������������f� � �������� �g������ �������������	���f��h �i�� ���� ���f�	���	i�������	��f��g �� h���u�v�t  ������� ��h��f��n����������g������	�� ��������������f� � ��� ��� �	��v�w���� ��������������� �g������ �� ��� �	�	���o���g ��j����g �����������f� � ���	�q�� ��	� �������	��������������������� �g������ �	����������������
�g������������s�����o� � ����������������	�	���	����	 ������ ��������������������������������������������� 	����g ����� ��g �����f�������������� ���� h�� �����	 ���

� ¡¢£¤¥¦�§¦̈©ª «©�¬��®�§̄ °̄®±²³§°̄²́µ¶́²·�̄ §²̧µ¹§±·µ·®µº¹



���������	�
����������������������������������	���������������������������� ���

����!��!��!�

"�#!�����$�%!�&	'!��%��'�������!������%��'��(������	����������!���!�	��		�!��$����!�����������'�!�!��������!�(������!���!��!���(!�%����%��'�����'����!)������	�����"�����������������'������!�*���+
��!��!�������'���!�����	!��!(����������	������	����'�!�!���	��	������!��!(��'�����(����������!��'��������	�����������������,������!	���	�������(!���'��	��������	�	������-./012��'��������!������%�(��������	��'�������,������������!��'����!)������	���,����,!����	�'��	��'����%�,!�����	�	����������'�,�������!��!(�*�3�	���������������4��������!���������!4��������5���6������!���!��'����!)�����!�	�����!���!	���7��'�����	����������(���!(�588�� + ��!��!��������'���		!�������%!�&����	����������'����	&	���	���,���$,!������	������!(��'��,�����,����	&��	����	�����������,���6�����������������,���&�!%��!(���	&	�%��'�������������������!(��((!��������!	���	�������������4'�,������9������������	�	'!%�������,���6��������������	�%'����	�!���%�	������������,���6� ����������:�����
������,����	&���	&� :�������!�����;�
���		���	��
��!������������������!��		��!�#!�(����#������<�=��#�������� 5>>���+���;�9�%�:!�����(!��*���	����?�������
�	���� 5�+8�@@�� �;��������*����@��*���	����A�	�:���(�������	��
���� 5���8B��@�;�*�3��<�'�,�������!�������!��(�����!�	� 5@> ��>��B�;�#'����	��!�*��!����!��*��%���	� 5C8�@6>D�6�;�<��!����!(���=&E������������:������� 5C>6�� 6D�>�;�*���	��!��#!���!��
��������	� 5B8�B>B�8�;��������������		���<���	���� 5� �8++�+�;������*���	����A�	�
��,,�����������!�� 5 ��8B@�FGHIJ�KLMNOLMNH�PGQ�R� STTUVRWR�7��������������'��!��!��������!�,��!(�(��'���	��������!��!����������(!���'�	����!��������!)�����
'!����!���X��������������!������(!�����!��!��'��������X�	��!�	������	������	�&�!%��
�����������#�<YZZY��9A�9��<
���9#����A��'�����A���,����'�*�������� <�)�	'�*!����������������:#������������=��=#'����� ��!)�������������A��[<:*\,��������!	��	\��4'�,�����

]̂ _̀abcd�edfgĥig�j]k�l]emmnlopqenmprstrpu]mepvsweousulsxw



�������� �����	
������� ������
�� �������� �
������ ��������� �
������������
� ��������� ����� ������ ��� �� �� ����
� �!�
��
�  ������������� ������
�� �������� �
������ ��������� �
������������
� ��������� ����� ������ ����!�
��
� " ������� "� ������� ���#
$%�������
 &
��
�� �����
������
� ��������
 '�
�����
����%������� �������()*+, -.// -012 -032 -311 -3.. -331 3.4//-����� -./2 -01. -035 -3.1 -3.6 -3357 ���
����
����
�����8�������
������ ����8� ���
���9�:7� �����$;<; =>?@�ABCDEFCG@ ; H ;I JH K ; LH M;KN;KH MIOI PM�������� M;KNOOQ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7STUUVWXDCB ; ; Y Q K ; ;L MHNZOI M;ZL PM�������� MJN;O; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[T7U7;<H AF>P=>?@�\]]F̂XDC@X]D�_>>@XD̀ H H H H K K Q M;NZJZ M;KY PM�������� MHNKYJ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RaTSb[;<J cX@>�dX?X@?�eJf K JH JH Q K K OH M;ON;QY MZJI IKKM������� M;QNOHK K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7VTUaS;<Y E>g>B]h�iX]jXD�_]̂>BkDCBl?X?�]G�c@F>??�=>?@�EC@C K H Y ;I K K HH MYNHLY MHQI PM�������� MYNLYK K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RbTmbS_]̂>B�\CBXnFC@X]D�CD̂�E>g>B]ho>D@ H H JH HY K K IK M;HNJHO MOQK PM�������� M;JN;KO K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7[T7SU;<L p?@XoC@>�=XoXD̀�G]F�_iq�\]Dg>F?X]D�iC?>̂�]D�_]̂>B�q>?rB@?E>@>FoXD>�qAP;�=F>C@o>D@�\ChCsX@l�iC?>̂�]D�_]̂>B� Y Q H H K K ;I MYN;ZO MHKQ PM�������� MYNYKL K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RbTbSmE>g>B]h�=Xo>BXD>�G]F�_iq�E>?X̀Dt\]D?@Frs@X]D H Y Y K K K ;K MHNLOK M;JK PM�������� MHNOKK K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RaTUSS;<I c@F>??�=>?@�CD̂�qAP;�\ChCsX@l�q>h]F@EFCG@ H ;I Y JI H Y IY M;JNKKH MQJH PM�������� M;JNQJY K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7[TV[bWXDCB ; Y H Q K H ;O MJNYZK MHH; PM�������� MJNO;; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[TU77a �
u�"��
������	�
��
��v
������$��
8H<; E>@CXB>̂�kDCBl?X?�]G�i]XB>F�cl?@>o�w?XD̀�wĥC@>̂�ABCD@�EC@C K H Q Q K K ;Q MJNOK; MHJY PM�������� MJNZJL K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[Tx[mH<H q>gX>y�epf�zC?�CD̂�{]@�jC@>F�cl?@>o?�CD̂�k|_E�q>}rXF>o>D@? K H ;Y K K K ;I MJNLQ; MHKQ PM�������� MJNOQZ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[TUVxH<J ~n@CXDtq>gX>y�\rFF>D@�EX̀>?@>F�zC?�EC@C�CD̂�d>D̂]F�\]]F̂XDC@X]D K K Q K K K Q M;NOJK M;KY PM�������� M;NQJY K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TV[bH<Y e�f�i]XB>F�cX@XD̀cX@>�dX?X@ K K ;I K K K ;I MJNYIK MHKQ IKKM������� MYNHIQ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RbTa�VAF>BXoXDCFl��Cl]r@?�CD̂�\]?@? K Q YY K K K LH M;;NOHO MIOI PM�������� M;HNYKJ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7aTbS[\]]F̂XDC@X]D�_>>@XD̀�G]F�AF>G>FF>̂�cX@> J I H; Q K K JQ MQNL;O MYZY PM�������� MZNK;; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RxTS77H<L pgCBrC@>�epf�Ez�iB]y>F�cl?@>o~n@CXDtq>gX>y��DG]�G]F�epf�Ez�iB]y>F? K K Q K K K Q M;NOJK M;KY PM�������� M;NQJY K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TV[bE>g>B]h�AF]s>??�_]̂>B�G]F�Ez�cl?@>o H Y ;I HY K K YI MZNY;Z MLZQ PM�������� M;KNK;O K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7STS7Uq>gX>y�_>>@XD̀�@]�EX?sr??�WXD̂XD̀?�CD̂�q>s]oo>D̂>̂�_]̂XGXsC@X]D? H H H H K K Q M;NZJZ M;KY PM�������� MHNKYJ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RaTSb[H<I EFCyXD̀?N�ch>sXGXsC@X]D?N�CD̂�~hXDX]D�]G�\]?@EFCyXD̀?c@Frs@rFCB Q ;I JH IY QK ;H H;H MJON;HJ MHNOLI PM�������� MJZNQOZ K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R[xTVUx_>s�CDXsCB ;Q JK IK ;HK ;LK ;Q JZI MIZNZOQ MLN;YQ PM�������� MOLN;HI K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK RUmT7a�pB>s@FXsCB K K K K K K K MK MK PM�������� MK K ;L LK ;HK ;J; K J;I MYZNJIJ MK MYZNJIJ MHNYIQ Rm7TV[7�D?@Fro>D@C@X]D�CD̂�\]D@F]B? K K K K K K K MK MK PM�������� MK K K IH K ;J; K ;ZJ MJ;NYKQ MK MJ;NYKQ M;NLOK R[aTxUVch>sXGXsC@X]D? K Q ;I HY JH K QK M;YN;OZ M;NKYK PM�������� M;LNH;Z K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7mTa7xcrnoX@@CB�AF>hCFC@X]DIKPA>Fs>D@ K K K K K Q Q MZJO M;KY PM�������� M;NKY; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TSb7ZKPA>Fs>D@ K K K K K Q Q MZJO M;KY PM�������� M;NKY; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TSb7;KKPA>Fs>D@� K K K K K Q Q MZJO M;KY PM�������� M;NKY; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TSb7iX̂�c>@ K K K K K Q Q MZJO M;KY PM�������� M;NKY; K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7TSb7~hXDX]D�]G�\]?@�eIK�N�ZK�N�;KK�f ; Y Q ;H K H HO MLNYZO MJL; PM�������� MLNQYQ K K ;L K K K ;L MJNHHL MK MJNHHL M;I; RxTa[b|kt|\�\�>s��eG]F�CBB�E>BXg>FCnB>?f HY HY K K K K YQ M;JNQHL MIHY PM�������� M;YNYYZ HK K K K K K HK MIN;HK MK MIN;HK MJKI RaSTVUm[ �����
�	���7bT�	�
��
��&���"
�
�������
�����$J<; wĥC@>�E�_�;YN�EX̀>?@>F�zC?�i>D>GXsXCB�w?>�c@r̂l H Y HY ;I K Y LK M;KNHKK MILK PM�������� M;KNQLK K K K K K K K MK MK MK MK R7STVmS

��v�"����9�:7�����������
��������
�����aaSbb7U:���:aa��������8��
�����
����
��$ ������ "��u������ ���u
�� ���
����������������
'

����8��
�:��8
��8
�������[ �����������

��T�����

����������������������������������� ��¡¢£¤¥¦¡¢�§��̈����©ª�������������©«��¬§¡�®���̄��§��̈����°�±¤¤¢££²�����̄�����±�³�́��µ��³¶��¶·̧�¹º����̄�����́»¼¡½¤¤ ¼�¤¢�¤¢¤¤�¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅ�ÆÅÇÈÉ¿ÊÈ�Ë¾
Ì�Í¾ÆÎÎÏÍÐÑÒÆÏÎÑÓÔÕ

ÓÑÖ¾ÎÆÑ×ÔØÆÐÖÔÖÍÔÙ
Ø



�������� �����	
������� ������
�� �������� �
������ ��������� �
������������
� ��������� ����� ������ ��� �� �� ����
� �!�
��
�  ������������� ������
�� �������� �
������ ��������� �
������������
� ��������� ����� ������ ����!�
��
� " ������� "� ������� ���#
$%�������
 &
��
�� �����
������
� ��������
 '�
�����
����%������� �������()*+, -.// -012 -032 -311 -3.. -331 3.4//-����� -./2 -01. -035 -3.1 -3.6 -335
�789"9���:�;<�����������
��������
�����==>??<@;A��;==9�������B��
�C���
����
��$ ������ "��D������ ���D
�� E��
����������������

'

����B��
�;��B
��B
�������F �����������

��G�9���
? 	�'��:
������������������������HIJ KLMNLO�KLPQRS�TRUONVWX Y Y JZ Z Y Y [[ \H]̂[H \[_Z `\�������� \H]_JY Y Y H Y Y Y H \_ZY \Y \_ZY \Ha bcG@<FHI[ dQVSePf�gNfL�hNXNf�iQR�dQVSNfNQV�jXXLXXkLVf�UVS�lmLRUfNQVUn�KLMNLOgNfL�hNXNf�UVS�dQQRSNVUfNQVoLPpUVNPUn�UVS�gfRePfeRUn Y Z JY Z Y Y [[ \H]__̂ \[_Z ZYY\������� \̂]qqJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bcG@@<rstd Y _ _ Y Y Y JZ \a]uHJ \[Y_ ZYY\������� \H]qHu Y Y JZ Y Y Y JZ \a]HHY \J]̂YY \H]uHY \[Hq bvGvFwgekkURx�TQPekLVfNVW�yNVSNVWX�UVS�KLPQkkLVSUfNQVX Y H _ Y Y Y J[ \[]_aZ \ĴZ `\�������� \[]uu[ Y Y JZ Y Y Y JZ \a]HHY \Y \a]HHY \Jq[ bwGw>?KLMNLO�oLLfNVW�iQR�yNVSNVWX�UVS�KLPQkkLVSUfNQVX [ Z Z [ Y Y JZ \a]uJY \[Y_ `\�������� \H]JJ_ Y Y _ Y Y Y _ \J]q[Y \Y \J]q[Y \_Z bcGv=?HIa Tso�Jqg�̀�Tjyz�KLpU{NnNfUfNQVgPek�zpNP|LVNVW�jnfLRVUfNMLX�jVUnxXNX Y _ [Y Y Y Y [_ \Z]̂aq \aZH `\�������� \Z]uYJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bwGv><TLMLnQm�dRNfLRNU�UVS��KL}eNRLkLVfX Y Z _ H Y Y J_ \H]Yu_ \[aH `\�������� \H]aa[ Y Y Y _ Y Y _ \J]YuZ \Y \J]YuZ \̂^ bcG?~=lmNVNQV�Qi��RQ{U{nL�dQXf Y [ _ J Y Y JJ \[]HZY \JHa `\�������� \[]ZYa Y Y Y _ Y Y _ \J]YuZ \Y \J]YuZ \̂^ bFG@c?TRUif�Tso [ _ J[ J[ Y H a_ \_]YYJ \HuH `\�������� \_]Hû Y Y Y [H Y Y [H \a][__ \Y \a][__ \JZH b<<Gv?~yNVUn�Tso [ H _ [ Y [ J_ \H]Y[H \[aH `\�������� \H][̂_ Y Y Y H Y Y H \̂H_ \Y \̂H_ \[q b?G~FFHIH TRUONVWX]�gmLPNiNPUfNQVX]�UVS�lmNVNQV�Qi�dQXfTRUONVWX��aY��ge{kNffUn�TLkQnNfNQV Y Y J[ Y _ Y [Y \a]Ẑu \[ZY `\�������� \a]uJu Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bFGv<vgfRePfeRUn Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y `\�������� \Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b>oLPpUVNPUn Y [ aH Y [Y Y Ẑ \JY]̂Ẑ \q[_ `\�������� \JJ][ua Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<<G=vFsVXfRekLVfUfNQV�UVS�dQVfRQnX Y [ JZ Y Y Y J_ \H]YJa \[aH `\�������� \H][Hq Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b?G=?@TRUONVWX���LxQVS�aY��TLkQnNfNQV Z Ĵ Ĵ Ĥ _̂ Z ĴH \[q]Jq[ \[]YY[ `\�������� \[u]JqH Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b=vG<@?gfRePfeRUn Y Y _Y _Y J[Y Y [_Y \Hq]Haa \a]ZHY `\�������� \̂J]Yqa Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bc<G>@FoLPpUVNPUn J_ [_ Ĥ JYJ JJY J_ a[u \̂u]HHa \H][qq `\�������� \Za]q[Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bwFG@=>rnLPfRNPUn Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y `\�������� \Y [Y [Y Jâ ĴZ J[̂ _ HZH \_Y]JHq \q̂Y \_Y]_uq \H]YĤ b~?Gv?=sVXfRekLVfUfNQV�UVS�dQVfRQnX H H JZ [[ a[ H _[ \JH]a_Z \J]YZZ `\�������� \Ĵ]Ĥ[ Y Y JHY Y J[̂ JY [q̂ \H_]̂YY \q̂Y \Hu][̂Y \[]HZa bw@G<w?gmLPNiNPUfNQVX Y _ JZ [H a[ Y _Y \JH]Jqu \J]YHY `\�������� \Ĵ][Ju Y Y Ẑ Y Y Y Ẑ \J[]YHY \Y \J[]YHY \ZY[ b=@G~w<ge{kNffUn��RLmURUfNQVZỲ�LRPLVf Y Y Y Y Y _ _ \uaq \JYH `\�������� \J]YHJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<G>?<uỲ�LRPLVf Y Y Y Y Y _ _ \uaq \JYH `\�������� \J]YHJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<G>?<JYỲ�LRPLVf� Y Y Y Y Y _ _ \uaq \JYH `\�������� \J]YHJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<G>?<�NS�gLf Y Y Y Y Y _ _ \uaq \JYH `\�������� \J]YHJ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<G>?<lmNVNQV�Qi�dQXf��ZY�]�uY�]�JYY�� J Z J[ J[ Y H â \q]JHu \Ĥ^ `\�������� \q]ZYH Y Y Y HY Y Y HY \̂]H_Y \Y \̂]H_Y \[qH b<FGFc~�j��d�dpLP|��iQR�Unn�TLnNMLRU{nLX� â â Y Y Y Y qY \[Y]JZJ \uJY `\�������� \[J]YqJ qZ Y Y Y Y Y qZ \[a][̂Z \Y \[a][̂Z \J]JZa b?cG?v>c  ����
�����	
B������	��D���ÎJ �Lf�dRLSNf�iQR�TLkQ�TRUONVWX�KLkQMLS�yRQk��RQ�LPfTLkQ�TRUONVW�TLMLnQmkLVf�fpRQeWp�aY��TLXNWV Y Y [ _ H Y JH \[]a_[ \J_[ `\�������� \[]̂ZH Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b=Gcw?yenn�dQXf�iQR�TLkQ�TRUONVWX�fQ�TLnLfL��yenn�dRLSNf�jkQeVf� [̀ `̂ ù J̀_ [̀[ [̀ `̂_ �\JY][qq� �\q̂H� `\�������� �\JJ]YaJ� Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y �b<<G>F<�w :
B�#������<=������
�������"�����ZIJ dRLSNf�iQR�TRUONVWX�KLkQMLS�yRQk��RQ�LPf Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y `\�������� \Y [̀̂ `̂Y J̀̂Y [̀YY [̀̂Y J̀[̂ _̀YY �\J[u]_[̂� �\Jq̂��\JaY]YYY� �\Z]̂YY� �b<FwGc>>�ZIJ jSSNfNQVUn�gpLLfX�yQR�oQRL�dQkmnL��KTz��eNnSNVW��hjd Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y `\�������� \Y JY [̂ Ẑ _̂ JJY ZY Y \̂q]̂_̂ \Y \̂q]̂_̂ \[]_qu bw>G?w?@ 	�
����� ������������
�
�qIJ KLMNXL��d��iQR�r�NXfNVW�TNWLXfLRX _ [H [_ HY [H Y J[H \[̂]aZZ \J]ZJ[ `\�������� \[Z]uq_ [ H ^ Y Y Y JJ \[]qqu \Y \[]qqu \Jau b=vG~vwqI[ KLMNLO�oLLfNVWX��Z�kLLfNVWX� J[ [H H[ [H Y Y JY[ \[a]̂Zq \J]a[Z `\�������� \[H]_ua H H Z Y Y Y JH \a]ZYZ \Y \a]ZYZ \J_Y b=~Gw@v~ C����
�9�C�����
��:
���
�_IJ �mSUfL�jXXLf�KLWNXfLR Y [ JZ H_ Y H qY \J[]u_u \uJY `\�������� \Ja]_uu Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b<FG~vvv ����	�
��
��&�������������#�������uIJ dQQRSNVUfL�ONfp�r}eNmkLVf�oUVeiUPfeRLRX Y H _ [H Y Y aZ \q]YuY \HZ_ `\�������� \q]̂̂ _ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b@Gcc~uI[ TLMLnQm�zLPpVQnQWx�lmfNQVX Y H J[ [H Y Y HY \q]û^ \̂[Y `\�������� \_]Hq̂ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b~G?@cuIa dQVSePf��QR|XpQm��NVPnI��RLm�UVS�yQnnQO�em� a Z JJ Ja Y Y aa \q][HY \H[u `\�������� \q]ZZu Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y b@GwwvuIH �RLmURL�Tso�ug�jffUPpkLVf�iQR�gLnLPfLS�zLPpVQnQWx�UVS�jmmRQUPp [ _ JZ J[ Y [ HY \_]Za[ \̂[Y `\�������� \u]Ĵ[ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y \Y \Y \Y \Y bvG<c=����� <w~ ?>= ~w? v<c wc> <c> FG<?v w<?G?cvb��� ?>GvF@b��� =G?>>b���� wc@G@vwb��� <>@ <~ ?=~ =?c F@= ;?@ @w~ =>vG<@=b�� =G~=cb����� =<<Gvv@b�� <>Gw>>b��� b> b> b> b> b> ~~>GFvFb���
������������������������� �����¡�¢£¤¡�¥¦§̈©ª¥¦�«��¬����®������������£̄ ��°«±¥�²�� ³��«��¬����́£µ̈ ¦̈§§¶�¡���³�����µ�·�̧��¹��·º��º»¼�½¾¡���³�����̧¿À±¥Á±̈̈ À�̈¦�̈¦̈ �̈ÂÃÄÅÆÇÈÉ�ÊÉËÌÍÃÎÌ�ÏÂ

Ð�ÑÂÊÒÒÓÑÔÕÖÊÓÒÕ×ØÙ
×ÕÚÂÒÊÕÛØÜÊÔÚØÚÑØÝ

Ü



      
CONSENT 

    CALENDAR 
ITEM 

1G 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

RMPU Project Construction Contract Change Order Ratification

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract for the Project No.
RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $15,480,880 for the construction of
the Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main groundwater recharge improvements. The project will yield
approximately 2,921 acre-feet per year (AFY) of captured storm water and 2,905 AFY of
recycled water for groundwater recharge. As part of the Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU),
Chino Basin Watermaster is fully funding the stormwater improvements with available SRF
loans and nearly $9.0 million in grants. During construction, MNR potholed the path of the new
30-inch force main pipeline on Jurupa Road and identified buried utilities not shown on the
construction plans. These additional utilities required revisions to the bid documents to avoid
conflicts. The changes resulted in added cost of materials and labor above MNR's bid price.
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) is requesting ratification of the change order in the
amount of $188,188.27 with MNR for the additional material cost for manufacturing the pipe to
meet the revised alignment and avoid utility conflicts. Currently, IEUA is still in negotiation
with MNR on the final price to implement the revised plans. Due to material availability
concerns and to reduce delay on the project, IEUA is requesting ratification of the change order
on just the 30-inch pipeline. This is a 1.2% increase to MNR’s contract.

1. Ratify the change order for the construction contract for the Wineville, Jurupa, Force Main,
Project No. RW15003.06, to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $188,188.27.

RW15003.06/Wineville, Jurupa, Force Main

None.

1000 10300 126100 4235000 RW15003

07/13/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RMPU Project is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Water Reliability specifically
the Groundwater Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in
the region through strategic, cost-effective partnerships, and development.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract for the Project No.
RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $15,480,880.

On June 21, 2017, the Board of Directors awarded consulting engineering services for all RMPU
projects under RW15003.00, to Carollo Engineers, Inc. for the not-to-exceed amount of
$1,510,628.

The RMPU Project was under a comprehensive Program Environmental Impact Report which
the Board adopted as complete on March 15, 2017. Within this report specific mitigation
measures are a part of the Project that will be implemented under the attached Mitigation
Measures and Reporting Program (MMRP).

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)



 
 

Attachment 1 



Recharge Master Plan Update Project 
Change Order Ratification

Joel Ignacio, PE 
Senior Engineer 

July 20, 2022



2

Project Location

Basin Projects Additional Recharge Goal

Stormwater Recycled Water
San Sevaine Basin 642 4,100
Lower Day Basin 993 -
Victoria Basin 75 120
Montclair Basins 96 -

Wineville, Jurupa, RP3 Basins 2,921 2,905

Total: 4,727 7,125



3

Project Background/Scope

Installation of a 
stormwater force main 
system (pump station)

New Recharge Facility 

Increase stormwater diversion

Added recharge basin

Project Benefit:
• Increase stormwater recharge to 2,921 acre-feet per year
• Increased recycled water 2,905 acre-feet per year (with RP-3)



4

Change of Conditions

• Initial plans (Bid Documents) 
—Design documented approximately 

44 buried utilities
• Constructor’s field investigation

—Identified 89 buried utilities
• Immediate changes made to bid sheets

—Designer updated pipeline 
alignment

—Revised 17 sheets of the 
construction plans

• Impacts
—Additional material cost on 

manufacturing pipe (this action)
—Changes in laying the pipe 

(pending negotiation on final cost 
~$2.5M)

Revised Construction Plan (1 of 17)

Initial Construction Plan (1 of 17)

Additional 
utilities/relocate new 

deeper



5

Project Budget

Description Cost

Design Services (Actuals) $1,960,940 

Preliminary Design Contract $269,300 
Design Contract $1,500,000 
Environmental/Permits/Bid/Admin $191,640 
Construction Services (Projected/actuals) $1,231,044 

Design Consultant Construction Services (projected/actual) $397,977 
IEUA Construction Services (projected) $833,067 
Construction (Projected/Actuals) $17,028,968 
Construction Contract (MNR’s Contract) $15,480,880 
Ratification on Additional Pipe Material for Revised Pipe Alignment (this action) $188,189 
Remaining Contingencies $1,359,900 

Total Project Cost (for RW15003.06): $20,220,952 

Total Project Cost (for RW15003.05 & RW15003.06) $24,004,424 

Current Budget (for RW15003.00): $24,004,424 



6

Recommendations

The RMPU Project is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Water Reliability specifically the Groundwater 
Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in the region through strategic, cost-effective 

partnerships, and development.

• Ratify the change order for the construction contract for Project No. RW15003.06 to MNR
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $188,188.27.



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1H 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

Contract Extension for Financial Advisory Services with Public Financial Management 
Financial Advisors

PFM Financial Advisors (PFM) has been the Agency's independent financial advisor since 
2007. The current contract was signed in 2015, after a competitive Request for Proposal, where 
PFM was the only proposal presented to the Agency. The current contract expired on June 30, 
2022.

PFM has the right level of expertise and knowledge of financial markets, federal and state 
funding opportunities, as well as deep understanding of the Agency financial position, 
projections, and future needs to support the adopted Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan.

PFM has demonstrated their proficiency in performing analysis of the Agency's debt capacity, 
appraisal of outstanding debt to effectively leverage refinancing or refunding opportunities, 
assistance with credit agency reviews, fiscal impact assessment of proposed legislation, 
supporting debt contract negotiations with State Water Resources Control Board for State 
Revolving Fund (SRF) loans, and with Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for Water 
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) loans. PFM was also a key advisor during 
the closing of the last two WIFIA loans secured by the Agency in 2020 and 2022.

1. Ratify the extension of the contract for Financial Advisory Services with PFM for three years
for a not-to-exceed amount of $75,000, effective July 1, 2022.

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract extension.

The costs associated with this contract service are budgeted under professional fees and services
for each fiscal year.

10200 100000 114100 521080

07/13/22Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The financial advisory services are consistent with the IEUA Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility.

On July 15, 2015, the Board approved a contract with PFM for Financial Advisory Services for a
term of five years, through June 30, 2020, with two additional one-year options to extend.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22169



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 









           PFM  
          

        





ACTION  
ITEM 

2A



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

Contract Award for Federal Legislative Services

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) continues to fulfill its responsibility as a "Steward
of the Region" and a leader in innovation and sustainability projects. As IEUA remains
committed to investing in our water supply for today and tomorrow, it is more important than
ever to remain active at the federal level. IEUA contracts with a federal lobbyist to assist the
Agency in advocating for the development of policies, legislation and regulations that benefit
the region and align with IEUA's mission and strategic objectives.

In May 2022, a Request for Proposal (RFP) RFP-GD-004 for federal legislative advocacy
services was posted publicly on Planet Bids. A total of eight proposals were received. A
committee comprised of three Agency staff members and one external panelist evaluated and
scored the written proposals based on predetermined weighted criteria. Following evaluation of
the written proposals, the review committee held interviews with the six top scoring firms.
Through the evaluation and interview process, it is recommended that the top scoring firm,
Carpi and Clay, be awarded the contract. Carpi and Clay demonstrated significant knowledge of
and experience working with California water agencies and offered a highly competitive rate for
the services IEUA is seeking.

1. Approve the award of Contract No. 4600003162 to Carpi and Clay to provide federal
legislative advocacy services for a monthly retainer fee of $7,000 for three years, with the option
of two additional one-year extensions for a not-to-exceed amount of $420,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the service contract, subject to non-substantive
changes.

10200-139100-100000-521080

07/13/22Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Approving the federal legislative services contract is in line with IEUA's business practices goal
of advocating for development of policies, legislation and regulations that benefit the region.

On June 16, 2021, the Board approved a contract amendment with Innovative Federal Strategies,
LLC. for federal legislative services for one additional year, extending the contract to June 30,
2022.

1. Background - Scoring Summary
2. Contract 4600003162

Not Applicable

22168



Page 1 of 1

Background
Subject: Federal Legislative Services – Scoring Summary 

In May 2022, Request for Proposal (RFP) RFP-GD-004 for federal legislative advocacy 
services was posted publicly on Planet Bids. A total of eight proposals were received. A 
committee composed of three gency staff members and one external panelist evaluated and 
scored the written proposals based on predetermined weighted criteria. Following evaluation of 
the written proposals, the review committee held interviews with the six top scoring firms. 
Through the evaluation and interview process, it is recommended that the top scoring firm 
(scores below), Carpi and Clay, be awarded the contract. Carpi & Clay demonstrated 
significant knowledge of and experience working with California water agencies and offered a 
highly competitive rate for the services IEUA is seeking. 

Company Name Total Score

Carpi & Clay, Inc. 44.6

Kadesh & Associates 36.29

Van Scoyoc Associates, Inc. 36.2

Townsend Public Affairs 26.16

Van Ness Feldman LLP 32.05

Innovative Federal Strategies 
LLC

31.93



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 1 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

SERVICES CONTRACT NUMBER: 4600003162
FOR PROVISION OF

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT ADVOCACY SERVICES

THIS CONTRACT (the "Contract"), is made and entered into this _____ day of 
___________, 2022, by and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water 
District, organized and existing in the County of San Bernardino under and by virtue of the 
laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as "Agency" or “IEUA”), and Carpi & 
Clay, Inc. of Washington, DC (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), for the Federal 
Government Advocacy Services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth 
herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. AGENCY PROJECT MANAGER ASSIGNMENT:  All technical direction related to 
this Contract shall come from the designated Project Manager.  Details of the 
Agency's assignment are listed below.

Project Manager: Shivaji Deshmukh

Address: 6075 Kimball Avenue
Chino, CA 91708

Telephone: 909-993-1730
Email: sdeshmukh@ieua.org

2. CONTRACTOR ASSIGNMENT:  Special inquiries related to this Contract and the 
effects of this Contract shall be referred to the following:

Contractor: Laura Morgan-Kessler

Address: 601 New Jersey Ave NW
Washington, D.C. 20001

Telephone: 202-822-8300
Email: lmorgan-kessler@carpiclay.com

3. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE:  The documents referenced below represent the 
Contract Documents.  Where any conflicts exist between the General Terms and 
Conditions the governing order of precedence shall be as follows:

1. Amendments to Contract Number 4600003162.
2. Contract Number 4600003162 General Terms and Conditions.



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 2 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

3. Agency Request for Proposal Number RFP-GD-22-004.
4. Contractor’s Proposal dated April 25, 2022.

4. SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES:  Contractor services and responsibilities shall 
include and be in accordance with the following: 

A. Federal Government Advocacy Services shall be in accordance with the 
Agency’s scope of work and services which is attached hereto as Exhibit B 
and Contractor’s proposal attached as Exhibit A.

B. Contractor shall provide Agency with a Schedule of Work and Services, 
documenting the anticipated completion of the work within the timeframe set 
forth in Subsection 4.A., above. The Schedule of Work and Services will be 
prepared and submitted, to the Project Manager, for review and approval.

C. The Agency may, at any time, make changes to this Contract’s Scope of 
Work; including additions, reductions, and other alterations to any or all of the 
Work.  However, such changes shall only be made via written amendment to 
this Contract.  The Contract compensation and Schedule of Work and 
Services shall be equitably adjusted, if required, to account for such changes 
and shall be set forth within the mutually approved Contract Amendment.  

1. TERM:  The term of this Contract shall commence on July 1, 2022, and terminate 
on June 30, 2025, unless agreed upon by both parties, reduced to writing, and 
amended to this Contract. Agency hereby reserves the right to exercise two (2) 
one-year optional extensions to the Contract term. In the event the Agency 
desires to exercise the Contract extension option provided for in this Section, 
the Agency shall provide written notice to the Contractor, prior to the expiration 
of the original Contract term. If such option is exercised, the rates established 
within the fee schedule shall cease to be effective as of the first day of the 
“option” term.

5. PAYMENT, INVOICING, AND COMPENSATION:  

A. The Contractor may submit an invoice not more than once per month during 
the term of this Contract to the Agency’s Accounts Payable Department.   
Agency shall pay Contractor's properly executed invoice, approved by the 
Project Manager, within thirty (30) days following receipt of the invoice. 

B. As compensation for the Work performed under this Contract, Agency shall 
pay Contractor’s monthly invoice, for a total contract price NOT-TO-EXCEED
$7,000 per month for all services satisfactorily provided during the term of 
this Contract.

C. Concurrent with the submittal of the original invoice to the Agency’s Accounts 
Payable Department, the Contractor shall forward (mail, fax, or email) a copy 



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 3 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

of the invoice to the designated Project Manager, identified in Section 1, on 
Page 1 of this Contract.

D. No Additional Compensation: Nothing set forth in this Contract shall be 
interpreted to require payment by Agency to Contractor of any compensation 
specifically for the assignments and assurances required by the Contract,
other than the payment of expenses as may be actually incurred by Contractor 
in complying with this Contract, as approved by the Project Manager.

E. Contractor shall invoice IEUA electronically for Federal Government 
Advocacy Services fees to IEUA’s Accounts Payable Office at 
APGroup@ieua.org. Each invoice shall cite the Contractor’s name, address, 
and remit to address, description of the work performed, the time period 
covered by the invoice, any related contract and/or purchase order numbers, 
and the amount of payment requested. 

6. CONTROL OF THE WORK:  The Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance 
with the Schedule of Work and Services.  If performance of the Work falls behind 
schedule, the Contractor shall accelerate the performance of the Work to comply 
with the Schedule of Work and Services as directed by the Project Manager.  If the 
nature of the Work is such that Contractor is unable to accelerate the Work, 
Contractor shall promptly notify the Project Manager of the delay, the causes of 
the delay, and submit a proposed revised Schedule of Work and Services.

7. INSURANCE:  During the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall maintain, at 
Contractor's sole expense, the following insurance.

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (“CGL”):  Insurance Services Office 
(“ISO”) Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, 
including products and completed operations, property damage, 
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, 
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Automobile Liability:  ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto 
(Code 1), or if Contractor has no owned autos, covering hired, (Code 
8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limit no less than $1,000,000
per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability:  Workers' 
compensation limits as required by the State of California, with 
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no 
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 4 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

B. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retention must be declared to and approved by the Agency.  At the option of 
the Agency, either:  the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or 
self-insured retention as respects the Agency, its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers; or the Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment 
of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense 
expenses.

C. Other Insurance Provisions:  The insurance policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverage

a. Additional Insured Status:  The Agency, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional 
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of 
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor 
including materials, parts or equipment supplied in connection 
with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be 
provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s 
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85; or 
by either CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38 and CG 
20 37 forms if later revisions are used).

b. Primary Coverage:  The Contractor's insurance coverage shall 
be primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 
01 04 13 as respects the Agency, its officer, officials, employees 
and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the Agency, its officers, officials, employees, volunteers, 
property owners or engineers under contract with the Agency 
shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not 
contribute with it.

c. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies 
shall not affect coverage provided to the Agency, its officers, 
officials, employees or volunteers.

d. The Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except 
with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

e. The Contractor may satisfy the limit requirements in a single 
policy or multiple policies.  Any additional policies written as 
excess insurance shall not provide any less coverage than that 
provided by the first or primary policy.



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 5 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

2. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage

Contractor hereby grants to Agency a waiver of any right to 
subrogation which any insurer of the Contractor may acquire against 
the Agency by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance.  
Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary 
to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies 
regardless of whether or not the Agency has received a waiver of 
subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

3. All Coverages

Each insurance policy required by this Contract shall be endorsed to 
state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either 
party, or reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days 
prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been 
given to the Agency pursuant to Section 14, page 12 of this Contract.

D. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 
A.M. Best's rating of no less than A minus:VII, and who are admitted insurers 
in the State of California.

E. Verification of Coverage:  Contractor shall provide the Agency with original 
certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy 
language effecting coverage required by this clause.  All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the Agency before work 
commences.  However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the 
work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide them.  
The Agency reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these 
specifications, at any time.

F. Submittal of Certificates:  Contractor shall submit all required certificates and 
endorsements to the following:

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Attn:  Angela Witte
P.O. Box 9020
Chino Hills, CA  91709

8. FITNESS FOR DUTY:

A. Fitness:  Contractor and its Subcontractor personnel on the Jobsite:

1. Shall report to work in a manner fit to do their job; 



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 6 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

2. Shall not be under the influence of or in possession of any alcoholic 
beverages or of any controlled substance (except a controlled 
substance as prescribed by a physician so long as the performance 
or safety of the Work is not affected thereby); and

3. Shall not have been convicted of any serious criminal offense which, 
by its nature, may have a discernible adverse impact on the business 
or reputation of the Agency.

B. Compliance: Contractor shall advise all personnel and associated third 
parties of the requirements of this Contract ("Fitness for Duty Requirements") 
before they enter on the Jobsite and shall immediately remove from the 
Jobsite any employee determined to be in violation of these requirements.  
Contractor shall impose these requirements on its Subcontractors.  Agency 
may cancel the Contract if Contractor violates these Fitness for Duty 
Requirements. 

9. LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

A. Professional Responsibility:  The Contractor shall be responsible to the level 
of competency presently maintained by other practicing professionals 
performing the same or similar type of work.

B. Status of Contractor:  The Contractor is retained as an independent 
Contractor only, for the sole purpose of providing the services described 
herein, and is not an employee of the Agency.  

C. Observing Laws and Ordinances:  The Contractor shall keep itself fully 
informed of all existing and future state and federal laws and all county and 
city ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect the conduct of any 
services or tasks performed under this Contract, and of all such orders and 
decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority over the 
same.  The Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with all such 
existing and future laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees, and 
shall protect and indemnify, as required herein, the Agency, its officers, 
employees and agents against any claim or liability arising from or based on 
the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether 
by the Contractor, its employees, or subcontractors. 

D. Subcontract Services:  Any subcontracts for the performance of any services 
under this Contract shall be subject to the written approval of the Project 
Manager and shall comply with State of California, Department of Industrial 
Relations, SB 854 requirements.

E. Hours of Labor:  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of 
California Labor Code Sections 1810 to 1815 relating to working hours.  The 
Contractor shall, as a penalty to the Agency, forfeit $25.00 for each worker 



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 7 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

employed in the completion of the Contract by the Contractor or by any 
subcontractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or 
permitted to work more than eight hours in any one calendar day and forty 
(40) hours in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of the Labor 
Code.

F. Travel and Subsistence Pay:  The Contractor shall make payment to each 
worker for travel and subsistence payments which are needed to complete
the work and/or service, as such travel and subsistence payments are defined 
in an applicable collective bargaining agreements with the worker.

G. Liens:  Contractor shall pay all sums of money that become due from any 
labor, services, materials or equipment provided to Contractor on account of 
said services to be rendered or said materials to be provided under this 
Contract and that may be secured by any lien against the Agency.  Contractor
shall fully discharge each such lien at the time performance of the obligation 
secured matures and becomes due.

H. Indemnification:  Contractor shall indemnify the Agency, its directors, 
employees, and assigns, and shall defend and hold them harmless from all 
liabilities, demands, actions, claims, losses and expenses, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, which arise out of, or are related to, the
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the Contractor, its directors, 
employees, agents, and assigns, in the performance of work under this 
contract.

I. Conflict of Interest:  No official of the Agency, who is authorized in such 
capacity and on behalf of the Agency to negotiate, make, accept or approve, 
or to take part in negotiating, making, accepting or approving this Contract, or 
any subcontract relating to services or tasks to be performed pursuant to this 
Contract, shall become directly or indirectly personally interested in this 
Contract.

J. Equal Opportunity:  During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor
shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or employment 
applicant because of race, color, religion, sex, age, marital status, ancestry, 
physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, veteran status or national 
origin. The Agency is committed to creating and maintaining an environment 
free from harassment and discrimination.  

K. Disputes:

1. All disputes arising out of or in relation to this Contract shall be resolved
in accordance with this section.  The Contractor shall pursue the work 
to completion in accordance with the instruction of the Agency's Project 
Manager notwithstanding the existence of a dispute.  By entering into 
this Contract, both parties are obligated, and hereby agree, to submit 
all disputes arising under or relating to the Contract which remain 



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 8 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

unresolved after the exhaustion of the procedures provided herein, to 
independent arbitration.  Except as otherwise provided herein, 
arbitration shall be conducted under California Code of Civil Procedure 
Sections 1280, et seq., or their successor.

2. Any and all disputes prior to the work starting shall be subject to 
resolution by the Agency’s Project Manager; and the Contractor shall 
comply, with the Agency Project Manager instructions.  If the 
Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution directed by the Agency 
Project Manager, they may file a written protest with the Agency Project 
Manager within seven (7) calendar days after receiving written 
directive of the Project Manager's decision.  Failure by Contractor to 
file a written protest within seven (7) calendar days shall constitute 
waiver of protest, and acceptance of the Project Manager's resolution.  
The Project Manager shall submit the Contractor's written protests to 
the General Manager, together with a copy of the Project Manager's 
written decision, for his or her consideration within seven (7) calendar 
days after receipt of the protest-related documents.  The General 
Manager shall make his or her determination with respect to each 
protest filed with the Project Manager within ten (10) calendar days 
after receipt of the protest-related documents.  If Contractor is not 
satisfied with any such resolution by the General Manager, they may 
file a written request for arbitration with the Project Manager within 
seven (7) calendar days after receiving written notice of the General 
Manager's decision.

3. In the event of arbitration, the parties to this contract agree that there 
shall be a single neutral Arbitrator who shall be selected in the following 
manner:

a. The Demand for Arbitration shall include a list of five names of 
persons acceptable to the Contractor to be appointed as 
Arbitrator.  The Agency shall determine if any of the names 
submitted by Contractor are acceptable and, if so, such person 
will be designated as Arbitrator.

b. In the event that none of the names submitted by Contractor are 
acceptable to Agency, or if for any reason the Arbitrator 
selected in Step (a) is unable to serve, the Agency shall submit 
to Contractor a list of five names of persons acceptable to 
Agency for appointment as Arbitrator. The Contractor shall, in 
turn, have seven (7) calendar days in which to determine if one 
such person is acceptable.

c. If after Steps (a) and (b), the parties are unable to mutually 
agree upon a neutral Arbitrator, the matter of selection of an 
Arbitrator shall be submitted to the San Bernardino County 



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 9 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

Superior Court pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 
1281.6, or its successor.  The costs of arbitration, including but 
not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, shall be recoverable 
by the party prevailing in the arbitration.  If this arbitration is ap-
pealed to a court pursuant to the procedure under California 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1294, et seq., or their suc-
cessor, the costs of arbitration shall also include court costs 
associated with such appeals, including but not limited to 
reasonable attorneys' fees which shall be recoverable by the 
prevailing party.

4. Association in Mediation/Arbitration:  The Agency may join the 
Contractor in mediation or arbitration commenced by a contractor on 
the Project pursuant to Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 et seq.
Such association shall be initiated by written notice from the Agency's 
representative to the Contractor.

L. Workers’ Legal Status:  For performance against this Contract, Contractor
shall only utilize employees and/or subcontractors that are authorized to work 
in the United States pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 
1986.

10. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS AND DOCUMENTS/CONFIDENTIALITY:  The 
Agency retains ownership of any, and all, partial or complete reports, drawings, 
plans, notes, computations, lists, and/or other materials, documents, information, or 
data prepared by the Contractor and/or the Contractor's subcontractor(s) pertaining 
to this Contract.  Said materials and documents are confidential and shall be 
available to the Agency from the moment of their preparation, and the Contractor 
shall deliver them to the Agency whenever requested to do so by the Project 
Manager and/or Agency representative.  The Contractor agrees that all documents
shall not be made available to any individual or organization, private or public, without
the prior written consent of an Agency representative.

11. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS:

A. Documentation: Title to the Documentation shall pass to the Agency when 
prepared; however, a copy may be retained by Contractor for its records and 
internal use.  Contractor shall retain such Documentation in a controlled 
access file, and shall not reveal, display, or disclose the contents of the 
Documentation to others without the prior written authorization of the Agency 
or for the performance of Work related to the Scope of Work described in this 
Contract.

B. Material: Title to all Material, field or research equipment, and laboratory 
models, procured or fabricated under the Contract shall pass to the Agency 
when procured or fabricated, and such title shall be free and clear of any and 



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 10 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

all encumbrances.  Contractor shall have risk of loss of any Material or 
Agency-owned equipment of which it has custody.

C. Disposition: Contractor shall dispose of items to which the Agency has title 
as directed, in writing, by the Project Manager and/or an Agency 
representative. 

12. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS:

A. Rights and Ownership: Agency's rights to inventions, discoveries, trade 
secrets, patents, copyrights, and other intellectual property, including the 
Information and Documentation, and revisions thereto (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as "Proprietary Rights"), used or developed by Contractor in the 
performance of the Work, shall be governed by the following provisions:

1. Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by 
Contractor in the performance of the Work shall be the property of 
Agency, and Contractor shall cooperate with all appropriate requests 
to assign and transfer same to Agency.

2. If Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by 
Contractor prior to the performance of the Work are used in and
become integral with the Work, or are necessary for Agency to have
complete control of the Work, Contractor shall grant to Agency a non-
exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free license, as may be required by 
Agency for the complete control of the Work, including the right to 
reproduce, correct, repair, replace, maintain, translate, publish, use, 
modify, copy or dispose of any or all of the Work and grant sublicenses 
to others with respect to the Work.

3. If the Work includes the Proprietary Rights of others, Contractor shall 
procure, at no additional cost to Agency, all necessary licenses 
regarding such Proprietary Rights so as to allow Agency the complete 
control of the Work, including the right to reproduce, correct, repair, 
replace, maintain, translate, publish, use, modify, copy, or dispose of 
any or all of the Work; and to grant sublicenses to others with respect 
to the Work. All such licenses shall be in writing and shall be 
irrevocable and royalty-free to Agency.

13. NOTICES:  Any notice may be served upon either party by delivering it in person, or 
by depositing it in a United States Mail deposit box with the postage thereon fully 
prepaid, and addressed to the party at the address set forth below:



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 11 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

    Agency: Warren T. Green
Manager of Contracts and Procurement
Inland Empire Utilities Agency
P.O. Box 9020
Chino Hills, CA 91709

Contractor: Kenneth Carpi
CEO & Managing Partner
Carpi & Clay
601 New Jersey Avenue, NW, Suite 300
Washington, DC 20001

Any notice given pursuant to this section shall be deemed effective in the case of 
personal delivery, upon receipt thereof, or, in the case of mailing, at the moment of 
deposit in the course of transmission through the United States Postal Service.

14. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  All of the terms, conditions and provisions of this 
Contract shall take effect to the benefit of and be binding upon the Agency, the 
Contractor, and their respective successors and assigns. No assignment of the 
duties or benefits of the Contractor under this Contract may be assigned, transferred,
or otherwise disposed of, without the prior written consent of the Agency; and any 
such purported or attempted assignment, transfer, or disposal without the prior 
written consent of the Agency shall be null, void, and of no legal effect whatsoever.

15. PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY:  Information made available to the Agency may be 
subject to the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et seq.)  
The Agency’s use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act.  The Agency 
shall use its best efforts to notify Contractor of any requests for disclosure of any 
documents pertaining to this work. In the event of litigation concerning disclosure of 
information Contractor considers exempt from disclosure; (e.g., Trade Secret, 
Confidential, or Proprietary) Agency shall act as a stakeholder only, holding the 
information until otherwise ordered by a court or other legal process.  If Agency is 
required to defend an action arising out of a Public Records Act request for any of 
the information Contractor has marked “Confidential,” “Proprietary,” or “Trade 
Secret,” Contractor shall defend and indemnify Agency from all liability, damages, 
costs, and expenses, in any action or proceeding arising under the Public Records 
Act.

 
16. RIGHT TO AUDIT:  The Agency reserves the right to review and/or audit all 

Contractor’s records related to the Work.  The option to review and/or audit may be 
exercised during the term of the Contract, upon termination, upon completion of the 
Contract, or at any time thereafter up to twelve (12) months after final payment has 
been made to the Contractor.  The Contractor shall make all records and related 
documentation available within three (3) working days after said records are 
requested by the Agency.



 

 
4600003162 (GD)                                                                                                     Page 12 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

17. INTEGRATION:  The Contract Documents represent the entire Contract made and 
entered into by and between the Agency and the Contractor as to those matters 
contained in this contract.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force 
or effect with respect to those matters covered by the Contract Documents.  This 
Contract may not be modified, altered, or amended except by written mutual 
agreement by the Agency and the Contractor.

18. GOVERNING LAW:  This Contract is to be governed by and constructed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, in the County of San Bernardino.

19. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  The Agency reserves and has the right to 
immediately suspend, cancel or terminate this Contract at any time upon written 
notice to the Contractor.  In the event of such termination, the Agency shall pay 
Contractor for all authorized and Contractor-invoiced services up to the date of such 
termination, as approved by the Project Manager.

20. FORCE MAJEURE:  Neither party shall hold the other responsible for the effects of 
acts occurring beyond their control; e.g., war, riots, strikes, natural disasters, 
etcetera.

21. NOTICE TO PROCEED:  No services shall be performed or provided under this 
Contract unless and until this document has been properly signed by all responsible 
parties and a notice to proceed has been issued to the Contractor by the Project 
Manager.

22. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE CONTRACT:  The Signatories, below, each represent, 
warrant, and covenant that they have the full authority and right to enter into this 
Contract on behalf of the separate entities shown below.

23. DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS: The Parties to this Contract and the individuals 
named to facilitate the realization of its intent, with the execution of the Contract, 
authorize the delivery of documents via facsimile, via email, and via portable 
document format (PDF) and covenant agreement to be bound by such electronic 
versions.



4600003162 (GD)  Page 13 of 13 
June 21, 2022 

The parties hereto have caused the Contract to be entered as of the day and year written 
above.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CARPI & CLAY, INC.:
*A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

_______________________   ________ _________________________   ________
Shivaji Deshmukh P.E.                (Date)    Kenneth Carpi                                 (Date)
General Manager CEO & Managing Partner



4600003162 (GD)   
June 21, 2022 

EXHIBIT A



Inland Empire Utilities Agency



’s

“both sides of the table” as advocates and as staff for major political leaders of both parties at the local, 



“Personal Touch. Impressive Results” and to that end, we are proud that year after year we continue 
client’s top priorities.  

Day in and day out, it is in our firm’s DNA to go the extra mile for clients.  

 We use a “Principals Only” approach. 





times our client’s access to Washing

 ’s



As your “boots on the ground”, we nurture relationships and build 



— —

IEUA’

lead Carpi and Clay’s federal efforts for IEUA

Ken Carpi manages Carpi & Clay and the firm’s legislative and advocacy 

spearheaded and directed all legislative efforts on behalf of the nation’s largest state. He implemented a 



– –

One of Laura’s proudest profe

Flood Insurance Program Reauthorization bill.  The residual risk mandate 

She also supported the Senator’s Energy and Natural 



the Senior Legislative Representative at APTA, she steered APTA’s federal efforts on reauthorization of 

addition, he is a graduate of the Institute d’Etudes Politiques, France.



blog, coauthored the “New Starts Handbook,” a guide for congressional 

design, construction and operation and organized the first “New Starts Day on the Hill” for the New Starts 



ders at the local, state, and federal levels, we have been on “both sides of the table” as 

’s policy, regulatory, and project priorities including:












 Organizing, facilitating, and supporting “fly ins” and client advocacy days

’s behalf, be it a committee hearing 

 

 



 

toward advancing our clients’ priorities.

In December of 2016, Congress passed the “Water Infrastructure for Improvements to the Nation Act” 



in EPA’s WIFIA review process

ies in Reclamation’s facility inventory. Clean Water Services and the Tualatin 



District’s congressional delegation, as well as the Corps, to successfully get construction authorization 

Department’s interpretation.  Through conference calls,



’s current 

’s current federal presenc
’s federal footprint.  We have experience planning for and preparing legislative 

IEUA’

As your “boots on the ground” in 
IEUA’

’s reach wel



will closely monitor the President’s budget and the annual Congressi

IEUA’s

position its grant proposals, understand an agency’s priority focus 

’s 

’s 

’s legislative platform. 

IUEA’s



–

Lump sum total labor not to exceed: $_________________________________________________ 

Lump sum total material not to exceed: $______________________________________________ 

Grand Total of Labor and Material firm fixed price: $______________________________________ 

Planned earliest start and completion date upon receipt of a Contract Task Order: 

Start Date: _______________________    Completion Date: _____________________________ 

On behalf of the afore identified “Contractor” company

within the time frame specified within the “Request for Proposal” and that the Company will be ready 

’s Signature

Contractor’s

’s Sigggggggggggggnannnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn ture



 

 

If no exception(s) are taken, enter “NONE” for the first item.  Make additional copie



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

    

’s principal place of 

 

 California Contractor’s License Number: 

 

 

 Manager’s E

 Project Manager’s Cell Phone 



TYPE OF SERVICES PROVIDED (Note: Please attach a “typical” invoice, f

Contractors who performed services, on your firm’s behalf, at the referenced 

Long Beach Water Dept. Jillian Croci Long Beach 562.708.3411

Comprehensive federal advocacy services, with a focus on federal funding, legislation, and regulatory activity 

on issues related to water infrastructure, natural resources, cybersecurity, taxation, and the environment. 

We advocate for LBWD before Congress, the Bureau of Reclamation, the Environmental Protection Agency, and the

Department of Homeland Security.



TYPE OF SERVICES PROVIDED (Note: Please attach a “typical” invoice, f

Contractors who performed services, on your firm’s behalf, at the referenced 

Monterey One Water Rachel Gaudoin Monterey 831.645.4623

Comprehensive federal advocacy services, with a focus on federal funding, legislation, and regulatory 

activity on issues related to wastewater infrastructure, natural resources, taxation, energy, and environment. 

We advocate for MIW before Congress, the Bureau of Reclamation, the Environmental Protection Agency, and the 

Department of Energy.



TYPE OF SERVICES PROVIDED (Note: Please attach a “typical” invoice, f

Contractors who performed services, on your firm’s behalf, at the referenced 

Mission Springs Water Dept Brian Macy Desert Hot Springs 760.660.4397

Comprehensive federal advocacy services, with a focus on federal funding, legislation, and regulatory activity

on issues related to water infrastructure, natural resources, taxation, and the environment. We advocate for

MSWD before Congress, the Army Corps of Engineers,the Bureau of Reclamation, and the Environmental 

Protection Agency.



4600003162 (GD)       
June 21, 2022 

EXHIBIT B



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 

FOR 

Federal Government Advocacy Services 

April 11, 2022 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

This solicitation package includes the sections and subsections listed below.  If any of these items are missing 
from your solicitation package, please notify the contact identified in Section 1(D). 

SECTION 1 – SUBMITTAL INFORMATION 1

A. INTRODUCTION 1
B. DESCRIPTION OF WORK 1
C. SUBMITTAL LOCATION, CLOSING DATE, AND TIME 1
D. INQUIRES 2
E. PROPOSAL FORMAT 2

SECTION 2 – GENERAL INFORMATION 3

A. WAITING PERIOD 3
B. PROPOSAL PREPARATION COSTS 3
C. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL BEFORE CLOSING 3
D. MISTAKE IN PROPOSAL 3
E. PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE 3
F. INTERPRETATION OF DOCUMENTS 3
G. PROPOSAL FEES 4
H. CONTRACT REFERENCES 4
I. AWARD CRITERIA 4
J. PUBLIC RECORD 4
K. ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT 4
L. INSURANCE 4
M. RELEASE OF LIABILITY 5
N. CONTRACT EXECUTIONS / EXCEPTIONS 5
O. PROPOSAL PRICE 6
P. ENVIRONMENTAL PURCHASING POLICY 6
Q. PROPOSAL INCLUSIONS 6

SECTION 3 – SCOPE OF WORK 7

A. SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES 7

SECTION 4 – FORMS 9

PROPOSAL RATE/FEE SCHEDULE 9
EXCEPTION FORM 10
WORKER’S COMPENSATION CERTIFICATE 11
OFFEROR IDENTIFICATION 12
REFERENCES AND SUBCONTRACTORS 13
NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 14
WAIVER / RELEASE OF LIABILITY 15

SECTION 5 – ATTACHMENTS 16

ATTACHMENT “A” 16



SECTION 1 - SUBMITTAL INFORMATION 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 Page 1 

A. INTRODUCTION:  The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“Agency”) is a regional
wastewater treatment agency that provides sewage treatment for the cities
located within the west end of San Bernardino County. Additionally, the
Agency serves as a supplemental source of potable water and recycled water
to the same geographic area. The Agency was incorporated in June 1950,
under the Municipal Water District Act of 1911, as a municipal corporation.
The Agency’s service area encompasses approximately 242 square miles,
including the Cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Fontana, Montclair, Ontario,
Rancho Cucamonga, and Upland: and several of the unincorporated areas of
western San Bernardino County.

1. The Agency has a dedicated team of approximately 300
professionals, operating five regional water recycling facilities that
treat approximately 50 million gallons of wastewater per day. The
Agency owns and operates several domestic wastewater trunk
sewers and interceptor sewer lines, as well as several industrial
wastewater trunk interceptor sewer pipelines. In addition, the Agency
operates a composting facility, and the Chino Basin Desalter Number
One. More information on the Agency can be obtained through the
Agency’s website at www.ieua.org.

2. A five-member Board of Directors is elected to represent the Agency’s
875,000 residents. Each Board member is elected to serve a four-
year term, by the registered voters residing within each of the five
respective Divisions.

B. DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  The Inland Empire Utilities Agency ("IEUA" or “Agency”)
is accepting electronic proposals through PlanetBids for Federal Government
Advocacy Services. The Agency seeks responses from qualified firms with
expertise in advocating/lobbying at the federal level to represent the Agency’s
legislative goals before federal legislators, departments, and agencies. These goals
may include issues relating to municipal water districts, special districts, grants,
water resources, wastewater, recycled water, biosolids, groundwater, stormwater,
renewable energy, energy tariffs, environment, and federal budget priorities.

C. SUBMITTAL LOCATION – CLOSING DATE, AND TIME:  The Offeror is required to
acknowledge addendum posted on PlanetBids after original solicitation posting
regarding changes in the original RFP up to and including any changes to the closing
date and time and must include any addendum in their submitted proposal. Proposals
received after the “closing” date and time indicated will not be accepted. Faxed, e-
mailed or hard copy proposals will not be accepted as this is an electronic only bid
submittal through the PlanetBids portal only. Proposals are due April 25, 2022, by 3pm
(Pacific Time).

Submittal Closing: April 25, 2022, 3:00pm 
Location:  PlanetBids (electronic only) 



SECTION 1 - SUBMITTAL INFORMATION 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 Page 2 

D. INQUIRIES:  Inquiries should be submitted via PlanetBids to Greg Dominguez, Contract 
Administrator II, gdominguez@ieua.org. The cut-off date for submitting questions is 
3:00 P.M. April 14, 2022. Questions may be answered and uploaded to PlanetBids as
an Addendum to all registered participants.

E. PROPOSAL FORMAT:  All Proposals shall be submitted as Electronic Files ONLY via
PlanetBids. All proposals shall be submitted/uploaded into the response file and any
required general attachments via PlaneBids, as either a single PDF file or as multiple,
clearly identified PDF files. Offeror shall include sequential page numbers and the
Contractor’s initial on each page of their Proposal. A proposal not following the
requested format may be deemed non-responsive and eliminated from further
consideration. The Proposal shall include a dated cover letter which must be signed
by a person authorized to negotiate and execute contracts on behalf of the Offeror and
must be binding for a period of ninety (90) days.

NOTE:  IT IS THE OFFEROR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO EXAMINE THIS "REQUEST FOR
PROPOSAL" SOLICITATION IN ITS ENTIRETY PRIOR TO SUBMITTING A
PROPOSAL.

(This space intentionally left blank.)



SECTION 2 - GENERAL INFORMATION 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 Page 3 

A. WAITING PERIOD:  All Offerors are alerted that a waiting period of up to ninety (90)
days from the date of the Proposal opening may be required before an award is made.
Offeror shall assume full responsibility for the effect of the waiting period on all
Proposal prices and terms.

B. PROPOSAL PREPARATION COSTS:  The Agency is not, nor shall be, deemed liable
for any costs incurred by the Offeror during the preparation, submittal, or
presentation of their proposal.

C. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL BEFORE CLOSING:  Any Offeror may request the
withdrawal of their submitted proposal by a written request at any time prior to the
scheduled proposal due date and time.  Upon receiving the written request to
withdraw any proposal, the Agency will consider the Offeror’s proposal null and void,
and return the proposal to the Offeror unopened.  Withdrawal of an Offeror’s proposal
will not prejudice Offeror’s re-submittal for this or any future proposal(s). E-mailed
Proposals will be sent back to the Contractor via e-mail.  The Contractor shall take note
that no guarantee will be made concerning opening e-mails prior to the closing
date/time, given the informal format of this type of submittal.

D. MISTAKE IN PROPOSAL:  Any Offeror may withdraw their Proposal after the Proposal
opening, subject to the time restrictions indicated, only if the Offeror can establish to
IEUA’s satisfaction, that a mistake was made in preparing the Proposal.

1. An Offeror declaring a mistake must provide a written notice to IEUA within five
(5) calendar days following the scheduled closing date, specifying in detail, how
the mistake occurred, and how the mistake made the Proposal materially
different than as was intended.

2. Withdrawal of the Proposal will only be permitted for mistakes made in the
completion of the Proposal.  An Offeror who claims a mistake shall be
PROHIBITED from submitting further Proposals on the Project in which the
mistake in Proposal was claimed.  (Public Contract Code 5105).

E. PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE: IEUA reserves the right to accept or reject any or all
Proposals, or waive any informality(s) in any Proposal, if such action is deemed to be
in the best interest of IEUA.  Additionally, be advised that if all valid Proposal prices
received are found to exceed the budget appropriated for this project, IEUA may reject
all Proposals.

F. INTERPRETATION OF DOCUMENTS: During the Proposal solicitation period, should
an Offeror find discrepancies or omissions in the specifications of the "Request for
Proposals," or should the Offeror be in doubt as to their interpretation, the Offeror shall
immediately notify the contact indicated in Section 1(C).  Should it be found necessary,
an addendum will be posted on PlanetBids. Any addenda issued prior to the scheduled
Proposal closing date and time, shall form a part of this solicitation and shall become
a part of the submitted Proposal.



SECTION 2 - GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 Page 4 

G. PROPOSAL FEES:  Offeror’s shall submit a fully-burdened fee schedule, for each task 
or specific skill category required to provide the Contractor’s Services, clearly 
identifying the firm’s staff classifications by category, by hourly billing rates, and any 
associated administrative costs.    

H. CONTRACT REFERENCES: Using the References form included in Section 4, each 
Offeror shall provide a list of at least three (3) references from clients that have 
engaged the Offeror, for which similar work has been performed, within the last five 
(5) years.  Include the reference names, contact person(s), telephone numbers, e-
mail address, business physical address, and brief description of the specific 
services provided.    

I. AWARD CRITERIA: The following criteria will be used in the rating process for the 
proposals submitted; to determine the selection of the successful Offeror(s):

1. Past record off performance in providing similar services (prior projects or 
engagements).  

2. Experience of personnel (individual or company history, years in business, 
licenses, certifications, other personnel qualifications). 

3. Proposed staffing plan and methodology. 
4. References. 
5. Exceptions taken to the proposed contract terms.  
6. Project fee schedule, rate structure. 
   

J. PUBLIC RECORD:  Be advised that all information contained in proposals submitted 
in response to this solicitation, shall become a matter of public record, be subject to 
the California Records Act of 2004 (Government Code Section 6250 et seq.), and the 
information’s use and disclosure are governed by this Act.  

K. ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT:  The selected Offeror’s invoice(s), subsequent to the 
completion of a valid and binding contract, shall include a specific reference to the 
Contract Number, the associated Purchase Order number, and be accompanied by 
detailed supporting documentation. The Agency shall pay the Offeror’s properly 
executed invoice, subject to approval by the Project Manager, within thirty (30) days 
following receipt of the invoice.  

L. INSURANCE:  The Contractor shall furnish IEUA with certificates of insurance and with 
original endorsements effective coverage required by IEUA for themselves and all 
subcontractors, prior to commencing work or allowing any subcontractor to 
commence work under any subcontract.  The certificates and endorsements for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and endorsements are to be approved by IEUA 
before work commences.  IEUA reserves the right to require complete. Certified copies 
of all required insurance policies, at any time.  The minimum scope of insurance 
required: 



SECTION 2 - GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 Page 5 

1. General Liability: Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 01 covering CGL 
on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, 
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits 
no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence $2,000,000 aggregate. If a general 
aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply 
separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general 
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

 
2.  Automobile Liability:  ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 

1), or if Contractor has no owned autos, covering hired, (Code 8) and non-
owned autos (Code 9), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage.

 
3. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers' compensation 

limits as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. 

 
 For Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage, the insurer 

shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against IEUA, its officers, 
officials, employees, volunteers, property owners or engineers under 
contract to IEUA for losses arising from work performed by the Entity for 
IEUA. Original Waiver of Subrogation endorsement must be furnished to 
IEUA. 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): Insurance appropriates to the 

Consultant’s profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 
claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. 

M. RELEASE OF LIABILITY:  The selected Offeror shall execute a Release of Liability form. 
Contractor Agrees and understands that the Contractor’s personal property, if left at 
any of the Agency’s sites, during the course of the Work, may be exposed to the risk 
of, but not limited to theft, fire damage, water damage, and wind damage; for which 
the Contractor agrees to assume any and all such risk, and consequences as a result 
thereof.  The Contractor shall be responsible for the completion of the Agency’s 
Waiver/Release of Liability form (see Section 4) as part of a complete proposal.   

 
N. CONTRACT EXECUTION(S) / EXCEPTIONS:  The selected Offeror shall execute a 

contract with the Agency which establishes the terms and conditions covering the 
services provided.  A sample of the Agency’s standard contract will be provided as an 
attached document in PlanetBids. Thus, the Offeror is encouraged to carefully review 
and consider the sample contract. The Offeror must advise the Agency of any 
exceptions to the contract’s content or to the content of the RFP.  An Exceptions Form 
is provided within this document in Section 4. 

 



SECTION 2 - GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 Page 6 

O. PROPOSAL PRICE:  The Offeror’s proposed price(s) shall be indicated on the Summary 
Fee Schedule located within this document.  Each Offeror must fully complete all parts 
of the Summary Fee Schedule, or their Proposal may be rejected.  Be advised that, at 
any time, the Agency may require the Offeror to further itemize/detail components of 
proposed prices and/or invoices; i.e. labor, materials, travel expenses, sales taxes, 
freight charges, etc.).  If the Offeror desires to convey clarifications/explanations to the 
information presented on the Proposal Price Schedule, an addendum page(s) may be 
attached thereto.  For each Proposal item, all cost including overhead, burden, 
administration, supervision, etcetera, shall be evenly weighted so that work may be 
added or deducted, at the discretion of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, with no 
adjustment to the unit costs submitted.  

P. ENVIRONMENTAL PURCHASING POLICY: The Goal of IEUA is to reduce global 
warming and other environmentally harmful effects generated by its operations, its 
operational protocols, and its capital improvement projects.  In this endeavor, the 
terms and conditions of all IEUA solicitations encourage, whenever possible and 
practical, the proposal for products and services that are proven beneficial to the 
environment.  Examples for this Project would be projects manufactured with recycled 
steel, recycled plastics, and vehicles fueled with natural gas or propane versus 
gasoline or diesel fuel.  The Offerors, in their proposals should present (and explain) 
the efforts they will be employing on the Project that move the Agency closer to its 
sustainability goals.  
 

Q. PROPOSAL INCLUSIONS:  The Request for Proposal documents shall be returned in 
their entirety, with all applicable portions fully completed by the Contractor.  Each 
page shall be sequentially numbered and initialed by the Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 

(This space intentionally left blank.) 



SECTION 3 - SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 Page 7 

A. SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES:  The Scope of Work for the Federal Advocacy 
Services shall include, but not be limited to, the following:   
 
1. Agency Representation  
 

a. Represent IEUA’s interest with congressional offices, the executive branch, 
and agencies including (but not limited to): Department of Interior, U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers, Environmental Protection Agency, and the 
Department of Energy.  

b. Establish an active presence and day-to-day involvement in the legislative 
and regulatory actions on behalf of the Agency. 

c. Develop and implement a successful strategy for the Agency, including 
coordinating strategic trips to Washington, D.C., to meet with legislators 
and federal agency representatives. 

d. Develop and maintain good working relationships between the Agency and 
California congressional delegation, key congressional committees, and the 
Executive Branch.  Assist with developing relationships with newly elected 
officials. 

e. Coordinate appointments or meetings between Agency Board Members, 
Executives, or other designated individuals, and congressional leaders. 

f. As appropriate, identify opportunities for strategic partnerships with 
national industry advocacy organizations (WateReuse, ACWA, etc.), 
regional utilities (MWD, SAWPA, Mas, etc.) and regional civic and 
governmental groups (IE Chamber of Commerce, County of San 
Bernardino, etc.) and foster these relationships. 

g. To the extent that IEUA’s programs or projects demonstrate unique 
leadership qualities, identify opportunities for IEUA to present/testify in 
appropriate forums to showcase and share the Agency’s accomplishments. 

 
2. Legislative Bill and Regulatory Policy Tracking and Advocacy 
 

a. Identify federal legislation of interest to the Agency, monitor action on 
these initiatives, and advocate the Agency’s interests, when appropriate. 

b. Provide strategic guidance and recommendations to assist the Agency in 
achieving its legislative and regulatory goals and objectives.  

c. Represent the Agency in Washington, D.C. to communicate the Agency’s 
interests to the appropriate elected representatives, key Committee 
members, federal agencies, and other individuals, as needed. 

d. Provide support including briefing papers, talking points, etc. when 
requested. 

e. Advocate on legislation and issues in response to formal positions taken 
by IEUA’s Board.  



SECTION 3 - SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER RFP-GD-22-004 Page 8 

f. Anticipate and alert the Agency of opportunities or concerns associated 
with evolving federal policies based on a thorough understanding of the 
Agency’s profile and policy principles. 

 
3. Assistance in Securing Funding for IEUA and Regional Resource Projects 
 

a. Identify potential federal funding opportunities that match the Agency’s 
funding needs. 

b. Secure funding for Agency projects through the authorization and 
appropriations processes and provide follow-up support on competitive 
applications. 

c. Work with Agency staff in the identification and application of grants 
offered by federal agencies.  Work with IEUA’s congressional delegation to 
obtain letters of support for all funding applications.  

d. Advise on presentation (organization, formatting, etc.) of legislative 
materials.  Draft pertinent materials and correspondence. 

e. Monitor and facilitate the progress of funding/grant applications through 
appropriate federal agencies on behalf of the Agency, when requested. 
 

4. Communication/Updates 
 

a. Provide written monthly updates and quarterly status reports on the firm’s 
achievements as they relate to the Agency’s goals and objectives. 

b. Provide monthly oral updates to the Community and Legislative Affairs 
Committee via Teams.  

c. Other required reports may include, but not necessarily be limited to, 
personal briefings and information bulletins pertinent to any legislation, 
rules, or regulations and other Federal policies or programs that affect the 
Agency and its customers either directly or indirectly. 

d. Travel to the Agency’s service area may be required for briefings and 
meetings with the Agency’s Board of Directors, Senior Leadership, and/or 
staff as needed and directed. 

e. Draft position letters and other correspondence for Agency to sign and 
personally distribute when appropriate.  

Limit submission pages to no more than 25 in PDF format. No hardcopies will be accepted. 
 



ACTION  
ITEM 

2B



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

IE Works/Workforce Development

An estimated 35 percent of the Agency’s workforce will be eligible for retirement within five 
years. In addition to risks created by the impending retirements, we depend on critical positions 
requiring specialized certifications that provide operational reliability. As the need to secure our 
future work force continues, the Agency has expanded its workforce development efforts to 
include participation in IE Works, a collaborative between local water and wastewater agencies 
to increase the number of highly qualified candidates for mission-critical positions in the water/
wastewater industry, while promoting equity across the Inland Empire. As a signatory of IE 
Works, the Agency continues to work collaboratively with IE Works to ensure that the region 
will have the reliable workforce needed to serve the community. Additionally, as a signatory of 
IE Works, the Agency can elect to continue participating as either a customer or a governing 
member. Staff is recommending that the Agency participate in IE Works as a customer.

Authorize IEUA to participate as a customer in IE Works, Inland Empire Water 
Wastewater Apprenticeship Pathways Collaborative.

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Workplace Environment: IEUA is committed to providing a dynamic work environment with a 
highly skilled and dedicated workforce. 

On May 19, 2021, the Board of Directors approved IEUA's participation in IE Works.

Attachment 1 - IE Works Bylaws

Not Applicable

22173



BYLAWS OF

INLAND EMPIRE WORKS – “IEWorks”

a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation



February 2022 



i  

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE 1 PRINCIPAL OFFICE ................................................................................................ 1 

ARTICLE 2 MEMBERSHIP ......................................................................................................... 1 

Section 2.01 Classification of Members. ............................................................................. 1 

Section 2.02 Qualifications for Membership ....................................................................... 1 

Section 2.03  Admission of Members.. ............................................................................... 1 

Section 2.04 Membership Dues, Fees, and Assessments. .................................................... 1 

Section 2.05 Members in Good Standing ............................................................................ 1 

Section 2.06 Membership Roster ........................................................................................ 2 

Section 2.07 Nonliability of Members.. .............................................................................. 2 

Section 2.08 Transferability of Memberships.. .................................................................... 2 

Section 2.09 Designated Representatives.. .......................................................................... 2 

Section 2.10 Ex-Officio Members....................................................................................... 2 

Section 2.11 Basis for Termination. ................................................................................... 2 

Section 2.12 Termination Procedures. ................................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE 3 MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS........................................................................................... 4 

Section 3.01 Voting Rights.: ............................................................................................... 4 

Section 3.02 Inspection Rights ............................................................................................ 4 

Section 3.03 Other Rights.. ................................................................................................. 4 

ARTICLE 4 MEMBER MEETINGS AND VOTING .................................................................... 5 

Section 4.01 Brown Act.. .................................................................................................... 5 

Section 4.02 Member Vote. ................................................................................................ 5 

Section 4.03 Annual Member Meetings. ............................................................................. 5 

Section 4.04 Time and Manner of Notice of Regular Meetings. ............................................ 5 

Section 4.05  Special Meetings of Members ........................................................................ 5 

Section 4.06  Meetings Called Pursuant to Emergency Situation.. ....................................... 6 



ii  

Section 4.07  Closed Session. .............................................................................................. 6 

Section 4.08 Contents of Agenda of Meeting. ..................................................................... 6 

Section 4.09 Congregations or Writings as Meetings.. ........................................................ 6 

Section 4.10 Record Dates.. ................................................................................................ 6 

Section 4.11 Notice of Certain Actions Required.. .............................................................. 7 

Section 4.12 Member Quorum. ........................................................................................... 7 

Section 4.13  Acts of the Members.. ................................................................................... 7 

Section 4.14 Manner of Voting ........................................................................................... 7 

Section 4.15  Adjournments and Continuances. .................................................................. 8 

Section 4.16 Curing of Brown Act Violations. .................................................................... 8 

Section 4.17 Electronic Meetings.. ...................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE 5 BOARD OF DIRECTORS ......................................................................................... 9 

Section 5.01 Powers. .......................................................................................................... 9 

Section 5.02 Number and Qualification of Directors. .......................................................... 9 

Section 5.03 Election and Term of Office of Directors.. ...................................................... 9 

Section 5.04 Ex-Officio Members.. ..................................................................................... 9 

Section 5.05 Limitation on Interested Persons. ...................................................................10 

Section 5.06 Vacancies.. ....................................................................................................10 

Section 5.07 Resignation.. .................................................................................................10 

Section 5.08 Removal. .......................................................................................................10 

Section 5.09 Annual and Regular Meetings .......................................................................10 

Section 5.10 Special Meetings. ..........................................................................................10 

Section 5.11 Notice of Annual and Special Meetings. .......................................................10 

Section 5.12 Waiver of Notice.. .........................................................................................11 

Section 5.13 Action at a Meeting; Quorum.. ......................................................................11 

Section 5.14 Telephone and Electronic Meetings. ..............................................................11 

Section 5.15 Standard of Care. ...........................................................................................11 



iii  

Section 5.16 Investments. ..................................................................................................12 

Section 5.17 Inspection.. ....................................................................................................12 

Section 5.18 Compensation................................................................................................12 

ARTICLE 6 COMMITTEES ........................................................................................................13 

Section 6.01 Standing Board Committees .........................................................................13 

Section 6.02 Advisory Committees. ...................................................................................13 

Section 6.03 Audit Committee. ..........................................................................................13 

Section 6.04 Meetings of Board Committees. ....................................................................14 

Section 6.05 Meetings of Advisory Committees.. ..............................................................14 

ARTICLE 7  OFFICERS ...............................................................................................................15 

Section 7.01 Officers. ........................................................................................................15 

Section 7.02 Election. ........................................................................................................15 

Section 7.03 Vacancies.. ....................................................................................................15 

Section 7.04 Resignation. .................................................................................................15 

Section 7.05 Removal.. ......................................................................................................15 

Section 7.06 President. ......................................................................................................15 

Section 7.07 Vice President. ..............................................................................................15 

Section 7.08 Secretary. ......................................................................................................15 

Section 7.09 Treasurer. ......................................................................................................15 

ARTICLE 8 CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS...................................................................................16 

Section 8.01 Loans. ...........................................................................................................16 

Section 8.02 Self-Dealing Transactions. ............................................................................16 

Section 8.03 Approval. ......................................................................................................16 

ARTICLE 9 INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE ...............................................................17 

Section 9.01 Right of Indemnity.. ......................................................................................17 

Section 9.02 Approval of Indemnity ..................................................................................17 

Section 9.03 Advancing Expenses. ....................................................................................17 



iv  

Section 9.04 Insurance. ......................................................................................................17 

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS ...............................................................................................18 

Section 10.01 Fiscal Year. .................................................................................................18 

Section 10.02 Contracts, Notes, and Checks. .....................................................................18 

Section 10.03 Representation of Corporate Shares. ............................................................18 

Section 10.04 Annual Reports to Members and Directors. .................................................18 

Section 10.05 Required Financial Audits.. .........................................................................19 

Section 10.06 Electronic Transmissions.. ...........................................................................19 

Section 10.07 Maintenance of Certain Records.. ................................................................19 

Section 10.08 Amendments. ..............................................................................................19 

Section 10.09 Governing Law............................................................................................19 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY ................................................................................................20 
 



1  

BYLAWS 
OF 

IEWORKS 
 

ARTICLE 1 
PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

The principal office of the corporation is located at 855 Base Line Road, Rialto, California. 
 

ARTICLE 2 
MEMBERSHIP 

Section 2.01 Classification of Members. The corporation shall have one class of voting 
members, designated as “Voting Members,” with voting rights as specified in these Bylaws. The 
qualifications of or eligibility requirements for membership and the rights and obligations of 
members shall be as provided in these Bylaws or under applicable law. The Board of Directors 
(“Board”) may, by resolution, establish one or more classes of nonvoting members, and provide  
for their rights and obligations. The Board may establish dues for voting and nonvoting members. 
Unless otherwise stated or established, members of the corporation are the agencies, and not the 
respective representatives that are designated by the agency.  

Section 2.02 Qualifications for Membership. Water agencies, community-based 
organizations, collective bargaining units, community college districts, and other water companies 
in the state of California shall be eligible to be voting members of the corporation. 

Section 2.03   Admission of Members. Any application for membership must be made in 
writing and may be submitted to the Board at any time. The Board, or a person or committee 
authorized by the Board, will review each application and, if appropriate, will certify that the 
applicant meets the qualifications for membership. Membership shall begin upon such certification 
and agreement to pay applicable member dues. Processes and procedures for confirmation and 
approval of the admission of new members shall be set by resolution of the Board.  

Section 2.04 Membership Dues, Fees, and Assessments. Each member must pay, within 
the time and on the conditions set by the Board, the dues, fees, and assessments in amounts to be 
fixed by the Board. Such dues, fees, and assessments shall be computed by a formula applied for 
all members of the class. 

2.04.1 Tiered Membership Status. The corporation may create a tier of 
membership(s) that require fees that are non-uniform in nature and creates a special designation for 
those member agencies that accept such designation and fees. Such fees and designations shall be set 
by resolution of the Board.  

Section 2.05 Members in Good Standing. Those members who have paid the required 
dues, fees, and assessments, if any, and who are not suspended, shall be members in good standing 
of the corporation. 

 



2  

Section 2.06 Membership Roster. The corporation shall keep a membership roster 
containing the name and last known street address, telephone number, and e-mail address of each 
member. The roster shall indicate whether the member is in good standing. A copy of the 
membership roster shall be kept at the corporation’s principal place of business. 

Section 2.07 Nonliability of Members. No member of the corporation shall be personally 
liable for the debts, liabilities, or obligations of the corporation. 

Section 2.08 Transferability of Memberships. No member may transfer a membership or 
any rights arising therefrom, and all rights as a member shall cease upon the member’s dissolution. 

Section 2.09 Designated Representatives. Any members of the corporation that are 
organizations shall exercise all of the rights and obligations of membership, including the right to 
vote, through a designated representative. Each member organization shall designate its 
representative in a writing executed by an authorized officer of the organization and delivered to 
the Secretary of this corporation. Such written designations shall be retained with the membership 
records of the corporation. Member organizations may change their designated representatives at 
any time, with 24 hours’ written notice prior to any vote of the Board. 

Section 2.10 Ex-Officio Members. The corporation may, as it desires, appoint ex-officio 
members that are not selected representatives of any respective member agency (“Ex-Officio”). 
Unless otherwise provided for, these members shall be voting members. There are no membership 
dues, fees, or assessments required to maintain the membership of ex-officio members. The 
nomination, election, termination, and ability to function without ex-officio members shall be done 
pursuant to Section 5.04 of these Bylaws.  

Section 2.11 Basis for Termination. Membership in the corporation shall terminate upon 
the occurrence of any of the following: 

 
(a) A member’s failure to pay dues, fees, or assessments (if any), within sixty 

(60) days after such member is sent written notice of failure to pay. A member may avoid such termination 
by paying the amount of delinquent dues or fees within the sixty-day period. 

(b) A member’s failure to continue to meet the qualifications for membership 
set forth in these Bylaws. 

(c) Upon a good faith determination by the Board that continued participation 
by the member in the corporation is not in the best interests of the corporation or in furtherance of 
its purposes. 

 Section 2.12 Termination Procedures. The following procedures shall apply in the  
case of a suspension or termination under parts (c) or (d) of subsection 2.11.1 above. 

2.12.1  The Board shall give the member at least 15 days’ prior written notice of the 
suspension or termination, the reasons for it, the effective date, and the date, time, and place (if any) 
of the hearing described in the next subsection. Notice given by mail must be given by first- class 
or registered mail to the last address of the member shown on the corporation’s records. 

 



3  

2.12.2. The member shall be given an opportunity to be heard, either orally or in 
writing, not less than five days before the effective date of the proposed suspension or termination, 
by the Board or a committee authorized by the Board to decide whether the proposed suspension or 
termination will take place. If the member does not appear and has not notified the Secretary of any 
adequate reason for not appearing, the suspension or termination shall be effective automatically on 
the proposed date of suspension or termination. 

2.12.3 Following the hearing date, the Board or the committee authorized by the 
Board shall decide whether the member should in fact be terminated, suspended, or sanctioned in 
some other manner. The member shall be promptly notified of the decision, and that decision shall be 
final. If the membership is terminated, all membership rights of such member in the corporation shall 
cease on the effective date in the written notice given pursuant to this Section. 

2.12.4 The Board may determine whether any prorated refund of dues shall be paid 
upon termination under this Section. 
  



4  

ARTICLE 3  
MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS 

Section 3.01 Voting Rights. Members of the corporation shall have the right to vote, as 
set forth in these Bylaws, on: 

(a) the election of directors; 

(b) the removal of directors without cause, pursuant to California Corporations 
Code Section 5222; 

(c) any amendment to these Bylaws that materially and adversely affects 
member voting rights, and any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, except for amendments 
permitted to be adopted by the Board alone under California Corporations Code Section 5812(b); 

(d) the disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the corporation; 

(e) any merger of the corporation; 

(f) any dissolution of the corporation; and 

(g) any other matters that are properly presented to the members for a vote, 
pursuant to the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Board Resolution, or by operation 
of the law. 

Section 3.02 Inspection Rights 

3.02.1 Articles and Bylaws. The corporation shall keep at its principal office in 
Rialto, California, current copies of its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, which shall be open 
to inspection by members during regular business hours of the business.   

3.02.2 Accounting Records and Minutes. On written request, any member (in 
person or through an agent or attorney) may inspect and copy the accounting books and records of 
the corporation, at any reasonable time, for a purpose that is reasonably related to the member’s 
interests as a member. 

3.02.3 Review of Records by Members of the Public. All agendas, minutes, and 
supporting documents will be made available for review and inspection by any member of the public 
as required by the California Brown Act. 

3.02.4 Membership Records. The right of members to have access to membership 
records shall be governed by California Corporations Code Sections 6330 through 6332. 

Section 3.03 Other Rights. In addition to the rights described in these Bylaws, members 
of the corporation shall have any other rights afforded voting members under the California 
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law. 

 
  



5  

ARTICLE 4 
MEMBER MEETINGS AND VOTING 

Section 4.01 Brown Act. The meetings of the corporation shall be subject to the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (Chapter 9 commencing with section 54950) of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
Cal. Govt. Code) (“Brown Act”). 

Section 4.02 Member Vote. Each member in good standing shall have one vote on each 
matter on which members are entitled to vote. 

Section 4.03 Annual Member Meetings. Members shall hold an annual meeting at a date, 
place, and time determined by the Board for the purpose of electing directors and transacting such 
business as may be brought before the meeting. Any annual meeting of the Board of Directors 
shall be noticed as a regular meeting under the requirements of the Brown Act.  

Section 4.04 Time and Manner of Notice of Regular Meetings.  

4.04.1  Regular meetings of the corporation’s Board of Directors shall be noticed 
and conducted in-line with the requirements of the Brown Act. The corporation shall, by 
resolution, provide the time and place for regular meetings. If an otherwise regular meeting is held 
at a time or place other than that specified for regular meetings, it is a special or emergency 
meeting. At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting the corporation shall post an agenda 
containing a brief general description of the items to be discussed or transacted at the meeting. 

4.04.2 Non-Agendized Items. Any items not agendized pursuant to the Brown Act 
may only be considered by the Board during a regular meeting if within the exceptions codified in 
Cal. Gov’t. Code § 54954.2. 

4.04.3 Public Comment. The corporation shall provide an opportunity for members 
of the public to address the Board before or during the Board’s consideration of an item.  

4.04.4  Notice to Any Voting Members. The Secretary shall give written notice of 
each member meeting to each member who, as of the record date for notice of such meeting, would 
be entitled to vote at such meeting. The notice shall be delivered to the last address or e-mail address 
provided by the member to the corporation for purposes of notice, either personally, by electronic 
transmission, or by first class, registered, or certified mail not less than ten (10), nor more than 
ninety (90), days before the date of such meeting, or by any other mail not less than twenty (20), 
nor more than ninety (90), days before the date of such meeting. Notice shall not be given by 
electronic transmission by the corporation after either of the following: (a) the corporation is 
unable to deliver two consecutive notices to the member by that means, or (b) the inability to so 
deliver the notices to the member becomes known to the Secretary, any assistant secretary, the 
transfer agent, or other person responsible for the giving of the notice. 

Section 4.05 Special Meetings of Members 

4.05.1 Special meetings of the corporation’s Board of Directors shall be noticed 
and conducted in-line with the requirements of the Brown Act.  

4.05.2 Who May Call Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may 
be called by the presiding officer, or a majority of the members of the Board. 



6  

4.05.3 Procedures for Calling Special Meetings Requested by Members. If a 
special meeting is called by the presiding officer or a majority of the Board, the requesting members 
shall deliver a written notice specifying the business proposed to be transacted along with the time 
and place of the special meeting. Any special meeting must be noticed pursuant to the Brown Act, 
at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time of the meeting. All special meetings must be 
conducted pursuant to the Brown Act.  

4.05.4 Public Comment. The corporation shall provide an opportunity for members 
of the public to address the Board before or during the Board’s consideration of an item.  

Section 4.06 Meetings Called Pursuant to Emergency Situation. The corporation may 
call emergency meetings without abiding by regular notice requirements of the Brown Act in 
emergency situations as provided for by Cal. Gov’t. Code § 54956.5. 

Section 4.07 Closed Session. The corporation may hold closed sessions during its 
meetings as provided for by the Brown Act. All closed session items must be properly agendized 
pursuant to the requirements of the Brown Act. After a closed session meeting, the corporation 
shall reconvene to open session and report any action taken as required by the Brown Act.  

Section 4.08 Contents of Agenda of Meeting. The notice shall state the place, date, and 
time of the meeting and in the case of special meetings, the general nature of the business to be 
transacted, and no other business may be transacted. In the case of the annual meeting, the notice 
shall state the names of all those who are nominees for director as of the date of the notice, and those 
matters which the Board, as of the date of the notice, intends to present for action by the members, 
but any proper matter may also be presented at the annual meeting. 

Section 4.09 Congregations or Writings as Meetings. The majority of the Board of 
Directors of the corporation shall not meet, discuss items, take action, or sign a document binding 
the corporation at a congregation that is not noticed or conducted pursuant to the Brown Act, or via 
written means (including e-mail) outside of a meeting of the Board of Directors in violation of the 
Brown Act.  

4.09.1 Exceptions. So long as members of the Board do not discuss amongst 
themselves specific issues within the jurisdiction of the corporation, the following meeting types 
shall not constitute a violation of the Brown Act if a majority of the Board is present:  

(a) Conferences/Retreats  

(b) Other Public Meetings 

(c) Meetings of other Legislative Bodies  

(d) Social/Ceremonial Occasions (See Cal. Gov’t. Code § 54952.2).  

4.09.2 Serial Meetings. Communications that involve less than a quorum, but when 
taken as a whole, involve a majority of the Board of Directors, are prohibited.   

Section 4.10 Record Dates. For any notice, vote at a meeting, or exercise of rights, the 
Board may, by advance resolution, fix a record date and only members of record on that date shall 
be entitled to such notice, vote, or exercise of rights, notwithstanding any transfer of any membership 



7  

on the books of the corporation after the record date, except as otherwise required by law. For this 
purpose, a person or organization holding a membership as of the close of business on the record 
date shall be deemed to be a member of record. 

4.10.1 Notice of Record Dates of Meetings. Unless otherwise fixed by the Board, 
the record date for the purpose of determining which members are entitled to notice of any member 
meeting, shall be the business day of the corporation preceding the date on which notice for that 
meeting is given. If the Board, by resolution, fixes a record date for notice, the record date shall not 
be less than ten (10), nor more than ninety (90), days before the date of the meeting. 

4.10.2 Voting at Meetings. Unless otherwise fixed by the Board, the record date for 
determining which members are entitled to vote at any member meeting shall be the date of that 
meeting. If the Board, by resolution, fixes a record date for voting, the record date shall not be more 
than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting. 

4.10.3 Other Lawful Action. Unless otherwise fixed by the Board, the record date 
for determining which members are entitled to exercise any rights in respect to any other lawful 
action shall be the date on which the Board adopts the resolution relating thereto or the sixtieth 
(60th) day before the date of such other lawful action, whichever is later. If the Board, by resolution, 
fixes a record date for determining entitlements, the record date shall not be more than sixty (60) 
days before the date of such other lawful action. 

Section 4.11 Notice of Certain Actions Required. Approval by the members of any of 
the following actions, other than by unanimous approval by those entitled to vote, is valid only if 
the notice of the meeting at which the vote occurred specified the general nature of the action: (a) 
to remove a director without cause, (b) to fill a vacancy on the Board, (c) to amend the 
corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, or (d) to voluntarily dissolve the corporation. 

Section 4.12 Member Quorum. Fifty percent (50%) of members then in effect, or seven 
(7) members of the full thirteen-member Board of Directors (if at full capacity) shall constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of voting members. However, in no event shall 
the required quorum be less than two directors. A meeting at which a quorum was initially present 
may continue to conduct business notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough members to leave less 
than a quorum, so long as any action taken thereafter is approved by a majority of the required 
quorum. 

Section 4.13   Acts of the Members. Every decision or act made or done by a majority of 
voting members present and voting at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present is the act 
of the members, unless the law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, require a greater 
number. 

Section 4.14 Manner of Voting 
4.14.1 Voting at Meetings. Voting at meetings must be done by voice, and may 

not be done by secret ballot. 

4.14.2 Proxy Voting Prohibited. Proxy voting shall not be permitted on any vote 
put to the members. 

4.14.3 Cumulative Voting Prohibited. Cumulative voting shall not be permitted. 



8  

Section 4.15   Adjournments and Continuances. Regular and Special meetings may be 
adjourned to a later date. The Board must observe requirements of the Brown Act in any 
adjournment and later continuance of the meeting.  

Section 4.16 Curing of Brown Act Violations. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of a 
timely demand to cure a Brown Act violation, the corporation shall either (1) cure or (2) inform an 
interested party in writing of its decision not to cure. If the corporation takes no action within the 
thirty-day period, it will be deemed to be a decision not to cure, and the corporation must give the 
interested party information regarding its decision not to sure. (See Cal. Gov’t. Code § 54960.1) 

Section 4.17 Electronic Meetings. A meeting of the members may be conducted, in whole 
or in part, by electronic transmission or by electronic video screen communication as provided by 
the Brown Act. 

4.17.1 Public Health Emergencies. At any time that the national, state, or local 
authorities have found that there is a public health emergency necessitating social distancing, all 
meetings may be held on a virtual platform. The meeting shall still be noticed, agendized, and held 
pursuant to the Brown Act, and any applicable state or local public health orders, executive orders, 
and other applicable orders.  
  



9  

ARTICLE 5 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 5.01 Powers. The corporation shall have powers to the full extent allowed by law. 
Subject to any limitations in the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws relating to actions 
requiring approval by the members, all powers and activities of the corporation shall be exercised 
and conducted by or under the direction of the Board. The Board may delegate the management 
of activities of the corporation to any person or persons, management company, or committee 
however composed, provided that the activities and affairs of the corporation shall be managed, 
and all corporate powers shall be exercised under the ultimate direction of the Board. 

Section 5.02 Number and Qualification of Directors. The number of directors shall be 
thirteen members with the exact authorized number of directors to be fixed by resolution of the 
Board and shall be composed as follows: up to eight (8) seats for water/wastewater agencies, up 
to two (2) seats for community-based groups, two (2) seats for Ex-Officio directors, and one (1) 
seat for an IEWorks student/alumnus or worker representative. Any amendment to the preceding 
sentence shall require the approval of the members. With the exception of the initial directors 
appointed by  the incorporator, all directors shall be chosen from among the signatory and Ex-
Officio members of the Corporation. 

5.02.1 Selection of Student/Alumni Members. Selection and appointment of Student/Alumni 
Members shall be governed by the procedure and process fixed by resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation.  

Section 5.03 Election and Term of Office of Directors. Except for the initial directors 
appointed by the incorporator, Ex-Officio directors, and the Student/Alumni Member, the directors 
of the corporation shall be representatives selected by their respective member agency and shall 
serve for a term of two (2) years. Directors designated by a member agency shall hold office until 
a successor has been elected and qualified. 

Section 5.04 Ex-Officio Members. Ex-Officio members do not require designation by any 
respective member agencies, and unless stated otherwise, shall be voting members on the 
Corporation’s Board of Directors. The nomination, election, termination, and operation of the 
Corporation without Ex-Officio members shall be done pursuant to this Section.  

5.04.1 Nomination of Ex-Officio Members. Ex-Officio members of the Board of 
Directors shall be nominated by the regular (non-Ex-Officio) members of the Board of Directors. 
A nomination shall be made by one member of the Corporation’s regular (non-Ex-Officio) Directors 
and shall be seconded or confirmed by a separate member of the regular (non-Ex-Officio) Directors 
of the Corporation. 

5.04.2 Election and Term of Ex-Officio Members. After nomination, Ex-Officio 
members of the Board of Directors shall be elected by a simple majority vote (51%) the regular 
(non-Ex-Officio) members of the Board of Directors and shall serve for a term of five (5) years.  

5.04.3 Existing Ex-Officio Members. Channing Hawkins and Gracie Torres are 
recognized by the corporation as ex-officio members due to the integral role each played in the 
formation of the corporation. Both Existing Ex-Officio members are granted voting status on 
the Board of Directors.  



10  

5.04.4 Operation of Corporation without Ex-Officio Members. In the instance 
the Corporation, through its Board of Directors elects to operate with Ex-Officio Members, the two 
(2) seats allocated for Ex-Officio members shall be reallocated as follows: One (1) seat shall become 
an additional seat to be filled by a water/wastewater agency, one (1) seat shall become an additional 
seat to be filled by a community-based group. 

5.04.5 Termination of Ex-Officio Members. Membership of Ex-Officio Members 
in the corporation shall automatically terminate at the end of the five (5) year term or shall 
terminate if a written notice memorializing an Ex-Officio Member’s desire to resign is served on 
the Corporation before the member’s term expires. The Corporation also may terminate the Ex-
Officio member’s membership upon a good faith determination that continued participation by the 
Ex-Officio Member is not in the best interests of the corporation or the furtherance of its purpose 
by a simple majority vote (51%) of its non-Ex-Officio members of its Board of Directors.  

Section 5.05 Limitation on Interested Persons. No more than 49% of the directors of the 
corporation may be interested persons. An interested person is: 

(a) any person currently being compensated by the corporation for services 
rendered to it within the previous twelve months, whether as a full-time or part-time employee, 
independent contractor, or otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation paid to a director in 
his or her capacity as director; and 

(b) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in- 
law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person. 

Section 5.06 Vacancies. A vacancy shall be deemed to exist on the Board whenever the 
actual number of directors is less than the authorized number for any reason. Vacancies may be 
filled by the remaining directors (unless the vacancy was created by removal of a director by the 
members) or by the members for the unexpired portion of the term. 

Section 5.07 Resignation. Resignations shall be effective upon receipt in writing by the 
President, the Secretary, or the Board unless a later effective date is specified in the resignation. 
Except upon notice to the California Attorney General, no director may resign if the corporation 
would be left without any duly elected directors. 

Section 5.08 Removal. The members may remove any director at any time, with or without 
cause. Removal of a director shall require a majority of all voting members at the time of the 
decision.  

Section 5.09 Annual and Regular Meetings. Annual meetings of the Board shall be held 
at least once a year. Annual meetings shall be called by the presiding officer or any two directors 
and noticed in accordance with Section 4.03. The time and place of regular meetings of the Board 
shall be set by resolution by the corporation and shall be noticed pursuant to the Brown Act.  

Section 5.10 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the 
presiding officer, or a majority of the Board of the corporation and shall be noticed and conducted 
pursuant to Section 4.05.  

Section 5.11 Notice of Annual and Special Meetings. Notice of the annual meeting and 
any special meetings of the Board shall state the date, time, and place of the meeting and shall be 



11  

given to each director at least four days before the meeting if given by first-class mail or forty-eight 
(48) hours before the meeting if delivered personally or by telephone, including a voice messaging 
system, or by other electronic transmission such as e-mail. All other meetings shall be noticed 
pursuant to Section 4.05 of these bylaws. 

Section 5.12 Waiver of Notice. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who, 
either before or after the meeting, signs a waiver of notice, a written consent to the holding of the 
meeting, or an approval of the minutes of the meeting. All such waivers, consents, and approvals 
shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting. Notice of a 
meeting need not be given to any director who attends the meeting without protesting the lack of 
notice before or at the beginning of the meeting. 

Section 5.13 Action at a Meeting; Quorum. Fifty percent (50%) of the directors then in 
office, or seven (7) members if the Board is at full capacity (thirteen members) shall constitute a 
quorum of the Board for the transaction of business. However, in no event shall the required quorum 
be less than two directors. Every action taken or decision made by a majority of the directors present 
at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, except as otherwise provided  
in Section 5.05 (filling Board vacancies), Section 5.13 (taking action without a meeting), Section 
6.01 (appointing Board Committees), Section 8.03 (approving self-dealing transactions), Section 
9.02 (approving indemnification), and Section 10.08 (amending Bylaws) of these Bylaws or in the 
California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law. Directors at a meeting at which a quorum is 
initially present may continue to transact business, despite the withdrawal of directors, if any action 
taken or decision made is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for such meeting, 
or a greater number as required by law or by these Bylaws. 

Section 5.14 Telephone and Electronic Meetings. Directors may participate in a meeting 
through use of conference telephone or video screen communication so long as all participating 
directors can hear each other. Directors may participate in a meeting through the use of other 
electronic transmission so long as all of the following apply: 

(a) each director participating in the meeting can communicate concurrently 
with all of the other directors, and 

(b) each director is provided with the means of participating in all matters before 
the Board, including the capacity to propose, or to interpose an objection to, a specific action to be 
taken by the corporation. 

Section 5.15 Standard of Care. A director shall perform the duties of a director, including 
duties as a member of any Board Committee, in good faith, in a manner such director believes to be 
in the best interest of the corporation and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an 
ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances. 

In performing such duties of a director, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, 
opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each 
case prepared or presented by: 

(a) one or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the director 
believes to be reliable and competent as to the matters presented; 

(b) counsel, independent accountants, or other persons as to matters which the 



12  

director believes to be within such person’s professional or expert competence; or 

(c) a committee upon which the director does not serve composed exclusively of 
any or any combination of directors, persons described in paragraph (a), or persons described in 
paragraph (b), as to matters within its designated authority, provided that the director believes such 
committee merits confidence; so long as in any such case, the director acts in good faith after 
reasonable inquiry when the need therefor is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge 
that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted. 

Except as provided in California Corporations Code Section 5233, a person who performs 
the duties of a director in accordance with this Section shall have no liability based upon any 
alleged failure to discharge that person’s obligations as a director, including, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, any actions or omissions which exceed or defeat a public or charitable 
purpose to which the corporation, or assets held by the corporation, are dedicated. 

Section 5.16 Investments. Except with respect to assets held for use or used directly in 
conducting the corporation’s public or charitable programs, in investing, reinvesting, purchasing, 
acquiring, exchanging, selling, and managing the corporation’s investments, the Board shall avoid 
speculation, looking instead to the permanent disposition of the funds, considering the probable 
income, as well as the probable safety of the corporation’s capital. No investment violates this 
Section where it conforms to provisions authorizing such investment contained in an instrument or 
agreement pursuant to which the assets were contributed to the corporation. 

Section 5.17 Inspection. Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time 
to inspect and copy all books, records, and documents, and to inspect the physical properties of the 
corporation. 

Section 5.18 Compensation. The directors shall not be compensated for their services as 
directors. The Board may authorize the advance or reimbursement to a director of actual reasonable 
expenses incurred in performing his or her duties as a director, including expenses for attending 
meetings of the Board and Board Committees.  



13  

ARTICLE 6 
COMMITTEES 

Section 6.01 Standing Board Committees. The Board may, by resolution adopted by a 
majority of the directors then in office, create one or more Standing Board Committees, to serve at 
the pleasure of the Board. Appointments to such  Board Committees shall be by a majority vote of 
the directors then in office. Meetings of Standing Committees shall be conducted pursuant to the 
Brown Act. Standing Board Committees may be given all the authority of the Board, except for the 
powers to: 

(a) set the number of directors within a range specified in these Bylaws; 

(b) elect directors or remove directors without cause; 
 
(c) create any other Board Committees or appoint the members of any Board 

Committees; 

(d) fill vacancies on the Board or any Board Committee; 

(e) fix compensation of directors for serving on the Board or any Board; 

(f) amend the Articles of Incorporation; 

(g) amend or repeal these Bylaws or adopt new Bylaws; 

(h) amend or repeal any resolution of the Board which by its express terms is not 
so amendable or repealable; or approve any merger, reorganization, voluntary 
dissolution, or disposition of substantially all of the assets of the corporation. 

Section 6.02 Advisory Committees. The Board may establish Advisory Committees to the 
Board. The members of any Advisory Committee may consist of directors or non-directors and may 
be appointed as the Board determines. Advisory Committees may not exercise the authority of the 
Board to make decisions on behalf of the corporation but shall be restricted to making 
recommendations to the Board or Board Committees and implementing Board or Board Committee 
decisions and policies under the supervision and control of the Board or Board Committee. 

Section 6.03 Audit Committee. For any tax year in which the corporation is required to 
have an audit pursuant to Section 10.05, because it has gross revenues of $2,000,000 or more, the 
corporation shall have an Audit Committee appointed by the Board. The Audit Committee may 
include both directors and non-directors, subject to the following limitations: (a) a majority of the 
members of the Audit Committee may not consist of members of the Finance Committee; (b) the 
chair of the Audit Committee may not be a member of the Finance Committee; (c) the Audit 
Committee may not include any member of the staff or the President or Treasurer; (d) the Audit  
Committee may not include any person who has a material financial interest in any entity doing 
business with the corporation; and (e) Audit Committee members may not receive compensation 
greater than the compensation paid to directors for their Board service. 

6.03.1 Advisory Committees Subject to Brown Act. The following types of 
Advisory Committee meetings shall be conducted pursuant to the requirements of the Brown Act: 

(a) Advisory Committee meetings composed of members of the Board of Directors 



14  

and non-members of the Board of Directors. (i.e., corporation staff, non-voting members of the 
corporation, worker representatives) 

(b) Advisory Committee meetings where more than a quorum of the Board of 
Directors is present  

(c) Advisory Committee meetings where the committee has continuing jurisdiction 
over specific issues presented to the corporation. 

(d) Advisory meetings that has a regular meeting schedule fixed by the corporation’s 
Board of Directors. 

6.03.2 Advisory Committees not Subject to the Brown Act Where an Advisory 
Committee is composed solely of less than a quorum of members of the Board of Directors, and has 
a limited term objective, the meeting need not be noticed or conducted pursuant to the Brown Act. 
(“Ad Hoc Committee”) 

Section 6.04 Meetings of Board Committees. Meetings and actions of Board Committees 
shall be governed by the provisions of Article 5 of these Bylaws concerning meetings and actions of 
the Board with such changes in the content of those Bylaws as are necessary to substitute the Board 
Committee and its members for the Board and its members. Minutes shall be kept of each meeting 
of a Board Committee and shall be filed with the corporate records. 

Section 6.05 Meetings of Advisory Committees. Advisory Committees may determine 
their own meeting rules and whether minutes shall be kept, subject to the authority of the Board. 
  



15  

ARTICLE 7 
OFFICERS 

Section 7.01 Officers. The officers of the corporation shall be a President, a Vice President, 
a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers with such titles and duties as shall be determined 
by the Board. Any number of offices may be held by the same person, except that neither the 
Secretary nor the Treasurer may serve concurrently as the President or the Chair of the Board. All 
officers shall be elected from among the directors of the corporation. 

Section 7.02 Election. Except for the initial officers appointed by the incorporator, who 
shall serve as long as required by the Corporation, the officers of the corporation shall be elected by 
the Board and shall serve for two (2) years, at the pleasure of the Board. 

7.02.1 Process for Election. The election of officers shall be fixed pursuant to 
the process and procedure set forth by resolution by the board of directors of the corporation.  

Section 7.03 Vacancies. A vacancy in any office for any reason shall be filled in the same 
manner as these Bylaws provide for election to that office. 

Section 7.04 Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to 
the Board. The resignation shall take effect on the date the notice is received or at any later time 
specified in the notice. Any resignation shall be without prejudice to any rights of the corporation 
under any contract to which the officer is a party. 

Section 7.05 Removal. The Board may remove any officer with or without cause. 

Section 7.06 President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation 
and shall, subject to the control of the Board, generally supervise, direct, and control the 
corporation’s activities, affairs, and officers. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board. 
The President shall have the general powers and duties of management usually vested in the office 
of President of the corporation and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed 
by the Board or these Bylaws. 

Section 7.07 Vice President. The Vice President shall, in the absence of the President, 
perform all the duties of the President and shall have such other powers and duties as may be 
prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws. 

Section 7.08 Secretary. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a full and complete 
record of the proceedings of the members and the Board and its committees, shall supervise the 
giving of such notices as may be proper or necessary, shall keep or cause to be kept the minute 
books of the corporation, shall keep or cause to be kept a record of the corporation’s members, and 
shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws. 

Section 7.09 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the chief financial officer of the corporation 
and shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and 
accounts of the corporation’s properties and transactions. The Treasurer shall supervise the charge 
and custody of all funds of the corporation, shall supervise the deposit of such funds in the manner 
prescribed by the Board, shall render reports and accountings as required, and shall have such other 
powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws. 
  



16  

ARTICLE 8 
CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS 

Section 8.01 Loans. The corporation shall not lend any money or property to, or guarantee 
the obligation of, any director or officer, except as permitted by California Corporations Code 
Section 5236. The corporation may, however, advance money to a director or officer of the 
corporation or of its parent or any subsidiary for expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred in 
the performance of the duties of such director or officer so long as such individual would be entitled 
to be reimbursed for such expenses absent that advance. 

Section 8.02 Self-Dealing Transactions. The Board shall not approve or permit the 
corporation to engage in any self-dealing transaction, except as provided in Section 8.03 below. A 
self-dealing transaction is a transaction to which the corporation is a party and in which one or more 
of its directors has a material financial interest and which is not described in California Corporations 
Code Section 5233(b). 

Section 8.03 Approval. Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 5233(d), the 
corporation may engage in a transaction that would otherwise be a self-dealing transaction if the 
transaction is approved by a court or by the California Attorney General; or if the Board determines, 
before the transaction, that: 

(a) the corporation is entering into the transaction for its own benefit; 

(b) the transaction is fair and reasonable to the corporation at the time; and 

(c) after reasonable investigation, the Board determines that it could not have 
obtained a more advantageous arrangement with reasonable effort under the circumstances. 

Such determinations must be made by the Board in good faith, with knowledge of the material facts 
concerning the transaction and the director’s interest in the transaction, and by a vote of a majority 
of the directors then in office, without counting the vote of the interested director or directors. 

Where it is not reasonably practicable to obtain approval of the Board before entering into a 
self-dealing transaction, a Board Committee may approve such transaction in a manner consistent with 
the requirements above; provided that, at its next meeting, the full Board determines in good faith 
that the Board Committee’s approval of the transaction was consistent with the requirements above 
and that it was not reasonably practicable to obtain advance approval by the full Board, and ratifies 
the transaction by a majority of the directors then in office without counting the vote of any 
interested director. 
  



17  

ARTICLE 9 
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

Section 9.01 Right of Indemnity. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the corporation may 
indemnify its agents against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually 
and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any proceeding by reason of the fact that such 
person is or was an agent of the corporation. “Agent” shall have the same meaning as in California 
Corporations Code Section 5238(a) and shall include the corporation’s directors, officers, 
employees, and other agents. “Proceeding” shall have the same meaning as in Section 5238(a) and 
shall include any threatened, pending, or completed action or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, 
administrative, or investigative; “expenses” shall have the same meaning as in Section 5238(a) and 
shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees.  

Section 9.02 Approval of Indemnity. On written request to the Board by any agent seeking 
indemnification, to the extent that the agent has been successful on the merits, the Board shall 
promptly authorize indemnification in accordance with California Corporations Code Section 
5238(d). Otherwise, the Board shall promptly determine, by a majority vote of a quorum consisting 
of directors who are not parties to the proceeding, whether the agent has met the applicable standard 
of conduct stated in Section 5238(b) or Section 5238(c), and, if so, may authorize indemnification 
to the extent permitted thereby. If the Board cannot do so because there is no quorum of directors 
who are not a party to the proceeding for which indemnification is sought the Board shall promptly 
call a meeting of the members. At that meeting, the members shall determine whether, in the specific 
case, the applicable standard of conduct in Section 5238(b) or Section 5238(c) has been met, and, if 
so, the members shall authorize indemnification to the extent permitted thereby. 

Section 9.03 Advancing Expenses. The Board may authorize the advance of expenses 
incurred by or on behalf of an agent of the corporation in defending any proceeding prior to final 
disposition, if the Board finds that: 

(a) the requested advances are reasonable in amount under the circumstances; 
and 

(b) before any advance is made, the agent submits a written undertaking 
satisfactory to the Board to repay the advance unless it is ultimately determined that the agent is 
entitled to indemnification for the expenses under this Article. 

Section 9.04 Insurance. The corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain 
insurance on behalf of any agent against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent in 
such capacity or arising out of the agent’s status as such, and such insurance may provide for  
coverage against liabilities beyond the corporation’s power to indemnify the agent under law; 
provided, however, that the corporation shall have no power to purchase and maintain such 
insurance to indemnify any agent of the corporation for a violation of California Corporations Code 
Section 5233. 
 



18  

ARTICLE 10  
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.01 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall end each year on June 30. 
Each fiscal year shall begin on July 1.  

Section 10.02 Contracts, Notes, and Checks. All contracts entered into on behalf of the 
corporation must be authorized by the Board or the person or persons on whom such power may be 
conferred by the Board. Except as required by law, every check, draft, promissory note, money order, 
or other evidence of indebtedness of the corporation shall be signed by the person or persons on whom 
such power may be conferred by the Board. 

Section 10.03 Representation of Corporate Shares. The President and Vice President of 
the corporation are each authorized to vote, represent, and exercise on behalf of the corporation all 
rights incident to any and all shares of any other corporation held by the corporation. The 
authority hereby granted to these officers may be exercised either by such officers in person or by 
any other person authorized to do so by proxy or power of attorney duly executed by said officers. 

Section 10.04 Annual Reports to Members and Directors. The Treasurer shall provide an 
annual written report to all of the members and directors within 120 days after the end of the 
corporation’s fiscal year. The report shall contain the following information: 

(a) the assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the corporation as of 
the end of the fiscal year; 

(b) the principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during 
the fiscal year; 

(c) the revenue or receipts of the corporation, both unrestricted and restricted 
to a particular purpose, for the fiscal year; 

(d) the expenses or disbursements of the corporation, for both general and 
restricted purposes, for the fiscal year; 

(e) any transaction during the previous fiscal year between the corporation (or its 
parent or subsidiary, if any) and any of its directors or officers (or the directors or officers of its parent 
or subsidiary, if any) or any holder of more than ten percent of the voting power of the corporation 
(or its parent or subsidiary, if any), involving (i) more than $50,000 or (ii) any of a number of such 
transactions, which in the aggregate involved more than $50,000, in which the same person had a 
direct or indirect material financial interest. For each transaction, the report must disclose the names 
of the interested persons involved in such transaction, stating such person’s relationship to the 
corporation, the nature of such person’s interest in the transaction and, where practicable, the value 
of such interest; and 

(f) the amount and circumstances of any indemnifications or advances 
aggregating more than $10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any director or officer of the 
corporation pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 5238; provided that no such report 
need be made in the case of indemnification approved by the members pursuant to California 
Corporations Code Section 5238(e). 



19  

 

This annual report shall be accompanied by any report thereon of independent accountants 
or, if there is no such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of the corporation that such 
statements were prepared without an audit from the books and records of the corporation. 

Section 10.05 Required Financial Audits. The corporation shall obtain a financial audit by 
an independent certified public accountant for any tax year in which it receives or accrues gross 
revenues of $2,000,000 or more, excluding income from any governmental entity for which the 
governmental entity requires an accounting. Any audited financial statements obtained by the 
corporation shall be made available for inspection by the Attorney General and the general public 
within nine months after the close of the fiscal year to which the statements relate. 

Section 10.06 Electronic Transmissions. Subject to procedures that the Board may adopt, 
the term “written” and “in writing” as used in these Bylaws includes electronic transmissions, such 
as facsimile or e-mail, provided that: (a) for electronic transmissions from the corporation, the 
corporation has obtained an unrevoked written consent from the recipient to the use of such means 
of communication; (b) for electronic transmissions to the corporation, the corporation has in effect 
reasonable measures to verify that the sender is the individual purporting to send the transmission; 
and (c) for electronic transmissions both from and to the corporation, the transmission creates a 
record that is capable of retention, retrieval, and review, and may be rendered into clearly legible 
tangible form. 

Section 10.07 Maintenance of Certain Records. The corporation shall keep at its principal 
office the original or a copy of its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws as amended to date. The 
corporation shall keep its accounting books and records, and minutes of the proceedings of the 
members, Board, and Board Committees at its principal office or at such other place as designated 
by the Board. The minutes and the accounting books and records shall be kept either in printed form 
or in any other form capable of being converted to printed form within a reasonable time. A record of 
each member’s name, address, telephone number, email address, and class of membership shall also 
be kept at the principal office of the corporation or at such other place as designated by the Board. 

Section 10.08 Amendments. Amendments to these Bylaws may be adopted by the vote of 
a majority of the directors then in office or by the unanimous written consent of the directors, 
provided that the members must approve any Bylaws amendment that would materially and 
adversely affect the rights of the members as to voting or transfer. Proposed bylaw amendments 
shall be submitted in writing to each director at least one week prior to their vote on or written 
consent to such amendments. 

Section 10.09 Governing Law. In all matters not specified in these Bylaws, or in the event 
these Bylaws shall not comply with applicable law, the California Nonprofit Public Benefit  
Corporation Law, and the California Brown Actas then in effect shall apply. 



CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, the undersigned, certify that I am presently the duly elected and acting Secretary of Inland 
Empire Works (“IEWorks”), a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, and that the above 
Bylaws, consisting of 22 pages, are the Bylaws of the corporation as adopted by approval of the 
Board of Directors at their meeting on _____________, 2022.

Date: _________________ __________________________
Gracie Torres, Secretary



INFORMATION 
ITEM

3A 



Engineering and Construction 
Management Project Updates

Jason Marseilles, PE

Manager of Engineering and Construction Management

July 2022



2

Project 
Location

Map



3

Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades 
Project Goal: Rehabilitate/Repair Existing Assets

Total Project Budget: $2.5M
Project Completion: January 2025
Design Percent Complete: 10%

Phase
Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change Orders

Design
(Current)

Stantec 
Consulting, Inc.

$287k 0%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Biesiada, Josh

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Trott, Megan

Administrative Assistant: Wallace & Associates

Inspector: TBD

Existing Generator



4

RP-3 Basin Improvements
Project Goal: Increase Efficiency

Total Project Budget: $1.8M
Project Completion: July 2022

Construction Percent Complete: 75%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Ignacio, Joel

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Wood & Associates

Administrative Assistant: GK & Associates

Inspector: Jones, Nick

Butterfly Valve

Phase
Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design Carollo $137k 21%

Construction
(Current)

Metro 
Builders/James 

McMinn, Inc.
$705k 4%



5

NRW Pipeline Relining Along Cucamonga Creek 
Project Goal: Extend Asset  Life

Total Project Budget: $2.3M
Project Completion: May 2022

Construction Percent Complete: 100%
Phase

Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change Orders

Design
Michael Baker 
International

$127k 305%

Construction
(Current)

Charles King 
Company

$1.4M -0.57%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Zughbi, Jamal

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Ferrer, Karen

Administrative Assistant: Wood Consulting 

Inspector: GK & Associates



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3B 



INNOVATIVE FEDERAL STRATEGIES, LLC 
 Comprehensive Government Relations 

511 C Street, NE • Washington, DC 20002 • 202-347-5990 • Fax 202-347-5941 

MEMORANDUM 

To: IEUA Community and Legislative Affairs Committee 

From: Letitia White, Jean Denton, and Drew Tatum 

Date: June 30, 2022 

Re: June Monthly Legislative Update  

Supreme Court Curtails EPA Powers 

In one of the final cases of the term, the Supreme Court handed down a ruling related to the 

Environmental Protection Agency’s authority to regulate carbon emissions from existing power 

plants. In a 6 to 3 opinion, the Supreme Court curbed EPA’s powers to broadly regulate carbon 

emissions through a narrow reading of the Clean Air Act. 

In 2015, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) promulgated the Clean Power Plan rule, 

which addressed carbon dioxide emissions from existing coal- and natural-gas fired power 

plants. For authority, the Agency cited Section 111 of the Clean Air Act, which, although known 

as the New Source Performance Standards program, also authorizes regulation of certain 

pollutants from existing sources under Section 111(d). 

The Supreme Court stayed the Clean Power Plan in 2016, preventing the rule from taking effect. 

The Trump administration repealed the rule, which never went into effect, in 2019 saying the 

plan had exceeded the EPA’s statutory authority.  

In the case, the Court said there is “every reason to ‘hesitate before concluding that Congress’ 

meant to confer on EPA the authority it claims under Section 111(d).” The Court held that the 

EPA’s authority did not extend to determining the “best system of emission reduction” as 

identified in the Clean Power Plan.  

The 6-3 ruling interpreting the US Clean Air Act is likely to keep the administration from 

imposing the type of wide-ranging emissions-cutting plan the EPA tried to put in place when 

Barack Obama was president. The ruling could have a broad impact and affect other regulatory 

agencies. 

The majority said that, while the EPA can regulate power plant emissions, the agency can’t try to 

shift power generation away from fossil-fuel plants to cleaner sources, as Obama’s Clean Power 

Plan sought to do. Writing for the court, Chief Justice John Roberts said Congress needs to speak 

more explicitly to give an agency that much power. 

Roberts pointed to the major questions doctrine, saying “we presume that Congress intends to 

make major policy decisions itself, not leave those decisions to agencies.” 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 2 | P a g e  

 

The Supreme Court case grew out of a group of legal challenges to the Trump rule. A federal 

appeals court in Washington said the Trump plan was based on an overly restrictive read of the 

EPA’s authority. 

 

That prompted backers of the Trump rule -- companies including Westmoreland Mining 

Holdings, and 19 Republican-led states led by West Virginia -- to turn to the nation’s highest 

court. Their appeal said the lower court ruling would let the EPA remake the US electric system, 

going well beyond what Congress intended when it enacted the Clean Air Act in 1970. 

 

 

Biden Administration Unveils CWA Section 401 Certification Rule Update 

On June 1, the Biden administration unveiled a proposal that would give states more veto power 

over interstate pipelines, highways, coal terminals, and other projects that it thinks could pollute 

water within their borders—a rollback of a Trump-era regulation. 

 

If finalized, the Environmental Protection Agency’s proposed Water Quality Certification 

Improvement Rule (https://www.epa.gov/cwa-401/proposed-clean-water-act-section-401-water-

quality-certification-improvement-rule) would scrap the Trump administration’s 2020 Clean 

Water Act Section 401 Certification Rule, which remains in effect and resulted in a cascade of 

litigation that reached US Supreme Court earlier this year. 

 

The Clean Water Act gives states the right to certify any federally-permitted infrastructure 

project that might discharge pollution into protected stream waters or wetlands. Under the Biden 

administration’s proposal, a state would be allowed to determine whether “any aspect” of an 

entire federally-licensed pipeline or other project will comply with its water quality standards 

and then deny certification of the project within state borders if it chooses. 

 

States and tribes would also be able to waive certification, grant it, or do so with conditions. 

 

That’s a change from the Trump rule, which limits each state’s scope of review to specific 

possible point-sources of water pollution associated with a federally-licensed infrastructure 

project. The Trump rule limits states to evaluating possible discharges into waters of the US, or 

WOTUS. 

 

“Any aspect” of an infrastructure project potentially leading to water pollution can be reviewed 

by states as reasons to deny certification under the Biden administration’s proposed rule. 

 

The proposal expands a state’s ability to stymie a major infrastructure project by giving them the 

right to deny certification of a project if there is the potential for pollution into waters that are not 

protected under the Clean Water Act. Those waters are considered to be under state or tribal 

jurisdiction. 

 

Potential pollution into those state waters can’t trigger the requirement for state approval of a 

pipeline or other project, but a state can use it as a reason to veto a project under the draft rule. 

 

But “once the certification requirement is triggered by the prerequisite of a point source 

https://www.epa.gov/cwa-401/proposed-clean-water-act-section-401-water-quality-certification-improvement-rule
https://www.epa.gov/cwa-401/proposed-clean-water-act-section-401-water-quality-certification-improvement-rule


Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 3 | P a g e  

 

discharge into a water of the United States,” a state may deny a project certification “based on 

the potential impact of the ‘activity as a whole’ on waters of the United States and other state or 

tribal waters,” the proposed rule says. 

 

The proposed rule empowers “states, territories and tribes to use congressionally granted 

authority to protect precious water resources while supporting much-needed infrastructure 

projects,” EPA Administrator Michael Regan said in a statement. 

 

The proposal applies to any project needing a Clean Water Act dredge-and-fill permit from the 

Army Corps of Engineers, a hydroelectric license from the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission, or a Clean Water Act pollution discharge permit from the EPA. 

 

The proposed new rule is the Biden administration’s attempt to reverse Trump-era environmental 

regulation rollbacks that would have resulted in more potential air and water pollution. 

 

Section 401 traditionally gave states and tribes the power to limit or reject projects that may 

pollute lakes, rivers, and other waters protected under the Clean Water Act. 

 

In 2020, then-EPA Administrator Andrew Wheeler acknowledged the Trump rule’s purpose was 

to “accelerate and promote the construction of pipelines and other important energy 

infrastructure,” according to Suquamish Tribe v. Wheeler, a lawsuit filed in 2021 challenging the 

rule. 

 

At around the same time, the Trump administration finalized a different rule that vastly cut the 

number of streams and wetlands that qualify as waters of the US, lifting Clean Water Act 

protections for streams across the country and allowing more possible pollution. Federal courts 

tossed out that rule in 2021. 

 

Eight states controlled by Republicans said in a Supreme Court filing in Louisiana v. American 

Rivers that some states “abuse” their Section 401 certification authority. Among the most notable 

offenses, they said, was Washington state’s denial of the Millennium Bulk Terminals’ coal 

export terminal certification. 

 

The Trump Section 401 rule remains in effect, but in legal limbo. The rule was vacated in 2021 

by a judge in the US District Court for the Northern District of California, but the eight states led 

by Louisiana intervened and requested that the US Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit stay 

the ruling. 

 

The US Supreme Court granted the stay in April after the Ninth Circuit denied it, keeping the 

Trump-era rule in effect. 

 

Sen. Shelley Moore Capito (R-WV) and other Republicans on the Senate Environment and 

Public Works Committee in 2021 introduced a bill (S. 3277) that would codify the Trump rule. 

 

“Section 401 is meant to protect water quality. It is not a broad license for states to block 

economic activity or infrastructure based upon political factors,” Capito said at the time. 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 4 | P a g e  

 

 

But environmental groups hailed the EPA’s move Thursday as a remedy for the Trump-era rule, 

which they say supports the fossil fuel industry. 

 

“EPA’s proposed rule restores the primary role Congress intended for tribes and states to have in 

reviewing and rejecting projects that would threaten their water quality,” Moneen Nasmith, 

senior attorney at Earthjustice, said in a statement. 

 

  

President signs SCOTUS Security Bill After Arrest Near Kavanaugh’s House 

A bill that would grant security to families of Supreme Court justices was signed into law on 

June 16, 2022. 

 

The Supreme Court Police Parity Act would provide police protection to the immediate families 

of the nine justices and other officers of the court, if the "Marshal determines such protection is 

necessary," the legislation says. 

 

The legislation was introduced by Sen. John Cornyn, a Texas Republican, and unanimously 

passed the Senate last month. 

 

"Threats to the physical safety of Supreme Court Justices and their families are disgraceful, and 

attempts to intimidate and influence the independence of our judiciary cannot be tolerated," 

Cornyn said in a previous statement. 

 

A day before the bill was signed, the Justice Department indicted a California man for attempting 

to murder Supreme Court Justice Brett Kavanaugh. The man was arrested near Kavanaugh's 

Maryland home. 

 

Antisemitic fliers were also found near Kavanaugh's home, the Montgomery County Police 

Department confirmed. 

 

In May, a protest and vigil was organized at Justice Samuel Alito's house following a leak of a 

draft Supreme Court opinion that, if unchanged, would overturn Roe v. Wade, the 1973 case that 

federally legalized abortions. 

 

 

Biden Officials Ended International Travel COVID Testing Requirement 

The Biden administration announced on June 10th it is ending a requirement that international 

travelers test negative for the coronavirus before coming to the United States.   

 

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) “has determined based on the science 

and data that this requirement is no longer necessary at this time,” a senior administration official 

said. 

 

The requirement ended at 12:01 a.m. Sunday, June 12, 2022.  

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 5 | P a g e  

 

Some experts noted the requirement did not seem to be serving much purpose, given that 

COVID-19 is already circulating widely within the United States. The travel industry had also 

lobbied to remove the requirement, saying it was no longer needed.   

 

The move is another sign of a new era of COVID-19 where some of the measures designed when 

the virus was seen as an overwhelming crisis are being wound down.   

 

Biden administration officials have touted that even as cases rose in recent weeks, deaths have 

stayed largely flat, an indication of the protection against severe disease offered by vaccines and 

booster shots, as well as treatments such as the Pfizer medication Paxlovid.   

 

Still, the administration said it is leaving the door open to reinstating the requirement if a 

concerning new variant prompts the need.   

 

“If there is a need to reinstate a pre-departure testing requirement — including due to a new, 

concerning variant — CDC will not hesitate to act,” the senior administration official said. 

 

“Unlike many of his other speeches, he did not ad-lib much,” Cheney said of his delivery that 

day. 

 

“He recited them without significant alteration except one. Even then on Jan. 7 2021, the day 

after the attack on the U.S. Capitol, the president still could not bring himself to say, ‘But this 

election is now over.’” 

 

 

House Appropriators Began Work on FY23 Appropriations Bills  

On June 15, the House began consideration of more than $1.6 trillion in proposed government 

funding for the coming fiscal year, as Democratic leadership set their sights on passing all of the 

chamber’s annual appropriations bills before recess in August.  

 

The House Appropriations Committee has released all twelve appropriations bills. We have 

included links to summaries of those bills, as released by the Committee, along with links to the 

bill text and committee report for each bill.  

 

• Agriculture (bill text / report / summary)  

• Commerce Justice Science (bill text / report / summary) 

• Defense (bill text / report / summary) 

• Energy and Water (bill text / report / summary) 

• Financial Services and General Government (bill text / report / summary) 

• Homeland Security (bill text / report / summary) 

• Interior /Environment (bill text / report / summary) 

• Labor-HHS-Education (bill text / report / summary) 

• Legislative Branch (bill text / report / summary) 

• Military Construction and Veterans Affairs (bill text / report / summary) 

• State – Foreign Operations (bill text / report / summary) 

• Transportation-HUD  (bill text / report / summary) 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/8239
https://www.congress.gov/117/crpt/hrpt392/CRPT-117hrpt392.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-agriculture-rural-development
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP19/20220622/114926/BILLS-117-SC-AP-FY2023-CJS-FiscalYear2023CommerceJusticeScienceandRelatedAgenciesAppropriationsBill.pdf
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP00/20220628/114966/HMKP-117-AP00-20220628-SD004.PDF
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-commerce-justice-science-and
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/8236
https://www.congress.gov/117/crpt/hrpt388/CRPT-117hrpt388.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-defense-funding-bill
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP10/20220621/114915/BILLS-117HR-SC-AP-FY2023-EnergyWater.pdf
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP00/20220628/114966/HMKP-117-AP00-20220628-SD005.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-energy-and-water-development
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/8254
https://www.congress.gov/117/crpt/hrpt393/CRPT-117hrpt393.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-financial-services-and
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP00/20220624/114951/BILLS-117-FC-AP-FY2023-AP00-HomelandSecurity.pdf
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP00/20220624/114951/HMKP-117-AP00-20220624-SD003.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-homeland-security-funding
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP06/20220621/114914/BILLS-117-SC-AP-FY2023-Interior-AppropsInteriorDraftBillFY2023.pdf
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP00/20220629/114967/HMKP-117-AP00-20220629-SD003.PDF
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-interior-environment-and
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP07/20220623/114920/BILLS-117--AP--LaborHHS.pdf
http://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP00/20220630/114968/HMKP-117-AP00-20220630-SD003.PDF
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-labor-health-and-human
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/8237
https://www.congress.gov/117/crpt/hrpt389/CRPT-117hrpt389.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-legislative-branch-funding
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/8238
https://www.congress.gov/117/crpt/hrpt391/CRPT-117hrpt391.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-military-construction
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP04/20220622/114943/BILLS-1171--AP--StateForOp.pdf
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP00/20220629/114967/HMKP-117-AP00-20220629-SD002.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-state-foreign-operations-and
https://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP20/20220623/114921/BILLS-117--AP--TransHUD.pdf
http://docs.house.gov/meetings/AP/AP00/20220630/114968/HMKP-117-AP00-20220630-SD002.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/news/press-releases/appropriations-committee-releases-fiscal-year-2023-transportation-and-housing


Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 6 | P a g e  

 

 

During the week of June 13, Appropriators moved on Democratic-backed funding proposals for 

a variety of areas like defense, security for the U.S. Capitol, the Food and Drug Administration 

(FDA), child nutrition programs and veterans affairs, among others. 

 

House negotiators began FY23 markups with a closed-door markup on the draft defense funding 

bill, which outlines proposed fiscal year 2023 funding for the Defense Department and offices 

like the Central Intelligence Agency and the National Security Agency.  

 

The bill, which passed the House Appropriations Subcommittee on Defense, totals more than 

$761 billion in proposed funding, up $32.207 billion from the previous year’s spending levels.   

 

The legislation includes investments in national security and assistance to Ukraine, as well as 

proposals to shutter the detention facility at Guantanamo Bay and limit U.S. involvement in 

Yemen. 

 

The price tag is in line with what President Biden requested in his fiscal 2023 budget, but 

Republicans are expected to press for more money amid rising inflation.  

 

Sen. Jon Tester (D-MT), who chairs the Senate Appropriations defense subcommittee, said this 

week that his panel is planning to kick up its work “in earnest” in the coming days, but added 

that he thinks “the Senate bill is going to be different” from the House version.  

 

During the week of June 6, the House kickstarted the annual appropriations process with a 

deeming resolution instead of a budget resolution, as lawmakers on both sides of the aisle have 

struggled to reach an agreement on spending top lines. 

 

Democrats say the newly passed resolution, which has prompted mixed reactions from 

Republicans, aligns with Biden’s requested $1.6 trillion in discretionary spending for fiscal year 

2023, which will begin Oct. 1. Negotiators say the procedure allows appropriators to begin their 

work in a timely fashion, while leaders work out a larger agreement.  

 

“We know that that will not be … the ultimate number, but it is a number that will give us a 

parameter in which the House appropriations process can go forward and we can put bills on the 

floor in July, after they’re completed this month by the Appropriations Committee,” House 

Majority Leader Steny Hoyer (D-MD) said last week.  

 

In hearings, Rep. Kay Granger (R-TX), the Ranking Member of the House Appropriations 

Committee, knocked Democratic-backed draft legislation she compared to a “liberal wish list,” 

while echoing concerns from other Republicans over price tags.  

 

Republicans have drawn battle lines around certain policy proposals in each bill, but have 

highlighted their overall disagreement with the funding allocations set by the House without 

input from Republicans.   

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 7 | P a g e  

 

The Senate, by contrast, has yet to unveil any of its dozen annual government funding bills, in 

absence of a larger top line agreement, which already has prompted finger-pointing among 

leaders.  

 

In remarks this month, Senate Appropriations Chairman Patrick Leahy (D-VT) called it a “bad 

sign that the Republicans say they want a continuing resolution to the end of the year.”  

 

The Senate Appropriations Committee may either move to mark up or release their bills and 

“explanatory statements” next month. Chairman Leahy has said he will be setting and providing 

subcommittee allocations without a bipartisan, bicameral appropriations deal. “'I’m just going to 

give all the subcommittee chairs an allocation, and tell them to mark up their bills,” he said. “I 

hope the Republicans will join us, and they will be welcome to any of the markups and the 

negotiations, but we can’t sit around and wait forever.” 

  

Note that last year, Republicans signaled after the first few markups that they would not allow 

for the consideration of additional appropriations bills until there was a negotiated topline 

agreement, which forced the Committee to release the remaining 9 appropriations bills. At the 

time, Senate Appropriations Committee Ranking Member Richard Shelby (R-AL) said, “We 

need a topline agreement that does not shortchange our nation’s defense and a willingness to set 

aside partisan politics.  Only then will we be able to produce full year bills for the American 

people.” 

  

If Republicans were to threaten to block appropriations markups again this year, the Committee 

could be forced to release the text of the draft bills and explanatory statements in place of 

Committee reports. 

 

If lawmakers are unable to pass its spending bills by the annual deadline at the end of September, 

Congress will likely resort to a continuing resolution, which allows the government to remain 

funded under the prior year’s fiscal levels, to avoid a shutdown.  

 

Last year, Congress passed three continuing resolutions to avert a shutdown before passing a 

$1.5 trillion spending omnibus package for fiscal year 2022 in March.  

 

The delayed passage followed months-long disagreements over issues like parity between 

defense and nondefense spending levels and legacy riders with restrictions in areas such as 

abortion and marijuana.  

 

But, with the critical midterm elections in November, and both of the Senate’s top appropriators 

retiring, the pressure is on both sides to tie up their work in a timely fashion.   

 

 

Veterans Toxic Exposure Bill Stalls as Lawmakers Head Home 

A bipartisan bill to expand veterans’ health care and disability benefits will not make it to 

President Joe Biden’s desk until after the July Fourth congressional recess because of a minor tax 

provision.  

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 8 | P a g e  

 

The House is supposed to originate tax bills under the Constitution. So when the Senate passed 

the bill last week with the tax provision in it, the move created a blue slip problem requiring the 

bill to be reconsidered.  

 

One June 24, Senate Veterans’ Affairs Chairman Jon Tester, one of the bill’s chief sponsors, 

made a rescue attempt as the Senate was preparing to adjourn for the two-week recess. He asked 

unanimous consent for the Senate to request the return of the papers from the House, and 

notwithstanding the lack of receipt of the papers that the Senate immediately agree to a 

resolution dropping the problematic tax provision from the bill. 

 

“Tonight we have a chance to get it back on track,” the Montana Democrat said on the floor. 

“We have a chance to get it to the House without further delay.” 

 

But without agreement from all 100 senators, there was no chance of fixing the bill before the 

recess. And Sen. Patrick J. Toomey, (R-PA), promptly lodged an objection. 

 

The Senate amended the House-passed bill on June 16 in an 84-14 vote. The measure would 

make it easier for veterans exposed to burn pits or other toxic substances to access benefits by 

presuming that certain types of cancer and respiratory illnesses are connected to service-related 

exposure. The Congressional Budget Office estimates that the bill would cost $278.5 billion over 

a decade. 

 

The bill also includes provisions designed to improve care at Veterans Affairs facilities, like one 

that would give the VA secretary authority to buy out private service contracts of health care 

professionals if the individual agrees to work at a rural VA facility for at least four years.  

 

The provision that triggered the blue slip issue would have exempted health care professionals 

receiving those contract buyouts from having to pay taxes on those funds.  

 

The tax provision is “de minimis at best,” Tester told reporters Thursday. “Somebody should 

have caught it long before we got to this point.”  

 

Senate staff indicated the House had the text since May but didn’t notify the Senate of the blue 

slip issue until Tuesday. The House had passed an earlier, slightly more expansive version in 

March.  

 

Speaking to reporters at her weekly news conference Thursday, Speaker Nancy Pelosi said only 

that Congress would send the bill to Biden “soon.” 

 

First, the Senate will have to go through the process of passing the bill again. 

 

“Assuming that nobody plays any games, that means the president probably won’t be able to sign 

it until the middle of July,” Tester said.  

 

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 9 | P a g e  

 

Biden Signs Gun Bill into Law 

President Biden signed into law a bipartisan gun bill intended to prevent dangerous people from 

accessing firearms and increase investments in the nation’s mental health system, ending nearly 

three decades of gridlock in Washington over how to address gun violence in the United States. 

 

Final passage of the legislation in Congress came one month after a mass shooting at an 

elementary school in Uvalde, Texas left 19 children and two teachers dead, a horror that 

galvanized a bipartisan group of lawmakers to strike a narrow compromise. 

 

“God willing,” Mr. Biden said as he put his pen down on Saturday morning, “it’s going to save a 

lot of lives.” 

 

The president acknowledged that the legislation fell far short of the sweeping measures he had 

pushed for, but he said it included some long-sought priorities. 

 

“When it seems impossible to get anything done in Washington, we are doing something 

consequential,” Mr. Biden said. 

 

The gun legislation will expand the background check system for prospective gun buyers under 

the age of 21, giving authorities up to 10 business days to examine juvenile and mental health 

records. It sets aside millions of dollars so states can fund intervention programs, such as mental 

health and drug courts, and carry out so-called red flag laws that allow authorities to temporarily 

confiscate guns from any person found by a judge to be too dangerous to possess them. 

 

It pours more federal money into mental health resources in communities and schools across the 

country, and it sets aside millions for school safety. The legislation also toughens laws against 

the trafficking of guns and straw purchasing, the practice of buying a gun on behalf of someone 

barred from purchasing one. And for the first time, it includes serious or recent dating partners in 

a ban on domestic abusers buying firearms, tightening what is known as the boyfriend loophole. 

 

“I think the whole country was yearning for something real to happen after the terrible 

tragedies,” Senator Chuck Schumer of New York, the majority leader, said in an interview this 

past week. Before the Texas shooting, he had spent time in Buffalo, counseling grieving families 

after a racist attack at a supermarket left 10 Black people dead. 

 

Mr. Biden said he would host both families affected by gun violence and the lawmakers who 

helped craft the measure at an event at the White House in July, after the Fourth of July recess, 

and suggested the compromise was a sign that more bipartisan efforts were possible. 

 

“Their message to us was: Do something,” Mr. Biden said of the families of gun violence 

victims. “How many times have you heard that? Just do something. For God’s sake, just do 

something.” 

 

“Well, today, we did,” the president added. 

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 10 | P a g e  

 

For Mr. Biden and others, the compromise reflected decades of work on gun safety legislation. 

After 20 children were shot and killed in Newtown, Conn., in 2012, Mr. Biden, the vice president 

at the time, was tasked by President Barack Obama with drafting a list of executive actions on 

guns. Mr. Biden also called on lawmakers to expand background checks, but an effort to pass 

that measure and other gun control provisions failed in the Senate. 

 

After the shootings in Buffalo and Uvalde, Mr. Biden called for reinstating a ban on assault 

weapons — a restriction he helped pass as a senator that was in effect for a decade before it 

expired in 2004. 

 

Most of the congressional efforts on guns have been stymied in recent years by Republican 

opposition, as the party has largely united to block new gun control measures and prevent that 

legislation from reaching the 60-vote threshold needed for most bills to advance in the Senate. 

As lawmakers reeled from the images that came out of the Texas shooting, however, party 

leaders offered their tacit blessing to a small coalition of senators eager to strike a compromise. 

 

During four weeks of intense negotiations over the legislation, Senators Kyrsten Sinema of 

Arizona and Christopher S. Murphy of Connecticut, both Democrats, joined Senators John 

Cornyn of Texas and Thom Tillis of North Carolina, both Republicans, to strike a deal. 

 

But even as Mr. Biden used a rare evening address this month to call on Congress to take 

sweeping action, such as banning assault weapons and prohibiting the sale of semiautomatic 

rifles to people under 21, senators focused on measures that could secure enough Republican 

support to allow for passage in the Senate. 

 

They set aside calls for a federal red flag law, instead agreeing to $750 million in federal grant 

funding to help states carry out those laws and fund crisis intervention programs. Lawmakers 

also agreed to allow the enhanced background checks for younger buyers to expire after a decade 

and let their successors debate extending it, a tactic that led the assault weapons ban to end in 

2004. 

 

And while lawmakers and activists have long fought to close the boyfriend loophole, negotiators 

also agreed that first-time misdemeanor offenders could regain their ability to purchase a firearm 

after five years as long as they did not commit any other violent offense. (The ban previously 

applied only to domestic abusers who had lived with, been married to or had a child with the 

victim.) 

 

“I have to say that this bill doesn’t do everything we would like to do,” Speaker Nancy Pelosi 

said in a floor speech on Friday. But, she added, “It is a necessary step to honor our solemn duty 

as lawmakers to protect and defend the American people.” 

 

Ultimately, 15 Senate Republicans supported the measure, including Mitch McConnell of 

Kentucky, the minority leader. Fourteen House Republicans voted for it.  

 

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 11 | P a g e  

 

Appropriators Include Rider to Extend Title 42 

A pandemic-related immigration restriction called Title 42 would effectively stay in place until 

after the Covid public health emergency is over under an annual Homeland Security funding bill. 

 

On June 24, the House Appropriations Committee advanced its fiscal 2023 Homeland Security 

appropriations bill in a 32-25 vote, after adding an amendment to ban the processing of migrants 

who would have been expelled under Title 42 authorities. Title 42 is a pandemic policy that has 

allowed officials to quickly expel migrants and asylum seekers at the border. The Biden 

administration wanted to end the program, but a federal court blocked that move in May. 

 

Republicans led by Rep. Dan Newhouse (R-WA) sought to solidify the program’s standing by 

attaching an amendment to the must-pass government funding bill. Democrats criticized the 

measure but allowed it to be adopted by a voice vote, avoiding a roll call that would have put 

each member on record. 

 

Lawmakers are still in the early stages of working on fiscal 2023 funding bills, as House 

appropriators markup bills that Republicans warn would have no hope of garnering 60 votes in 

the Senate. 

 

Newhouse’s measure would bar funding to process people stopped at the border who would have 

been processed under Title 42 authorities, until six months after the end of the public health 

emergency declaration for the Covid-19 pandemic. The Biden administration renewed the 

declaration for another 90-day period on April 12 and could continue renewing it. 

 

The amendment would offer additional time for border officials to prepare for “what could be a 

turning point for border operations,” Newhouse said, warning of an influx of migrants when Title 

42 ends. 

 

With the Biden administration seeking to end the policy, Republicans have sought to attach Title 

42 votes to must-pass pieces of legislation, including the Homeland Security funding bill and a 

long-stalled Senate coronavirus supplemental spending bill. 

 

Subcommittee Chair Lucille Roybal-Allard (D-CA) criticized the measure, saying Title 42 isn’t 

used as an effective immigration policy. Under the policy, migrants can be expelled quickly, but 

because they’re “not considered to have been removed,” there’s an incentive to make “repeated 

attempts to come back,” Roybal-Allard said. 

 

Border officials are “continuously distracted by migrants who they encounter and expel again 

and again,” she said. 

 

Overall, the Homeland Security funding bill would provide $60.3 billion under its main funding 

allocation, a $2.7 billion increase over the current level. It includes an additional $20 billion for 

major disaster response and recovery. 

 

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 12 | P a g e  

 

EPA, Interior Apply Biden Justice40 Equity Plan to 137 Programs 

The EPA and the Interior Department are applying President Joe Biden’s Justice40 equity effort 

to nearly 140 programs to steer more federal benefits to disadvantaged populations under 

programs to reduce lead, increase access to clean water, and restore mining areas and 

ecosystems. 

 

The announcement by the two agencies on Friday, June 24 is a significant expansion of Biden’s 

effort, which calls for funneling 40% of the overall benefits of clean energy, fighting climate 

change, affordable housing, and other federal funding to disadvantaged communities. 

 

Lists from the Interior and Environmental Protection Agency include many existing programs 

funded under last year’s bipartisan infrastructure package, including those addressing per- and 

polyfluoroalkyl substances, or PFAS, in drinking water; efforts to remove lead from drinking 

water service lines; and the Clean School Bus Program to transition schools to zero- and low-

emission buses. 

 

The 72 EPA programs now covered under Justice40 include several agency programs already 

swept into the effort a year ago, including clean water and drinking water State Revolving Funds; 

Superfund and Brownfields cleanups; and programs to reduce lead in drinking water and 

emissions from diesel engines. 

 

Additional EPA programs now being brought into the equity effort include pollution prevention 

grants, the Toxic Release Inventory (TRI) program tracking chemical releases; funding under the 

Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) program; the sewer overflow control program; and 

a general assistance program for tribal communities, according to EPA’s list (available here) 

released Friday. 

 

The EPA has committed to “not just meet but exceed the 40 percent goal of benefits flowing 

from investments to disadvantaged communities” under its Justice40-covered programs, the 

agency said in its announcement. 

 

This announcement also wraps 65 Interior Department programs (list available here) into the 

Justice40 effort, including those under the Bureau of Land Management, National Park Service, 

Fish and Wildlife Service, and Bureau of Indian Affairs. 

 

Among the newly covered programs: the Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF), which 

expands parkland and bike and hiking trails and is financed mostly from revenue from offshore 

oil and gas leases. LWCF efforts under the Bureau of Land Management, Fish and Wildlife 

Service, and National Park Service are now considered covered by Justice40. 

 

Other covered Interior programs include the Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement’s 

Offshore Orphaned Infrastructure Decommissioning, which ensures offshore oil and gas wells 

are sealed; National Park Service programs promoting conservation and outdoor recreation; and 

15 Bureau of Indian Affairs programs including economic development, housing improvement, 

dam safety, and water sanitation. 

 

https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2022-06/Justice40%20Initiative%20Covered%20Programs%20List%20for%20the%20Environmental%20Protection%20Agency.pdf
https://doi.gov/justice40-initiative


Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 13 | P a g e  

 

Friday’s announcement expands upon an initial group of covered programs launched as Justice40 

pilot efforts in a July 2021 White House Office of Management interim guidance. Beyond EPA 

water grants and waste cleanup programs, the pilot covered various energy, transportation, 

climate change, and affordable housing efforts. 

 

The Biden administration considers a federal program covered under its Justice40 effort if it 

makes certain investments in any of seven categories: climate change, clean energy and energy 

efficiency, clean transit, affordable and sustainable housing, training and workforce 

development, remediation and reduction of legacy pollution, and development of “critical” clean 

water and wastewater infrastructure. 

 

Federal agencies have been directed to review about a dozen indications of disadvantaged 

populations to determine the communities that should benefit, including whether a community is 

low-income or suffering from high or persistent poverty, or high unemployment or 

underemployment. The array of federal investments for programs swept into the Justice40 effort 

can include grants and procurement spending, financing, staffing costs, or direct spending or 

benefits the federal government extends to individuals. 

 

 

Biden Officially Backs Gas Tax Holiday 

One June 22, President Biden announced his support for suspending the federal gas tax for the 

next 90 days.  

 

The federal gasoline tax is 18 cents per gallon, while state gas taxes average about 26 cents per 

gallon, according to the American Petroleum Institute.  

 

Biden also alluded to cuts to the 24-cent federal tax on diesel. 

His federal effort, however, is likely to face high hurdles in Congress amid skepticism from both 

Republicans and members of his own party. 

Opponents have raised concerns about whether the suspension will be effective — saying some 

of the cut may not get passed to consumers — and have also noted that the taxes the government 

collects goes toward the Highway Trust Fund, which helps pay for the country’s infrastructure 

needs.  

Biden sought to assuage those concerns in his speech, arguing it’s possible to address highway 

funding at the same time and calling on companies to pass the potential suspension to consumers. 

“With the tax revenues up this year and our deficit down over $1.6 trillion this year alone, we’ll 

still be able to fix our highways and bring down prices of gas, we can do both at the same time,” 

he said.  

“I call on the companies to pass this along — every penny of this 18-cent reduction — to the 

consumers. There’s no time now for profiteering,” he added.  



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 14 | P a g e  

 

In a White House press briefing on Wednesday, Energy Secretary Jennifer Granholm estimated 

that the highway trust fund would be hit by about $10 billion, but said that Biden is asking “that 

the trust fund be repaid.” 

She added that he was having conversations with Congress about how to do that.  

In his speech, Biden also acknowledged that gas tax suspensions won’t entirely resolve high 

prices — as gasoline averaged around $4.96 nationwide on Wednesday, but still said they would 

provide important savings.  

“I fully understand that a gas tax holiday alone is not going to fix the problem, but it will provide 

families some immediate relief, just a little bit of breathing room, as we continue working to 

bring down prices for the long haul.” 

The president also called for refiners to turn more crude oil into gasoline; refiners can make 

crude into a range of products that also include diesel or jet fuel. 

His comments come as Granholm prepares to meet with industry executives this week. Ahead of 

that meeting, Chevron CEO Mike Wirth criticized what he described as Biden administration 

efforts to “vilify” the industry. 

Biden said he hopes this meeting spurs near-term solutions to reduce prices.  

Speaker Nancy Pelosi (D-CA), who in the past expressed reservations about a gas tax 

suspension, said, “We will see where the consensus lies on a path forward” in a statement on 

Biden’s announcement.  

Meanwhile, Republicans have also expressed opposition to the idea — with Senate Minority 

Leader Mitch McConnell (R-KY) calling it an “ineffective stunt” in a statement. 

 

 

Supreme Court Strikes Down Roe v. Wade 

One June 24, the Supreme Court struck down Roe v. Wade, eliminating the nearly 50-year-old 

precedent that established a nationwide right to abortion and handing states authority to 

drastically limit or ban the procedure. 

 

The 5-3-1 decision by a majority of conservative justices to fundamentally reshape American 

society by overturning the landmark 1973 precedent is certain to ignite a political firestorm and 

yield a complex patchwork of state laws that will effectively block large swathes of the 

population from abortion access.  

 

The ruling upholds Mississippi’s 15-week abortion ban, which directly clashed with Roe’s 

requirement that states permit abortion up to the point of fetal viability, around 24 weeks, as well 

as Planned Parenthood v. Casey, a 1992 decision that reaffirmed Roe’s core holding. Chief 

Justice Roberts joined the majority’s judgement that would have allowed the Mississippi law to 

stand, but did not sign on to the majority opinion overturning Roe.  

https://thehill.com/people/jennifer-granholm/
https://gasprices.aaa.com/news/


Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 15 | P a g e  

 

 

“Roe was egregiously wrong from the start,” Justice Samuel Alito wrote for the majority. “Its 

reasoning was exceptionally weak, and the decision has had damaging consequences. And far 

from bringing about a national settlement of the abortion issue, Roe and Casey have enflamed 

debate and deepened division.” 

 

“It is time to heed the Constitution and return the issue of abortion to the people’s elected 

representatives,” he continued. 

 

More than two dozen states, primarily in the South and Midwest, are expected to tighten abortion 

access as a result of Roe falling, including 13 states with “trigger bans” set to take effect 

automatically or through minimal effort by state officials. 

 

In his opinion concurring with the judgement of the court, Chief Justice Roberts wrote, “If it is 

not necessary to decide more to dispose of a case, then it is necessary not to decide more. 

Perhaps we are not always perfect in following that command, and certainly there are cases that 

warrant an exception. But this is not one of them.” 

 

The blockbuster decision comes after a stunning breach of Supreme Court secrecy last month led 

to the public release of a draft version of the opinion, offering a glimpse at the coming 

dismantlement of abortion rights as well as the likely upheaval over a ruling that most Americans 

said they would oppose. 

 

Writing for the majority, Alito emphasizes that his ruling was a narrow one and would not 

spillover to decisions on issues like same-sex marriage (Obergefell v. Hodges), sex between gay 

couples (Lawrence v. Texas) and the right to contraception (Griswold v. Connecticut).   

 

“Nothing in this opinion should be understood to cast doubt on precedents that do not concern 

abortion,” Alito wrote. 

 

But the opinion will be almost certain to fuel questions about whether rights that are seen as 

having a thin historical record and which are not explicitly referenced in the Constitution — so-

called “unenumerated rights” — remain on a firm footing. 

 

Justice Clarence Thomas, in a concurring opinion not signed on to by any other justices, wrote 

that the reasoning underlying Friday’s opinion should call into question Obergefell, Lawrence, 

and Griswold, as they are currently understood. These rights are rooted in the well-established 

principle that the Due Process Clause of the 14th Amendment protects not only procedural 

safeguards but also substantive rights — a doctrine that Thomas has long rejected. 

 

“For that reason, in future cases, we should reconsider all this Court’s substantive due process 

precedents, including Griswold, Lawrence, and Obergefell. Because any substantive due process 

decision is demonstrably erroneous, we have a duty to correct the error established in those 

precedents,” Thomas wrote. “After overruling these demonstrably erroneous decisions, the 

question would remain whether other constitutional provisions guarantee the myriad rights that 

our substantive due process cases have generated.” 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 16 | P a g e  

 

 

The court’s liberal trio of Justices Stephen Breyer, Elena Kagan and Sonia Sotomayor, in a 

blistering 66-page dissent, condemned the majority for toppling the delicate balancing of 

interests that Roe and Casey sought to strike.  

 

“Today, the Court discards that balance,” they wrote in dissent. “It says that from the very 

moment of fertilization, a woman has no rights to speak of. A State can force her to bring a 

pregnancy to term, even at the steepest personal and familial costs.”  

 



Bill Number  Sponsors  Title and/or Summary  Summary/Status  Latest Action 

Status of 
individual 
bills included 
below 

Various  FY23 Appropriations Bills 

The House and Senate Appropriations 
Committee Deadlines have all passed as 
of the end of May for lawmakers to 
submit programmatic, language, and 
Community Project Funding / 
Congressionally Directed Spending 
Requests.  

The House Appropriations Committee 
completed markups of its versions of the 
FY23 bills in June.  
 
The Senate Appropriations Committee has 
not yet scheduled markups, though they 
could begin in late July. The Senate 
Appropriations Committee may also forgo 
markups and release their FY23 
“recommendations” without holding 
markups.  

Not yet 
available  Rep. Rosa DeLauro (D‐CT) 

Departments of Labor, Health and 
Human Services, and Education, and 
Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 

2023 

This bill provides FY23 appropriations to 
the Departments of Labor, Health and 
Human Services, and Education; and 
related agencies. 

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on June 30, 2022.  

Not yet 
available  Rep. David Price (D‐NC) 

Transportation, Housing and Urban 
Development, and Related Agencies 

Appropriations Act, 2023 

This bill provides FY23 appropriations to 
the Department of Transportation (DOT), 
the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), and several related 
agencies. 

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on June 30, 2022.  

Not yet 
available   Rep. Chellie Pingree (D‐ME) 

Department of the Interior, 
Environment, and Related Agencies 

Appropriations Act, 2023 

This bill provides FY23 appropriations for 
the Department of the Interior, the EPA, 
the Forest Service, the Department of 
Health and Human Services, and several 
related agencies. Funding for the US Fish 
and Wildlife Service is included in the 
legislation along with the Clean and 
Drinking Water State Revolving Funds.  

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on June 28, 2022.  

Not yet 
available  Rep. Matt Cartwright (D‐PA)  Commerce, Justice, and Science 

Appropriations Act, 2023 

This bill provides FY23 appropriations to 
the Department of Commerce, the 
Department of Justice (DOJ), the science 
agencies, and several related agencies. 
This bill provides funding for the CBDG 
program.  

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on June 28, 2022.  

Not yet 
available   Rep. Marcy Kaptur (D‐OH) 

Energy and Water Development and 
Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 

2023 

This bill provides FY23 appropriations for 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers civil works 
projects, Interior's Bureau of Reclamation 
(including WaterSMART funding), and the 
Department of Energy. The bill also 
provides appropriations to several 
independent agencies, including the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
and the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. 

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on June 28, 2022.  



H.R. 8239  Rep. Sanford Bishop (D‐GA) 
Agriculture, Rural Development, Food 
and Drug Administration, and Related 
Agencies Appropriations Act, 2023 

This bill provides FY23 appropriations for 
the Department of Agriculture (USDA), 
the Food and Drug Administration, the 
Federal Crop Insurance Corporation 
Fund, the Food and Nutrition Service, the 
Foreign Agricultural Service, and other 
related agencies.  

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on June 27, 2022.  

H.R. 8238  Rep. Debbie Wasserman 
Schultz (D‐FL) 

Military Construction, Veterans Affairs, 
and Related Agencies Appropriations 

Act, 2023 

This bill provides FY23 appropriations for 
DOD military construction, the 
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA), and 
several related agencies including the 
American Battle Monuments 
Commission, the U.S. Court of Appeals for 
Veterans Claims, Cemeterial Expenses of 
the Army, and 
the Armed Forces Retirement Home. 

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on June 27, 2022.  

Not yet 
available  

Rep. Lucille Roybal‐Allard 
(D‐CA) 

Department of Homeland Security 
Appropriations Act, 2023 

This bill provides FY2023 appropriations 
for the Department of Homeland 
Security. 

The legislation was reported out of 
committee on June 23, 2022.  

H.R.5376  President Joe Biden / 
Congressional Democrats  Build Back Better Act 

The Build Back Better Act (as passed by 
the House) proposes spending nearly $2 
trillion over a 10‐year period, with certain 
programs expiring after only a year or 
two to keep the total cost of the bill 
down.   

Efforts to pass the legislation in 2021 
through reconciliation were unsuccessful 
even after the House passed a modified 
version of the legislation.  Senate 
Democrats are attempting to negotiate a 
scaled down version of the legislation that 
would raise roughly $1 trillion in new 
revenue that would be split between deficit 
reduction and new spending.  

S. 29 / H.R. 
2008 

Sen. Amy Klobuchar (D‐MN) 
/ Rep. Angie Craig (D‐MN)  Local Water Protection Act 

A bill to amend the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act to 
reauthorize certain programs relating to 
nonpoint source management, and for 
other purposes. 

The Senate legislation was introduced on 
January 22, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Environment and Public 
Works. 
 
The legislation in the House was introduced 
on March 18, 2021 and passed the House 
under suspension of the rules on June 15.  

H.R 1563  Rep. Mike Garcia (R‐CA) 

To extend the authorities under the 
Water Infrastructure 

Improvements for the Nation Act of 
2016 providing operational flexibility, 
drought relief, and other benefits to 

the State of California 

The legislation would extend the 
authorities under the Water 
Infrastructure Improvements for the 
Nation Act of 2016 providing operational 
flexibility, drought relief, and other 
benefits to the State of California. The 
legislation would extend 4007 authorities 
through January 1, 2028. 

Introduced on March 3, 2021 and was 
referred to the House Committees on 
Natural Resources and Science, Space, and 
Technology. 



S.984 / 
H.R.2238 

Sen. Jeff Merkley (D‐OR) / 
Rep. Alan Lowenthal (D‐CA)  Break Free from Plastic Pollutions Act 

The comprehensive legislation would 
require corporations to take 
responsibility for pollution, incentivize 
corporations to make reusable products 
and items that can be recycled, create a 
nationwide beverage container refund 
program, and other items to promote 
recycling and other investments in U.S. 
domestic recycling. 

Introduced on March 25, 2021 and referred 
to the House Committees on Energy and 
Commerce, Ways and Means, 
Transportation, and Foreign Affairs. 

H.R 866  Rep. Ken Calvert (R‐CA)  FISH Act 

This bill gives the Fish and Wildlife Service 
(FWS) the sole authority to protect 
endangered or threatened species that 
are anadromous species (species of fish 
that spawn in fresh or estuarine waters 
and that migrate to ocean waters) or 
catadromous species (species of fish that 
spawn in ocean waters and migrate to 
fresh waters). Currently, the FWS shares 
this authority with the National Marine 
Fisheries Service. 

Introduced on February 5, 2021 and 
referred to the House Committee on 
Natural Resources. 

H.R.1881  Rep. John Garamendi (D‐CA) 
To amend the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act with respect to permitting 

terms, and for other purposes. 

The legislation would extend permit 
terms for publicly owned water 
infrastructure projects under the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) from 5 years to a 
maximum of 10 years.  

Introduced on March 12, 2021 and referred 
to the Committee on Transportation and 
Infrastructure.  

H.R. 1015 

Rep. Grace Napolitano (D‐
CA) 

Water Recycling Investment and 
Improvement Act 

This bill makes permanent, and otherwise 
revises, the Bureau of 
Reclamation's grant program for the 
funding of water recycling and reuse 
projects. Specifically, the bill removes 
priority under the program for projects in 
areas that, in the preceding four‐year 
period, have been (1) identified as 
experiencing severe, extreme, or 
exceptional drought; or (2) designated as 
a disaster area by a state. Additionally, 
the bill increases through FY2025 the 
authorization of appropriations for the 
program and otherwise revises provisions 
related to program funding. 

Introduced on February 11, 2021 and 
referred to the House Committee on 
Natural Resources.  



S.4231 
Sens. Dianne Feinstein (D‐
CA), Mark Kelly (D‐AZ), and 
Krysten Sinema (D‐AZ) 

Support To Rehydrate the Environment, 
Agriculture, and Municipalities Act or 

“STREAM” Act 

This legislation would authorize 
additional funding for water 
infrastructure; expedites recycling, 
desalination and non‐federal storage 
projects with less than $250 million in 
federal funding by allowing Interior to 
approve projects; eliminates the WIIN Act 
requirement that the Appropriations 
Committee must not only appropriate 
storage, recycling, and desal funding but 
approve funding awards for specific 
projects; and expedites future federal 
storage projects where Reclamation 
notifies Congress of completed feasibility 
studies each year to set up an orderly 
process to authorize projects.  

Sens. Feinstein, Kelly, and Sinema 
introduced the legislation on May 17, 2022.  
 
The Senate Energy and Natural Resources 
Subcommittee on Water & Power held a 
hearing on the legislation on Wednesday, 
May 25.  

H.R. 737  Rep. David Valadao (R‐CA)  RENEW WIIN Act 

Extends the authorities under the WIIN 
Act of 2016 providing operational 
flexibility, drought relief, and other 
benefits to the State of California. 

Introduced on February 2, 2021 and 
referred the House Committee on Natural 
Resources. 10 members of the CA 
delegation have cosponsored the 
legislation. 

H.R. 2515  Rep. Garret Graves (R‐LA) 
Building U.S. Infrastructure through 
Limited Delays and Efficient Reviews 

(BUILDER) Act 

The legislation modernizes the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and 
aims to make infrastructure project 
reviews more efficient, reduce project 
costs, and spur economic recovery. 

Introduced on April 14, 2021 and was 
referred to the House Committee on 
Natural Resources.  
 
The legislation's 46 cosponsors are all 
Republican, including members of GOP 
leadership. 

H.R. 939  Rep. Doug LaMalfa (R‐CA)  Combustion Avoidance along Rural 
Roads (CARR) Act 

The bill exempts wildfire mitigation 
activities conducted within 300 feet of a 
road from all laws governing 
environmental review of proposed 
agency actions or protection of 
endangered or threatened species.  

Introduced on February 8, 2021 and was 
referred to the House Committees on 
Natural Resources and Agriculture. 

H.R.3267  Rep. Brendan Boyle (D‐PA)  Protect Drinking Water from PFAS Act 

The bill amends the Safe Drinking Water 
Act to require the Administrator of the 
Environmental Protection Agency to 
publish a maximum contaminant level 
goal and promulgate a national primary 
drinking water regulation for total per‐ 
and polyfluoroalkyl substances. 

The legislation was introduced on May 17, 
2021 and referred to the House Committee 
on Energy and Commerce. 



H.R.3293  Rep.  Lisa Blunt Rochester 
(D‐DE) 

Low‐Income Water Customer Assistance 
Programs Act 

The legislation would amend the Safe 
Drinking Water Act and the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act to establish 
programs to assist low‐income 
households in maintaining access to 
drinking water and wastewater services. 

The legislation was introduced on May 18, 
2021 and referred to the relevant 
committees. The legislation has passed out 
of the House Energy and Commerce 
Committee by a vote of 32‐24 and now 
moves on to consideration on the House 
floor. 

S. 953   Sen. Ron Wyden (D‐OR)  Water for Conservation and Farming Act 

The legislation would create a  
Reclamation fund of $300M to support 
water recycling projects, water‐use 
efficiency projects and dam safety 
projects; the WaterSMART program to 
increase water supply reliability by 
funding infrastructure and conservation 
projects; establishes a grant program for 
any Reclamation States, Tribes, nonprofit 
conservation organizations, irrigation or 
water districts, and regional and local 
authorities to complete habitat 
restoration projects that improve 
watershed health and mitigate climate 
change; among other actions. 

Introduced on March 24, 2021 and referred 
to the Committee on Energy and Natural 
Resources. 

H.R. 3286  Rep. Raul Ruiz (D‐CA) 
Emergency Order Assurance, Safety, and 
Inspection of water Systems (Emergency 

OASIS Act) 

The legislation would require the EPA to 
establish regulations to flush a drinking 
water system if contaminants were 
present in the system for longer than six 
months, or if water stood motionless in 
the system for longer than six months.   

Introduced on May 17, 2021 and referred 
to the House Committee on Energy and 
Commerce. 

H.R. 3622 / S. 
1907 

Rep. Chris Pappas (D‐NH) / 
Sen. Kirsten Gillibrand (D‐

NY) 
Clean Water Standards for PFAS Act 

The legislation would require the 
Administrator of the Environmental 
Protection Agency to develop effluent 
limitations guidelines and standards and 
water quality criteria for PFAS under the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, to 
provide Federal grants to publicly owned 
treatment works to implement such 
guidelines and standards 

Introduced in the House on May 28, 2021, 
and in the Senate on May 27, 2021. 
 
The legislation in the House is bipartisan.  

S. 2168 / 
S.2567 

Sen. Mike Braun (R‐IN) / 
Sen. Shelley Moore Capito 

(R‐WV) 

Define WOTUS Act / Navigable Waters 
Protection Act of 2021 

The legislation would amend the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act to modify the 
definition of navigable waters, and to 
make the definition of the "waters of the 
United States" permanent. 

These bills were introduced in June and July 
of 2021 in response to the EPA's 
announcement earlier in June of its intent 
to rewrite the Navigable Waters Protection 
rule.  



H.R. 3814 / S. 
717 

Rep. Liz Cheney (R‐WY) / 
Sen. Mike Lee (R‐UT) 

Undoing NEPA’s Substantial Harm by 
Advancing Concepts that Kickstart the 

Liberation of the Economy Act 
(UNSHACKLE Act) 

The legislation combines the following 
five stand‐alone NEPA reform bills on 
agency process, state expansion, legal 
changes, and data reporting into one 
comprehensive text.  
‐ NEPA Agency Process Accountability Act 
‐ NEPA Accountability and Enforcement 
Act 
‐ NEPA State Assignment Expansion Act 
‐ NEPA Legal Reform Act 
‐ NEPA Data Transparency Act 

The Senate legislation was introduced on 
March 11, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Environment and Public 
Works. 
 
The House legislation was introduced on 
June 11, 2021 and referred to the House 
Committees on Natural Resources; 
Judiciary; Transportation and 
Infrastructure; and Energy and Commerce. 

H.R. 4647 / S. 
2430 

Rep. Jared Huffman (D‐CA) / 
Sen. Dianne Feinstein (D‐CA) 

Water Conservation Rebate Tax Parity 
Act 

The legislation would amend federal tax 
law so that homeowners wouldn’t pay 
income tax on rebates from water 
utilities for water conservation and water 
runoff management improvements 

The House legislation was introduced on 
July 22, 2021 and referred to the House 
Committee on Ways and Means.  The 
legislation in the Senate was introduced on 
July 22, 2021 and referred to the Senate 
Committee on Finance. 

S.2454  Sen. Alex Padilla (D‐CA)  Water Reuse and Resiliency Act 

The legislation would authorize $1 billion 
over five years for the EPA’s Pilot 
Program for Alternative Water Source 
Projects grants program. This is an 
increase from the $125 million over five 
years authorized for the program in the 
Drinking Water and Wastewater 
Infrastructure Act passed by the Senate in 
April. 

The legislation was introduced on July 22, 
2021 and referred to the Senate 
Committee on Environment and Public 
Works. 

H.R.4915  Rep. Tom McClintock (R‐CA)  Water Supply Permitting Coordination 
Act 

The legislation would authorize the 
Secretary of the Interior to coordinate 
Federal and State permitting processes 
related to the construction of new 
surface water storage projects on lands 
under the jurisdiction of the Secretary of 
the Interior and the Secretary of 
Agriculture and to designate the Bureau 
of Reclamation as the lead agency for 
permit processing.  

The legislation was introduced on August 3, 
2021 and referred to the House Committee 
on Natural Resources. 

H.R. 4976  Rep. Elissa Slotkin (D‐MI)  Ensuring PFAS Cleanup Meets or 
Exceeds Stringent Standards Act 

The legislation directs the Secretary of 
Defense to ensure that removal and 
remedial actions relating to PFAS 
contamination result in levels meeting or 
exceeding certain standards. 

The legislation was introduced in the House 
on August 6, 2021 and was referred to the 
House Committees on Armed Services, 
Transportation and Infrastructure, and 
Energy and Commerce. 



S.2372 / 
H.R.2773 

Sen. Heinrich, Martin (D‐
NM) / Representative 
Debbie Dingell (D‐MI)  

Recovering America’s Wildlife Act of 
2021 

The legislation would fund conservation 
efforts for more than 12,000 species of 
wildlife and plants in need of assistance 
by providing $1.3 billion in dedicated 
annual funding for proactive, on‐the‐
ground efforts across the country, ensure 
wildlife recovery efforts will be guided by 
the Congressionally‐mandated State 
Wildlife Action Plans, which identify 
specific strategies to restore the 
populations of species of greatest 
conservation need, accelerate the 
recovery of 1,600 U.S. species already 
listed as threatened or endangered under 
the Endangered Species Act, and include 
improvements to ensure funds are 
appropriately targeted to the areas of 
greatest need and facilitate additional 
investments in protecting at‐risk plant 
species. 

In the Senate, RAWA also directs fees and 
penalties assessed for environmental 
violations to help fund RAWA, using fee 
and penalty amounts that aren’t already 
targeted for existing environmental 
funds. 

The legislation was introduced on July 15, 
2021 and referred to the Committee on 
Environment and Public Works. It was 
reported favorably out of Committee on 
April 27 and placed on the Senate calendar.  
 
The House bill was introduced on April 22. 
The House Natural Resources 
Subcommittee on Water, Oceans, and 
Wildlife held a hearing on the legislation on 
July 29, 2021. On January 19, the legislation 
passed out of the House Natural Resources 
Committee by a vote of 29‐15. It passed the 
House on June 14, 2022 by a vote of 231‐
190.  
 
The House and Senate hope to come to an 
agreement on the legislation prior to the 
end of the Congress.  

H.R.4602 / 
S.3956 

Rep. Alan Lowenthal (D‐CA) 
/ Rep. Lisa McClain (R‐MI) 
and Sen. Jeff Merkley (D‐
OR) / Sen. Susan Collins (R‐

ME) 

WIPPES Act 

The legislation would direct the Federal 
Trade Commission to issue regulations 
requiring certain products to have “Do 
Not Flush” labeling 

The legislation was introduced on July 21, 
2021 and referred to the Committee on 
Energy and Commerce. Rep. Lowenthal 
introduced the stand‐alone bill after 
introducing a similar amendment to the 
House’s infrastructure bill.  
 
The Senate bill was introduced on March 
30, 2022.  

H.R.6591  Rep. Lisa McClain (R‐MI) / 
Rep. Alan Lowenthal (D‐CA)  PIPES Act 

The legislation would require the 
Administrator of the Environmental 
Protection Agency to publish a rule that 
establishes standards for the flushability 
of disposable nonwoven wipes.  

The legislation was introduced on February 
3, 2022 and was referred to the House 
Committee on Energy and Commerce.  



S. 2806 / H.R. 
3534 

Sen. Dianne Feinstein (D‐CA) 
/ Rep. Jimmy Panetta (D‐CA)  Wildfire Emergency Act of 2021 

Amongst other things, the legislation 
authorizes $250 million over 5 years for 
up to 20 Forest Service projects of 
100,000 acres or greater; Establish a new 
$100 million grant program to assist 
critical facilities like hospitals and police 
stations become more energy efficient 
and better adapted to function during 
power shutoffs; Establishes one or more 
Prescribed Fire Centers to coordinate 
research and training of foresters and 
forest managers in the western United 
States in the latest methods and 
innovations in prescribed fire (controlled 
burns) practices.  

The Senate legislation was introduced on 
September 22, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Energy and Natural 
Resources.  
 
The House bill was introduced on May 25, 
2021 and was referred to the 
Subcommittee on Conservation and 
Forestry. 

S. 3011 / H.R. 
5735 

Sen. John Cornyn (R‐TX) / 
Rep. Dusty Johnson (R‐SD) 

State, Local, Tribal, and Territorial Fiscal 
Recovery, Infrastructure, and Disaster 

Relief Flexibility Act 

The legislation provides additional 
flexibility for States, Tribes, and units of 
local government to spend their 
allocations of the COVID Relief Funds on 
certain infrastructure projects, including 
water, wastewater, and broadband 
infrastructure projects. The bill also 
allows these funds to be used to provide 
emergency relief from natural disasters. 
There is a cap—the greater of $10 million 
or 30% of the funds—on how much of 
the COVID money can be spent on these 
new purposes.   

The legislation was introduced on October 
19, 2021 and passed the Senate by 
unanimous consent that day. 
 
Senator Alex Padilla (D‐CA) is an original 
cosponsor of the legislation. 
 
The act was introduced in the House on 
October 26 and referred to the House 
Committee on Oversight and Reform.  

H.R. 6461 / S. 
3531 

Rep. Scott Peters (D‐CA) / 
Sen. Chris Coons (D‐DE) 

National Climate Adaptation and 
Resilience Strategy Act 

The legislation creates a Chief Resilience 
Officer, among other positions, that will 
assist the President to streamline the 
federal response to climate hazards that 
threaten human health, safety, and 
critical infrastructure.  

The act also calls for a Climate Adaptation 
and Resilience Strategy that outlines the 
federal government’s response to climate 
hazards such as sea level rise, drought, 
biodiversity loss, and coastal bank 
erosion.  

The legislation was introduced in the House 
on January 20, 2022 and referred to the 
Committee on Energy and Commerce.  
 
The legislation was introduced in the 
Senate on January 20, 2022, read twice, 
and referred to the Committee on 
Homeland Security and Government 
Affairs.  



H.R. 6396  Rep. Earl Blumenauer (D‐
OR)  Climate RESILIENCE Act 

The act amends FEMA's disaster 
definition to include extreme 
temperature events, like heat waves and 
freezes; changes FEMA's definitions and 
cost share eligibility requirements for 
disadvantaged communities and 
underserved communities; includes a 
focus on resiliency planning and 
investments; provides both financial and 
non‐financial technical assistance for 
hazard mitigation planning, as well as for 
grant applications for small impoverished 
and disadvantaged communities; and 
expands Pre‐Disaster Mitigation 
Assistance funding to address FEMA’s 
oversubscription issues. 

The legislation was introduced in the House 
on January 13, 2022 and referred to the 
Committee on Transportation and 
Infrastructure.  
 
The legislation has 32 cosponsors, including 
8 members of the California delegation. 

H.R.6492  Rep. Pramila Jayapal (D‐WA)  Climate Resilience Workforce Act 

The bill establishes a climate resilience 
workforce in communities most affected 
by the climate crisis. It also funds the 
development of regional, state, local, and 
community‐based climate resilience 
action plans. 

The legislation creates an Office of 
Climate Resilience within the White 
House, starts new workforce 
development programs, and removes 
barriers to employment in climate 
resilience jobs based on immigration 
status and prior involvement with the 
criminal justice system.   

The legislation was introduced in the House 
on January 25, 2022 and referred to the 
Subcommittee on Conservation and 
Forestry.  
 
The legislation has 38 cosponsors, including 
9 members of the California delegation. 

H.R. 6989   Rep. Ted Lieu (D‐CA)  Housing for All Act of 2022 

This legislation would address affordable 
housing shortages across the country by 
investing in hotel conversions to 
permanent housing with services; 
investing in the Eviction Protection Grant 
Program; investing in mobile crisis 
intervention teams; investing in libraries 
that support people experiencing 
homelessness; investing in programs that 
offer a safe place to park and facilitate 
access to rehousing and essential 
services; and investing in transit‐oriented 
development and infill development.  

The legislation was introduced in the House 
on March 8, 2022 and referred to the 
Subcommittee on Highways and Transit.  
 
The legislation has 14 cosponsors, including 
12 members of the California delegation. 



S. 623  Sen. Marco Rubio (R‐FL)  Sunshine Protection Act of 2021 

This bill makes daylight saving time the 
new, permanent standard time, effective 
November 5, 2023. 

The legislation passed the Senate on March 
15, 2022 and sent to the House.  

S. 4081 / H.R. 
8018 

Sen. Tammy Baldwin (D‐WI) 
/ Rep. Chellie Pingree (D‐

ME) 
Healthy H2O Act 

The bill provides grants for water testing 
and treatment technology directly to 
individuals, non‐profits and local 
governments in rural communities. 
Grants, provided by the USDA, would 
allow the purchase and installation of 
point‐of‐use or point‐of‐entry water 
quality improvement systems that 
remove or significantly reduce 
contaminants from drinking water. 

The legislation was introduced in the 
Senate on April 26, 2022 and referred to 
the Senate Committee on Agriculture, 
Nutrition, and Forestry.  
 
The bill was introduced in the House on 
June 9, 2022 and referred to the House 
Committee on Agriculture.  

H.R. 7696 / S. 
4161 

Rep. Chris Pappas (D‐NH) / 
Sen. Kirsten Gillibrand (D‐

NY) 

Clean Water Standards for PFAS 2.0 Act 
of 2022 

The bill would further regulate PFAS by 
setting deadlines for the EPA to develop 
water quality criteria and limits on 
industrial PFAS discharges into water and 
to water treatment plants. The bill would 
also authorize $200 million per year in 
grants to assist Publicly Owned 
Treatment Works with program 
implementation, which would be 
appropriated through Fiscal Years 2022‐
2026. 

The legislation was introduced in the House 
on May 10, 2022 and referred to the 
Subcommittee on Water Resources and 
Environment.  
 
The legislation was introduced in the 
Senate on May 9, 2022 and referred to the 
Committee on Environment and Public 
Works.  

S.1179 / 
H.R.2552  Sen. Dianne Feinstein (D‐CA)  Canal Conveyance Capacity Restoration 

Act  

This bill authorizes the Bureau of 
Reclamation to provide financial 
assistance for various projects in 
California to mitigate the sinking or 
settling of the ground (i.e., subsidence 
mitigation), specifically for projects 
related to the Friant‐Kern Canal, the 
Delta‐Mendota Canal, and certain parts 
of the San Luis Canal/California 
Aqueduct. 

This legislation was introduced on April 15, 
2021 in the Senate. The House Companion 
bill was introduced the same day.  
 
The Senate Energy and Natural Resources 
Subcommittee on Water & Power held a 
hearing on the legislation on Wednesday, 
May 25. 
 
The House Natural Resources Committee 
has not yet considered the legislation.  

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3C 



June 30, 2022 

To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

From:  Michael Boccadoro 

Beth Olhasso 

RE: June Report 

Overview: 

It’s dry and hot throughout California. The Governor and State Water Resources Control Board 

(SWRCB) emergency water conservation regulations have gone into effect and water managers are 

bracing for water supplies to just get worse throughout the hot summer.  Lake Oroville is sitting at 65 

percent of historical average and 49 percent capacity and San Luis Reservoir is at 71 percent historical 

average and 39 percent capacity.  

The SWRCB recently announced that water use in May 2022 was less than in May 2020, leading to 

hope that the conservation message is getting out to the public and citizens are cutting back. The state 

board is also working with water providers to obtain water use data each month so they can assess in a 

timely fashion how conservation measures are performing. 

Juvenile chinook salmon from Central Valley fish hatcheries got another ride to the saltwater this year 

in an effort to prevent the fish from perishing in low, warm water conditions. California Department of 

Fish and Wildlife announced that the agency is nearing the completion of its efforts to transport 19.7 

million hatchery-raised fall-run and 960,000 spring-run juvenile chinook salmon (smolts) to San Pablo 

Bay, San Francisco Bay and seaside net pens this spring and summer. 

Energy managers are bracing for another summer living on the edge of having enough power to supply 

the state during peak energy events. The Newsom Administration has crafted a package that aims to 

incentivize load shedding this summer, while also keep retiring resources online in the coming 

summers while new, clean energy can come online to replace aging natural gas an nuclear plants.  

The Legislature has passed several versions and addendums to the 2022-23 state budget. Notably, there 

is still about $2 billion in climate and drought funds that will be allocated for specific programs in 

August.   

The Legislature has been moving bills through their second house policy committees. With more 

water-related bills this year, legislative water discussions have been robust and extensive. ACWA’s 

legislation to provide for a tax exemption for turf removal rebates continues to clear legislative hurdles. 

CASA’s bill to require products containing PFAS to register their products on a publicly accessible 

database struggled with significant opposition from manufactures but was able to pass out of the 

Assembly with just enough votes and is moving through the Senate. MWD’s legislation to allow for 

alternative project delivery methods for several of their projects recently also moved out of Senate 

policy committee, while similar legislation (SB 991, Newman) to allow for progressive design build 

processes for projects over $5 million also continues to progress through the legislature. Summer 

recess begins July 1. When members come back in August, they will have until the end of the month 

for all action, as the 2021-22 session ends on August 31. 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

Status Report – June 2022 

 

 

Water Supply Conditions 

With summer in full swing, we are starting to see reservior stroage decline.  Lake Oroville is sitting at 

65 percent of historical average and 49 percent capacity.  San Luis Reservoir, the main south-of-Delta 

storage facility for the State Water Project, is at just 71 percent of average for this time of the year and 

39 percent capacity.  Drought conditions continue to worsen with 11.5 percent of the state in 

exceptional drought and 60 percent in extreme drought.  

 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 

Preliminary Data Shows Water Savings Increase 

On June 6, the State Water Board requested that water suppliers submit May water consumption data 

as soon as possible. The goal is for the state to gain quicker access to data to accurately measure 

whether California is meeting water conservation goals. Additionally, the State Water Board requested 

water suppliers voluntary submit the following preliminary information each month, by the third 

business day or sooner: (1) Production for the reporting period (with units, e.g., gallons), (2) 

Population served, and (3) Percent of use that was residential. Because these submissions are 

preliminary, for items 2 and 3, suppliers may use data for the same month from the prior year, if more 

current data is unavailable.  

 

Board Chair Joaquin Esquivel released a statement on June 28 noting that agencies covering over half 

of the state’s population provided early data, noting that there seems to be a decrease in water use for 

May 2022 compared to May 2020.  

 

As expected the Chair called for increased conservation, especially outdoors. 

 

 

 

 

 



Millions of Juvenile Salmon Trucked Again This Year  

Juvenile chinook salmon from Central Valley fish hatcheries are getting another ride to the saltwater 

this year in an effort to prevent the fish from perishing in low, warm water conditions. 

 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife announced that the agency is nearing the completion of its 

efforts to transport 19.7 million hatchery-raised fall-run and 960,000 spring-run juvenile chinook 

salmon (smolts) to San Pablo Bay, San Francisco Bay and seaside net pens this spring and summer. 

 

Three consecutive years of drought have resulted in critically low reservoir water storage, low river 

flows and poor river conditions overall, which decreases the survival of juvenile Chinook salmon as 

they move toward the Pacific Ocean from upstream hatcheries. 

 

CDFW raises the fish at Feather River, Nimbus, Mokelumne and Merced salmon hatcheries and 

monitors river conditions carefully to estimate the smolts’ chances of successful migration. Conditions 

are “particularly poor” this year, prompting CDFW to move more than 95 percent of the smolts down 

river, thus bypassing 50 to 100 miles of “hazardous river conditions.” 

 

Summer Energy Reliability 

The Western Electricity Coordinating Council recently released information about summer energy 

reliability throughout the west. They note new factors that have to be considered when trying to predict 

how summer energy supplies will hold up. Some of those factors include: the war in Ukraine 

exacerbating cyber security risk; supply chain issues affecting solar storage, coal and natural gas; and 

accelerated retirement schedules for fossil fuel generation.  

 

The Newsom Administration is pulling as many levers as they can to try to address the very real 

concern that there will be a significant power supply shortages this summer and in the coming years.  

 

The Legislature passed a $5 billion proposal on energy reliability in the 2022-23 state budget on June 

29. The funding package aims to address a potential 7,000 MW shortage this summer and a potential 

10,000 MW shortfall by 2025. The majority of the Governor’s proposed general fund dollars would go 

to the Department of Water Resources to procure 5,000 MW of energy by extending the life of existing 

natural gas-fired power plants set to expire and providing capital capacity payments for efficiency 

upgrades and operations and maintenance for more reliable operation; investment in new capacity that 

can be called upon in an emergency, and power purchase agreements to augment energy resources in 

and into California. 

As the Governor’s proposal has been discussed in budget sub committees, legislators raised concerns 

with the proposal. There is significant concern that giving DWR authority to procure energy outside of 

the normal procurement process is an unnecessary risk.  

 

Budget Update 

On Monday, June 13, the Legislature adopted SB 154 (Skinner) and the Governor signed the bill. The 

legislature passed another round of budget allocations on June 26 in the form of two “Budget Bill Jrs.” 

and a handful of trailer bills.  

 

Those measures included about $2 billion in a generic “climate and drought” funding, but did not 

provide specific allocations. The details will be negotiated in the coming weeks and considered when 

legislators return from summer recess in August. 

 

 

 



Legislative Update 

Legislators have been working feverishly to shepherd their bills their second house policy committees 

ahead of the June 30 deadline. The legislature will be on summer recess from July 1 to August 1, when 

they will come back for the final month of the 2021-2022 legislative session. 

 

Updates on priority bills: 

 

AB 2142 (Gabriel): This bill would provide an income tax exemption for rebates from a turf removal 

program. Sponsored by ACWA, the bill passed out of the Senate Governance and Finance Committee 

unanimously and is in the Appropriations Committee. 

 

AB 1845 (Calderon): MWD sponsored bill to allow for alternative project delivery methods for 

specific MWD projects. The bill recently passed out of the Senate Governance and Finance Committee 

and will move to the Appropriations Committee. 

 

SB 991 (Newman): This bill is similar to MWD’s AB 1845 but it would allow for progressive design 

build to be used on any project over $5 million. The bill passed out of the Assembly Local 

Government Committee unanimously and is in the Appropriations Committee. 

 

AB 2247 (Bloom): CASA sponsored bill would require products sold in CA that contain PFAS to 

register the product on a publicly accessible reporting platform. The bill was recently amended to 

remove some of the enforcement language, which should remove some of the opposition. The bill 

passed out of the Assembly with just enough votes and passed out of the Senate Environmental Quality 

5-2. It will be heard in the Senate Appropriations Committee on August 1. 

 

AB 2449 (Rubio): Sponsored by Three Valleys Municipal Water District’s, this legislation addresses 

remote participation for elected officials. The author took amendments in the Senate to address 

concerns from the Senate Governance and Finance and Judiciary Committee concerns surrounding 

misuse of these allowances to not have to face the public during challenging proceedings. The bill now 

limits the number of times an offical can use remote testimony and requires that “cameras must be on” 

at all times. The bill got out of both its Senate policy committees and is awaiting action in the Senate 

Appropriations Committee.  

 

SB 1157 (Hertzberg): The bill would implement the indoor GPCD targets outlined in the 

DWR/SWRCB draft report to the Legislature for 47 GPCD by 2025 and 42 GPCD by 2030. The bill 

passed out of Natural Resources and Water Committee despite significant concerns from Senator Ben 

Hueso (D-San Diego). The bill was quickly moved to the floor of the Senate where it passed 28-9. The 

author took amendments in the Assembly Water, Parks and Wildlife Committee that would require 

studying the impacts to wastewater and recycled water systems. The bill is now in the Assembly 

Appropriations Committee.  

 

 



IEUA BILLS— BILLS WITH POSITIONS- 2022 Session June 30, 2022 
Bill 

Number 

Author/Sponsor Title and/or 

Summary 

Summary IEUA Position/ Bill 

Location 

Positions Taken by 

Associations & 

Regional Agencies 

AB 

1845 

Calderon 

 

 

 

MWD 

Sponsored 

Metropolitan 

Water District of 

Southern 

California: 

alternative 

project delivery 

methods 

Would authorize the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California to use the design-build procurement process for certain 

regional recycled water projects or other water infrastructure 

projects. The bill would define "design-build" to mean a project 

delivery process in which both the design and construction of a 

project are procured from a single entity. The bill would require 

the district, if using this procurement process, to follow certain 

procedures, including preparing and issuing a request for 

qualifications, preparing a request for proposals including the 

scope and needs of the project or contract, and awarding projects 

based on certain criteria for projects utilizing either lowest 

responsible bidder or best value selection criteria. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

 

 

Senate 

Appropriations 

Committee 

 

 

MWD, ACWA, 

WRCA in 

support 

AB 

2142 

Gabriel Income taxes: 

exclusion: turf 

replacement 

water 

conservation 

program 

This bill would, for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 

2022, and before January 1, 2027, under both of these laws, 

provide an exclusion from gross income for any amount received 

as a rebate, voucher, or other financial incentive issued by a local 

water agency or supplier for participation in a turf replacement 

water conservation program. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

Senate 

Appropriations 

Committee 

 

 

ACWA, MWD 

in Support 

AB 

2247 

Bloom 

 

CASA 

Sponsored 

PFAS products: 

disclosure: 

publicly 

accessible 

reporting 

platform 

This bill would require the Department of Toxic Substances 

Control to work with the Interstate Chemicals Clearinghouse to 

establish, on or before January 1, 2024, a publicly accessible 

reporting platform to collect information about PFAS and 

products or product components containing regulated PFAS, as 

defined, being sold, offered for sale, distributed, or offered for 

promotional purposes in, or imported into, the state. The bill 

would require, on or before March 1, 2024, and annually 

thereafter, a manufacturer, as defined, of PFAS or a product or a 

product component containing regulated PFAS that is sold, 

offered for sale, distributed, or offered for promotional purposes 

in, or imported into, the state to register the PFAS or the product 

or product component containing regulated PFAS, and specified 

other information, on the publicly accessible reporting platform. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

 

 

Senate 

Appropriations 

Committee 

 

 

CASA, WRCA, 

ACWA in 

support 

AB 

2449 

Rubio 

 

Three Valleys  

Open meetings: 

local agencies: 

teleconferences 

 This bill would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing 

without complying with those specified teleconferencing 

requirements if at least a quorum of the members of the 

SUPPORT 

 

ACWA & 

MWD Support 



legislative body participates in person from a singular location 

clearly identified on the agenda that is open to the public and 

situated within the local agency’s jurisdiction. The bill would 

impose prescribed requirements for this exception relating to 

notice, agendas, the means and manner of access, and procedures 

for disruptions. The bill would require the legislative body to 

implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving 

requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals with 

disabilities, consistent with federal law. 

Senate 

Appropriations 

Committee 

AB 

2787 

Quirk Microplastics in 

products 

The Microbeads Nuisance Prevention Law prohibits a person 

from selling or offering for promotional purposes in the state any 

personal care products containing plastic microbeads that are 

used to exfoliate or cleanse in a rinse-off product, including, but 

not limited to, toothpaste. This bill would, on and after specified 

dates that vary based on the product, ban the sale, distribution in 

commerce, or offering for promotional purposes in the state of 

designated products, such as leave-in cosmetics products and 

waxes and polishes, if the products contain intentionally added 

microplastics, as defined. The bill would exclude from this ban 

products consisting, in whole or in part, of specified substances 

or mixtures containing microplastics. The bill would make a 

violator liable for a civil penalty not to exceed $2,500 per day for 

each violation. 

SUPPORT 

 

 

Held in 

Assembly---  

 

NOT MOVING 

FORWARD IN 

2022 

 

 

CASA in support 

AB 

2811 

Bennett 

 

 

Plumbers 

Union 

California 

Building 

Standards 

Commission: 

recycled water: 

nonpotable 

water systems 

Would require, commencing January 1, 2024, all newly 

constructed nonresidential buildings be constructed with dual 

plumbing to allow the use of recycled water for all applicable 

nonpotable water demands, as defined, if that building is located 

within an existing or planned recycled water service area, as 

specified. 

Oppose 

 

Env. Safety & 

Toxic Materials 

Comm--- no 

hearing 

 

Bill not moving 

forward this 

year.  

CASA & WRCA 

oppose unless 

amended. ACWA 

& CMUA 

Oppose 

SB 

222 

Sen. Dodd Water 

Affordability 

Assistance 

Program 

Would establish the Water Affordability Assistance Fund in the 

State Treasury to help provide water affordability assistance, for 

both drinking water and wastewater services, to low-income 

ratepayers and ratepayers experiencing economic hardship in 

California. The bill would make moneys in the fund available 

 

 

Two-Year Bill 

 

Assembly Floor 

Opposed by 

ACWA 



upon appropriation by the Legislature to the state board to 

provide, as part of the Water Affordability Assistance Program 

established by the bill, direct water bill assistance, water bill 

credits, water crisis assistance, affordability assistance, and short-

term assistance to public water systems to administer program 

components. 

SB 

230 

Portantino/ 

CMUA & 

MWD 

State Water 

Resources 

Control Board: 

Constituents of 

Emerging 

Concern 

Would require the State Water Resources Control Board to 

establish, maintain, and direct an ongoing, dedicated program 

called the Constituents of Emerging Concern Program to assess 

the state of information and recommend areas for further study 

on, among other things, the occurrence of constituents of 

emerging concern (CEC) in drinking water sources and treated 

drinking water. The bill would require the state board to convene, 

by an unspecified date, the Science Advisory Panel to review and 

provide recommendations to the state board on CEC for further 

action, among other duties. The bill would require the state board 

to provide an annual report to the Legislature on the ongoing 

work conducted by the panel. 

SUPPORT 

 

 

Assembly 

Appropriations 

Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Favor by 

ACWA 

SB 

991 

Newman 

 

 

Water 

Collaborative 

Delivery 

Association 

(formerly the 

Water 

Design-Build 

Council) 

Public contracts: 

progressive 

design-build: 

local agencies 

Current law, until January 1, 2025, authorizes local agencies, as 

defined, to use the design-build procurement process for specified 

public works with prescribed cost thresholds. Current law 

requires specified information submitted by a design-build entity 

in the design-build procurement process to be certified under 

penalty of perjury. This bill, until January 1, 2033, authorizes 

local agencies, defined as any city, county, city and county, or 

special district authorized by law to provide for the production, 

storage, supply, treatment, or distribution of any water from any 

source, to use the progressive design-build process for public 

works projects in excess of $5,000,000, similar to the progressive 

design-build process authorized for use by the Director of 

General Services. The bill would require specified information to 

be verified under penalty of perjury. 

SUPPORT 

 

Assembly 

Appropriations 

Committee 

 

WRCA Support 

SB 

1157 

Hertzberg Urban water use 

objectives: 

indoor 

Current law requires the Department of Water Resources, in 

coordination with the State Water Resources Control Board, and 

including collaboration with and input from stakeholders, to 

 Oppose unless 

amended by 

WateReuse & 



residential water 

use 

conduct necessary studies and investigations and authorizes the 

department and the board to jointly recommend to the Legislature 

a standard for indoor residential water use. Current law, until 

January 1, 2025, establishes 55 gallons per capita daily as the 

standard for indoor residential water use. Existing law 

establishes, beginning January 1, 2025, the greater of 52.5 gallons 

per capita daily or a standard recommended by the department 

and the board as the standard for indoor residential water use, and 

beginning January 1, 2030, establishes the greater of 50 gallons 

per capita daily or a standard recommended by the department 

and the board as the standard for indoor residential water use. 

This bill would eliminate the option of using the greater of 52.5 

gallons per capita daily and the greater of 50 gallons per capita 

daily, as applicable, or a standard recommended by the 

department and the board as the standard for indoor residential 

water use. 

Assembly 

Appropriations 

Committee 

 

 

 

 

ACWA, CASA 

& CMUA 

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3D 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

Public Outreach and Communication

• July, Smart Irrigation Month
• July, National Park and Recreation Month
• July 20, IEUA Employee Appreciation Summer Picnic, HQA Grass Area, 11:30 a.m. – 3:00
p.m.
• July 28, National Intern Day
• July 28, World Nature Conservation Day

Founded by the Irrigation Association, Smart Irrigation Month is celebrated annually throughout
the month of July and highlights the solutions that irrigation professionals contribute to society
through best practices and efficient technologies. While supplies last, IEUA will once again be
hosting a Smart Irrigation Month hose nozzle giveaway at Building A of IEUA’s Headquarters
starting July 5th through July 28th from 8AM – 5PM. Residents will also be reminded of smart
irrigation techniques and water-use efficiency rebates and programs throughout the month on the
Agency's outreach channels.

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

07/13/22Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting
sustainable water use throughout the region.

IEUA is committed to enhancing and promoting environmental sustainability and the
preservation of the region's heritage.

N/A

Attachment 1 - Background

Not Applicable

22167



        Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

Background 
Subject:  Public Outreach and Communication 
  
 
July 

 July, Smart Irrigation Month 
 July, National Park and Recreation Month 
 July 20, IEUA Employee Appreciation Summer Picnic, HQA Grass Area, 11:30 a.m. – 

3:00 p.m. 
 July 28, National Intern Day 
 July 28, World Nature Conservation Day 

 
 
Media and Outreach 

General 
 Staff is currently securing ad contracts for the upcoming fiscal year which will add to the 

Agency’s portfolio of outreach tactics. These publications and publication services 
include Civic Publications, Fontana Herald News, Champion Newspapers, La Opinion, 
and Inland Empire Magazine. 

 Staff helped to promote the Inland Empire Landscape Contest People’s Choice 
Competition. Posts were sent out reminding residents to participate in the voting aspect of 
the competition. The competition concluded on June 24 where a residence in Rancho 
Cucamonga was chosen as the winner and was announced on June 27.  

 The Agency celebrated Public Service Day on June 23rd with boxed lunches for all 
employees facilitated by Human Resources. Staff features were also shared to IEUA’s 
social media accounts, which has over 1,500 impressions across all platforms. 

Smart Irrigation Month 
 Founded by the Irrigation Association, Smart Irrigation Month is celebrated annually 

throughout the month of July and highlights the solutions that irrigation professionals 
contribute to society through best practices and efficient technologies. While supplies 
last, IEUA will once again be hosting a Smart Irrigation Month hose nozzle giveaway at 
Building A of IEUA’s Headquarters starting July 5th through July 28th from 8AM – 5PM. 
Residents will also be reminded of smart irrigation techniques and water-use efficiency 
rebates and programs throughout the month on the Agency’s social media channels.  

 Staff has also reached out to Customer Agencies to offer a partnership opportunity for 
this month’s recognition by providing hose nozzles for drought and water-wise events. 
Monte Vista Water District, and the cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Ontario, and Upland 
have all requested to partner during this month’s giveaway. 

Drought Awareness Efforts 
 Staff continues to utilize the Pledge to Save Water QR code campaign. Once scanned, the 

QR code takes readers to the IEUA Take the Pledge webpage where they can learn more 
about the Agency, current drought conditions, water-wise tips, and participate by taking 
the pledge to save water.  



Page 2 of 3 
 

 IEUA and its customer agencies continue to post new drought tagline and campaign 
collateral under The Time is Now, which features content that encourages the public to 
know the facts, change their habits, and step up their efforts. The collateral utilizes the 
#StepItUpIE message and follows the campaign plan framework that was developed by 
the Inland Empire Clean Water Partnership as well as adopts a serious tone to convey the 
severity of the State’s current situation. A toolkit has been made available to all customer 
agencies and is updated regularly. Staff continues to meet with representatives from each 
of its customer agencies for further support regarding outreach and/or collaboration 
opportunities (i.e., partnership ads) for this campaign and makes regular updates to the 
toolkit based on feedback.  

 Staff posted a new episode (Special Drought Edition) as part of the Coffee with the 
General Manager series on June 14. The video has over 2,500 views and over 6,000 
impressions across all social media platforms.  

 A “Time is Now” ad ran on June 18 in the Chino Champion. 
 A “Time is Now” ad ran on June 19 in the Daily Bulletin. 
 A “Time is Now” ad ran on June 26 in La Opinion. 
Social Outreach and Analytics 
 The Agency continues to publish content on LinkedIn and has gained 59 followers since 

May, with 441 page views in the last 30 days.  
 June: 25 posts were published to the IEUA Facebook page, 25 tweets were sent on the 

@IEUAWater Twitter handle, 25 posts were published to IEUA’s Instagram grid, and 15 
posts were published to the IEUA LinkedIn page. 

o The top three Facebook posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
June were:  
 6/8 IERCA Event 
 6/14 Human Resources Technician (2-year Limited Term) Hiring  
 6/7 Mechanic I-III (DOQ) and Intern (Contracts & Procurement) Hiring  

o The top three Twitter tweets, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
June were: 
 6/8 IERCA Event  
 6/15 Solar Cup Team Recognition 
 6/23 Public Service Day  

o The top three Instagram posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 
June were: 
 6/23 Public Service Day   
 6/21 Maintenance Supervisor, Intern (External Affairs), External Affairs 

Specialist (2 Year Limited Term), Operations and Maintenance Training 
Coordinator, and Facilities Specialist (2 Year Limited-Term) Hiring 

 6/8 IERCA Event  
o The top three LinkedIn posts, based on impressions and reactions, in the month of 

June were: 
 6/16 Coffee with the GM 
 6/8 IERCA Event   
 6/1 UCLA’s Dr. Stenstrom RP-5 Tour 

 For the month of June, there were 11,365 searches for a park in IEUA’s service area on 
Yelp, where Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park was viewed 677 times.  

 



Page 3 of 3 
 
Education and Outreach Updates 

 Staff coordinated a field trip with City of Chino Afterschool Programs on June 29 for 
approximately 125 students. Due to weather, the field trip was put on hold for the fall and 
in lieu of the summer program, staff provided corresponding lesson plans, self-guided 
tour information, and activity materials for each student.   
 

Agency-Wide Membership Updates 
 Randy Lee, Director of Operations, attended the National Association of Clean Water 

Agencies (NACWA) 2022 Wastewater-Based Epidemiology Webinar on May 6 
 Randy Lee, Director of Operations, attended the National Water Research Institute 

(NWRI) Board of Directors Meeting on May 10. 
 Randy Lee, Director of Operations, Dan Dyer, Collections System Supervisor, and 

Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Southern California Alliance of Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) Joint Collection Systems Meeting on May 18. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Regulatory Workgroup Water Meeting on 
May 19. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Regulatory Workgroup Water Meeting on 
May 19. 

 Randy Lee, Director of Operations attended the Isle Utilities Energy Management 
Partnership Comparative Analysis Review on May 19.  



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3E 



Operations & Maintenance Department 
Quarterly Update

Lucia Fuertez Diaz
Manager of Facilities & Water System Programs 

July 2022



2

Safety Statistics

As of 6/15/2022

A recordable injury is an injury that resulted in more than first aid treatment. 
* hours worked does not include June hours rate will be lower



3

Stretch Exercise Pilot Program

• Regional Plant No. 4
—Sewer Collections, Operations 

& Maintenance staff
• Team Feedback

—Enjoying the morning 
stretch

—Feel better throughout 
the work shift

May 2022

May 2022



• Agency Wide: NPDES permit is 
updated 

• RP-1 and RP-4: Install of CL2 
analyzers at RP-1 & RP-4 

• RP-5: Title V AQMD permit 
• RP-1 and RP-5: Annual Title V 

AQMD Inspections
• Educational Outreach: Facility 

tours and participated in several 
career fairs.  

4

Operations 

May 2022

May 2022

April 2022



• Sewer Collections Team 
hosted the first ever Multi-Agency 
Sanitary Sewer Overflow Drill.

• Total of 6 Agencies/Cities
• Training consisted of multiple SSO 

simulations and bypass support.
• Hosted first meeting between 

member Agencies for the Sewer 
Collections and Environmental 
Compliance teams.

5

Mutual Aid Coordination 



• RP-2 Stockpile at drying 
beds 

• CCWRF ammonia due to 
local manufacture

• CCWRF foaming incident
• Increase in Fats, Oils, and 

Grease (FOG) & Ragging 

6

Operational Challenges 



• Celebrate IERCA’s milestones
—Selling 3 million cubic yards of 

compost
—US Composting Council 

Manufacturer of the Year Award
—California Water Environment 

Association Safety Plant of the 
Year Award

7

IERCA Update



• Members of Technical Resources 
Division leadership attended.

• Collaborations with other leaders.
• LA City Sanitation leaders provided 

a plant tour and overview of their 
incident.

8

Hyperion Water Reclamation Plant Tour



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3F 



4th Quarter 
Planning & Resources Update

Pietro Cambiaso
Acting Director of Planning & Resources

July 2022



• Air Quality and Odor Survey
• Pretreatment and Source Control
• Wastewater & Recycled Water
• Groundwater Recharge
• IEUA Flow & Loading Study
• Dry Year Yield (DYY) Program
• Chino Basin Day

2

Topics



• South Coast Air Quality Management District
—No compliance issues
—RP-1 and RP-5 Title V inspection (4/7/2022)

• Quarterly Odor Survey
—Voluntary not a compliance requirement
—Pre-determined locations near the perimeter 

of each IEUA facility
—Panelists from member agencies and IEUA 

staff
• Intensity rating
• Odor description

3

Air Quality and Odor Survey



• CCWRF high pH Incident (5/26/2022)
— Impact to Operations

• Flow diversion to RP-1 and equalization
basin

• Increased chlorine demand
—Source found from joint investigation

• Collaboration with City of Chino
• Ice manufacturer anhydrous ammonia leak
• Enforcement and cost recovery pending

4

Pretreatment and Source Control

Sewerage System Permits 
Issued

Inspections 
Completed

Notice of Violations
Issued

Notice of Violations
Resolved

Regional Sewerage System 4 6 4 1

Non-Reclaimable Wastewater System North 
(NRWS and Etiwanda Wastewater Line) 2 16 3 1

Non-Reclaimable Wastewater System South 
(Inland Empire Brine Line) 0 7 0 0



• Compliance with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit

• Waste discharge requirements, master recycling permit, and NPDES permit adoption (6/3/2022)
—Effective 8/1/2022

• Laboratory, operations and maintenance staff training
• Implementation of new monitoring and reporting requirements

—Significant Revisions
• Asset management program
• Climate change action plan
• Toxicity requirements
• 1,2,3-Trichloropropane (1,2,3-TCP) monitoring
• PFAS monitoring

5

Wastewater & Recycled Water



• 1,2,3-Trichloropropane (1,2,3-TCP) Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) Exceedance
—Accelerated weekly monitoring
— Investigation and Mitigation Plan

• Method assessment plan
• Fate and transport

• PFOA Notification Level (NL) Exceedance
—Accelerated weekly monitoring
—Corrective action report (May 2022)
—Collaboration with other Agencies and Associations

• Operation and Maintenance Streambed Alteration Agreement
—Submitted amendment and extension application to California Department of Fish and Wildlife
—Long-term maintenance agreement for groundwater recharge facilities

6

Groundwater Recharge



• Evaluate wastewater flow volumes and strength in
various regional sewer trunkline locations

—Assist with growth forecasting and IEUA treatment plant 
improvement projects

—Validate sewer hydraulic model calibration
—Support Expanded Return to Sewer Study team to 

improve study accuracy

• Approved project in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 - 2031/32
Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan

—Consultant will be hired through Planning Master 
Services Contract

—Project start date July 2022
—Project completion August 2023

7

IEUA Flow & Loading Study



• Groundwater Storage Program with Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD),
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA), Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD), and
Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM)

• Program provides up to 100,000 acre-feet (AF) of storage
in a MWD storage account in the Chino Basin

—MWD stored 63,324 AF (2017 – 2022)
—63,324 AF of withdrawals (2017 – 2022)
—Account storage balance is currently at 0 AF

8

Dry Year Yield (DYY) Program



• Annual meeting to provide updates on ongoing and future projects, and discuss
coordination efforts with the Regional Water Quality Control Board

• Topics discussed:
—Maximum benefit salt and nutrient management activities
—Chino Desalter Authority operations 
—Status of compliance
—Hydraulic control analysis 
—Chino Basin Program
—Water supply and drought 

9

Chino Basin Day



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3G 



RP-5 Expansion Project Update: 
July 2022

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006

Brian Wilson, P.E., CCM
Principal Engineer

July 2022



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 ‐ Jan 2025 Construction
Jan 12 ‐ Jun 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 ‐ Nov 7 MBR Phase1 
Dec 14 ‐ Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 ‐ Sep 23 Digesters
Feb 15 ‐ Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 ‐ Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 ‐ Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award
Jul 15

Biosolids Milestone
Jan 11

Project Completion
Jan 10

Day 715 of 1640 = 44%

Data date: 6/30/2022

RP-5: Project Status

2

Role Firm Contract
This Month’s 

Payment
Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $334,061,867 $8,106,356 $152,484,426 46%

Designer Parsons $33,670,711 $360,000 $30,935,537 92%

Construction 
Management Arcadis $21,125,523 $400,000 $8,467,536 40%



3

RP-5: Project Change Status

Amount Quantity

Original Contract $329,982,900 

Change Order (CO) $ 4,078,967 132

Request For Deviation (RFD) $ 3,019,815 145

Changes Total (CO+RFD) $7,098,782 264

% Change of Contract 2.2%

% of Contingency Used 21.5%

Change Type
Amount  

$ Millions
% Of 

Changes

Design Errors & Omissions $ 3.1 44%

Agency Requested $2.6 37%

Differing Site Conditions $ 2.0 28%

Contractor Requested $ -0.7 -10%



4

RP-5: Major Activity Areas 

Construction Staff
• WML Craft: 219
• WML Project: 34
• IEUA & CM: 17
• Total: 270



5

RP-5: Major Activities

Influent Pump Station



6

RP-5: Major Activities

Fine Screens



7

RP-5: Major Activities

Primary Clarifiers



8

RP-5: Major Activities

Main Odor Control



9

RP-5: Major Activities

Blower Building #2



10

RP-5: Major Activities

MBR Phase 1 Pump Gallery & Basins



11

RP-5: Major Activities

Emergency Overflow Pond Pumps Station



12

RP-5: Major Activities

Thickening Building

Exterior

Sludge Feed

Polymer Room



13

RP-5: Major Activities

Acid Phase Digester Building

Interior Exterior



14

RP-5: Major Activities

Gas Phase Digester Building

Interior Exterior



15

RP-5: Major Activities

Dewatering Building

Interior Exterior



16

RP-5: Major Activities

Boiler Building



Questions?



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3H 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

July 20, 2022

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended May 31, 2022 is submitted in a
format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of May 2022, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of $518,987,648
reflects an increase of $2,763,480 compared to the total of $516,224,168 reported for April
2022. The increase was primarily due to property tax receipts and grant proceeds. The average
days cash on hand increased from 217 days to 234 days for the month of May 2022.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in May 2022 was 0.945 percent, a slight
increase of 0.103 percent compared to the April 2022 yield of 0.842 percent. The change in yield
is mainly attributed to market conditions and an increased earnings yield in the Local Agency
Investment Fund and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) accounts.

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended May 31, 2022 is an information
item for the Board of Director's review

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

07/13/22Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On June 15, 2022 the Board of Directors received the Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for
the month ended April 30, 2022.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

22152





https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/












INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

May April Variance

Investments
Agency Managed

Total Agency Managed Investments

PFMManaged

Total PFMManaged Investments

Total Investments

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency

Restricted Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $518,987,648 $516,224,168 $2,763,480
**Total reported as of April 2022 net of capital call receipts

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Other Cash and Bank Accounts

US Bank Pre Investment Money Market Account

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $2,168,852

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $109,564,405

Brokered Certificates of Deposit

Supra National Agency Bonds

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $113,703,962

Total Investments $223,268,367

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Restricted Deposits Continued

2020B Construction Project Accounts

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

CalPERS

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of May 31, 2022 $518,987,648

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease)

**Total reported as of April 2022 net of capital call receipts

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)

US Bank (USB)
(Investment Mgmt.)
(Debt Service)

Petty Cash

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $2,168,852 $2,192,687 $2,168,852 $2,168,852

Investments
CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts

LAIF Accounts

CAMP Accounts

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $109,564,405 $109,564,405 $109,564,405 0.56% $109,564,405

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)
US Treasury Note

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Supra National Agency Bond

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $114,178,000 $113,718,793 $113,703,963 1.31% $109,737,398

Total Investments $223,742,405 $223,283,198 $223,268,368 $219,301,803
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Total Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

Total Bond and Note Accounts

2020B Construction Project Account

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $129,709,146 $129,709,146 $129,709,146 0.695% $129,709,146

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies**
**Total reported as of April 2022 net of capital call receipts

CalPERS Deposits

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits $288,351,787 $288,351,787 $293,550,429 $293,550,429

$514,263,044 $513,827,672 $518,987,648 $515,021,083
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits
as of May 31, 2022

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield

Total Investment Portfolio $223,268,368
Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 0.945%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $295,719,281
Average Yield of Other Accounts 0.707%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $518,987,648

*Petty Cash

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

May Purchases

Total Purchases 2,730,000$

May Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales

Total Maturities, Calls & Sales 2,335,000$

11



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$512,646,877

12



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$223,268,368

13



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$29,065,763

14



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)
$223,268,368

15



16



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

4A 



S A W P A 
 
 

 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF AB 361, THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED VIRTUALLY WITH 

THE OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT.  ALL VOTES TAKEN WILL BE CONDUCTED BY ORAL 
ROLL CALL. 

This meeting will be accessible as follows: 
 

Meeting Access Via Computer (Zoom)*: Meeting Access Via Telephone*: 
• https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/86437558823  • 1 (669) 900-6833 
• Meeting ID: 864 3755 8823 • Meeting ID: 864 3755 8823 

*Participation in the meeting via the Zoom app (a free download) is strongly encouraged 
 

 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, JUNE 21, 2022 – 9:30 A.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Marco Tule, Chair)  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, 
no action may be taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
Government Code §54954.2(b). 

 
4. ITEMS TO BE ADDED OR DELETED 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by 
the Commission by one motion as listed below. 

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: JUNE 7, 2022 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 

 
B. RESOLUTION ON CONTINUATION OF REMOTE COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE 

MEETINGS (CM#2022.37) 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 2022-11 Proclaiming A State of Emergency 
Persists, Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Gavin 
Newsom, and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of all Commission and 
Committee meetings of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority for the period of June 22, 
2022 to July 22, 2022 pursuant to Brown Act Provisions. 

 
6. WORKSHOP DISCUSSION AGENDA 

 
A. LEGISLATIVE REPORT 

Presenter:  Michael Boccadoro and Beth Olhasso, West Coast Advisors 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

 

          SANTA  ANA  WATERSHED  PROJECT AUTHORITY 
             11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California 92503 •  (951) 354-4220 

 

https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/86437558823


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

June 21, 2022 
Page 2 

 

 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. INLAND EMPIRE BRINE LINE RATE RESOLUTION (CM#2022.38) 
Presenter:  David Ruhl 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 2022-9 establishing the Fiscal Year 2022-23 
Inland Empire Brine Line Rates to be effective July 1, 2022.  

 
B. STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY (CM#2022.39) 

Presenter:  Karen Williams 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 2022-12, approving the Statement of Investment 
Policy and delegate authority to the Chief Financial Officer to invest or reinvest funds 
consistent with the Statement of Investment Policy. 

 
C. SANTA ANA RIVER WATERSHED WEATHER MODIFICATION PILOT PROJECT 

CEQA ADOPTION (CM#2022.40) 
Presenter:  Mark Norton 
Recommendation:  Adopt the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for Santa Ana River Watershed Weather 
Modification Pilot Project under CEQA. 

 
D. APPROVAL OF FYE 2023 NETWORK COORDINATOR TASK ORDER WITH WATER 

SYSTEMS CONSULTING, INC. (CM#2022.41) 
Presenter:  Ian Achimore 
Recommendation:  Authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order WSC373-01 
with Water Systems Consulting, Inc. (WSC) for $72,900 for the Roundtable of Regions 
Network Coordinator consulting role for Fiscal Year Ending 2023. 

 
E. COLA AND MERIT POOL INCREASES – FY 2022-23 (CM#2022.42) 

Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
Recommendation:  Approve a 4% merit pool and a 5% COLA increase for FY 2022-23. 

 
8. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 

Recommendation:  Receive for information. 
 

A. PROPOSITION 1 ROUND 2 INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT 
(IRWM) CALL FOR PROJECTS UPDATE 
Presenter:  Ian Achimore 

 

B. CASH TRANSACTIONS REPORT – APRIL 2022 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
C. INTER-FUND BORROWING – APRIL 2022 (CM#2022.43) 

Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

D. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS/FINANCIAL REPORTING – APRIL 2022  
(CM#2022.44) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
E. PROJECT AGREEMENT 25 – OWOW FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, APRIL 2022 

Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 



SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

June 21, 2022 
Page 3 

 

 

F. PROJECT AGREEMENT 26 – ROUNDTABLE FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, 
APRIL 2022 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
G. BUDGET VS ACTUAL VARIANCE REPORT – FYE 2022 THIRD QUARTER –  

MARCH 31, 2022 (CM#2022.45) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
H. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
 

I. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT 
Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
 

J. CHAIR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 
 

K. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 

L. COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
9. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9: one case 
PFAS Regional Analysis Phase I Consultant Contract and Funding 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION REPORT 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
PLEASE NOTE: 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in this meeting, call 
(951) 354-4220 or email svilla@sawpa.org.  48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility for this meeting.  Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of 
accommodation requested. 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available 
for public inspection during normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at 
www.sawpa.org, subject to staff’s ability to post documents prior to the meeting. 
 
 
Declaration of Posting 
I, Sara Villa, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority declare that on June 16, 2022, a copy of this agenda has been 
uploaded to the SAWPA website at www.sawpa.org and posted at SAWPA’s office at 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California. 
 

  

http://www.sawpa.org/
http://www.sawpa.org/


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

June 21, 2022 
Page 4 

 

 

 
 
 

2022 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/4/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
1/18/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/1/22 Commission Workshop 
2/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/1/22 Commission Workshop 
3/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/5/22 Commission Workshop 
4/19/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/3/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
5/17/22 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/3 – 5/6/22 ACWA Spring Conference, Sacramento, CA 

June 
6/7/22 Commission Workshop 
6/21/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/5/22 Commission Workshop 
7/19/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/2/22 Commission Workshop 
8/16/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

September 
9/6/22 Commission Workshop 
9/20/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/4/22 Commission Workshop 
10/18/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/1/22 Commission Workshop 
11/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 
 

December 
12/6/22 Commission Workshop 
12/20/22 Regular Commission Meeting  
11/29 – 12/2/22 ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells, CA 

 

 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4B 



Tuesday, July 12, 2022
Meeting Schedule

Regular Board of Directors Meeting - Final - 
Revised 1

July 12, 2022

3:00 PM

9:30 am - E&O
10:30 am - RP&AM
11:00 am - OP&T
12:00 pm - L&C
  1:00 pm - C&L
  1:30 pm - WP&S
  3:00 pm - BOD

Teleconference meetings will continue until further notice. Live streaming is 
available for all board and committee meetings on mwdh2o.com (Click Here) 

A listen only phone line is also available at 1-877-853-5257; enter meeting ID: 831 
5177 2466. Members of the public may present their comments to the Board on 
matters within their jurisdiction as listed on the agenda via teleconference only. To 
participate call (833) 548-0276 and enter meeting ID: 815 2066 4276.

MWD Headquarters Building - 700 N. Alameda Street - Los Angeles, CA 90012

1. Call to Order

a. Invocation: Tuannee L. Holmes, Administrative Assistant III, External Affairs

b. Pledge of Allegiance: Director Stephen J. Faessel, City of Anaheim

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on 
matters within the Board's jurisdiction.  (As required by Gov. Code § 
54954.3(a))

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

A. 21-1286Report on Directors' Events Attended at Metropolitan's Expense

B. 21-1287Chairwoman's Monthly Activity Report

C. 21-1288General Manager's summary of activities

Zoom Online

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2378
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2379
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2380


Board of Directors July 12, 2022

Page 2 

D. 21-1289General Counsel's summary of activities

E. 21-1290Interim General Auditor's summary of activities

07122022 BOD 5E ReportAttachments:

F. 21-1291Ethics Officer's summary of activities

07122022 BOD 5F ReportAttachments:

G. 21-1295Presentation of Commendatory Resolution honoring Gerald C. Riss 
for his service and leadership during his term as General Auditor of 
The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

** CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS -- ACTION **

6. CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

A. 21-1292Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting for June 14, 2022 
(Copies have been submitted to each Director) (Any additions, 
corrections, or omissions)

B. 21-1294Adopt resolution to continue remote teleconference meetings 
pursuant to the Brown Act Section 54953(e) for meetings of 
Metropolitan’s legislative bodies for a period of 30 days; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA

C. 21-1363Authorize preparation of Commendatory Resolution for Ned 
Hyduke for his service and leadership during his term as General 
Manager at Palo Verde Irrigation District. [ADDED ITEM 7/6/22]

D. 21-1364Waive applicable provisions of the Administrative Code and 
authorize the Chairwoman, without approval of  the Board, to 
appoint Members, Chairs, and Vice-Chairs of Committees to fill 
current vacancies and to stand up the Under Served Communities, 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion and Imported Water Committees 
established by Board approval on November 23, 2021. [ADDED 
ITEM 7/6/22]

E. 21-1293Approve Committee Assignments

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2381
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2382
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=18c6f8b8-df3e-4063-a220-66fb418c4f5c.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2383
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=44f08636-b8b4-4472-a9bd-a38af37181c8.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2387
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2384
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2386
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2385


Board of Directors July 12, 2022

Page 3 

7-1 21-1296Amend the Capital Investment Plan for fiscal years 2022/2023 and 
2023/2024 to include replacement of an expansion joint on the 
Upper Feeder at the Santa Ana River Bridge; and determine that 
there is a need to continue the emergency action of executing a no 
bid contract for the expansion joint replacement (Requires 
four-fifths vote of the Board); the General Manager has determined 
that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to 
CEQA. (EO)

07122022 EO 7-1 B-LAttachments:

7-2 21-1297Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed action has been 
previously addressed in the certified 2015 Final EIR, related CEQA 
actions, and Addendum No. 3; and award $25,972,700 contract to 
Mladen Buntich Construction Company, Inc. for Stage 3 
rehabilitation of the Etiwanda Pipeline (EO)

07122022 EO 7-2 B-LAttachments:

7-3 21-1298Authorize an agreement with Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $700,000 to perform final design of 
security upgrades at the Joseph Jensen Water Treatment Plant; 
the General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (EO)

07122022 EO 7-3 B-LAttachments:

7-4 21-1299Review and consider the Jurupa Community Services District’s 
approved Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declarations and 
four Addenda and take related CEQA actions; Authorize the 
General Manager to enter into a Local Resources Program 
Agreement with Western Municipal Water District and Jurupa 
Community Services District for the JCSD Recycled Water 
Program for up to 500 AFY of recycled water for irrigation use and 
groundwater recharge in the JCSD service area (OWC)

07122022 OWC 7-4 B-L RevisedAttachments:

7-5 21-1326Express support, if amended, for AB 2108 (Rivas, D-Hollister and 
Garcia, D-Bell Gardens): Water policy: environmental justice: 
disadvantaged and tribal communities; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA. [POSTING SEPARATELY] (CL)

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2388
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a4d1c44-fadf-41d7-9415-d54599f44a29.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2389
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4b9154fe-321a-496c-a9f3-fb4dea1b65c0.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2390
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d04f3386-3fc0-443b-a753-534e33465284.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2391
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c4ba215b-6fe4-4ad8-9d08-9c63799e7901.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2418


Board of Directors July 12, 2022

Page 4 

7-6 21-1315Report on litigation in San Diego County Water Authority v. 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, et al., San 
Francisco County Superior Court Case Nos. CPF-10-510830, 
CPF-12-512466, CPF-14-514004, CPF-16-515282 , 
CPF-16-515391, CGC-17-563350, and CPF-18-516389; the 
appeals of the 2010 and 2012 actions, Court of Appeal for the First 
Appellate District Case Nos. A146901, A148266, A161144, and 
A162168, and California Supreme Court Case No. S243500; the 
petition for extraordinary writ in the 2010 and 2012 actions, Court 
of Appeal for the First Appellate District Case No. A155310; the 
petition for extraordinary writ in the second 2016 action, Court of 
Appeal for the First Appellate District Case No. A154325 and 
California Supreme Court Case No. S251025; and the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California v. San Diego County Water 
Authority cross-complaints in the 2014, 2016, and 2018 actions; 
and authorize increase in maximum amount payable under 
contract for legal services with Manatt, Phelps & Phillips, LLP, in 
the amount of $1,500,000 for a total amount not to exceed 
$4,400,000; the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA. 
[Conference with legal counsel - existing litigation; to be heard in 
closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Sections 54956.9(d)(1)] 
(LC)

** END OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS **

8. OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION

8-1 21-1331Approve public release of documents by Shaw Law Group, PC 
concerning its investigations of equal employment opportunity 
complaints by four employees, by waiving the attorney-client 
privilege and confidentiality in specified documents; the General 
Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA [Conference with legal counsel – 
anticipated litigation; based on existing facts and circumstances, 
including receipt of a legal claim threatening litigation, there is 
significant exposure to litigation against Metropolitan: unknown 
number of potential cases; to be heard in closed session pursuant 
to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)]. [ADDED ITEM 7/6/22]

9. BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

9-1 21-1300Report on Conservation

07122022 BOD 9-1 ReportAttachments:

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2407
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2392
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=313176d5-9b89-4fe3-8061-a4da8b42f370.pdf


Board of Directors July 12, 2022

Page 5 

10. OTHER MATTERS

NONE

11. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

13. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE:

Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by one or 
more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors.  The committee designation 
appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item e.g.  (E&O, BF&I).  Committee agendas may 
be obtained from the Executive Secretary. 

Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to ensure 
availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Zoom Online



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4C 



 

 

 
Regional Sewerage Program  
Policy Committee Meeting 

 
AGENDA 

Thursday, July 7, 2022 
3:30 p.m. 

Teleconference Call 
 
 

In an effort to prevent the spread of COVID-19, the Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee 
Meeting will be held remotely by teleconference. 

 
 

Teams Conference Link: https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v

2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-

cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d 

Teleconference: 1-415-856-9169/Conference ID: 552 973 583# 

This meeting is being conducted virtually by video and audio conferencing. There will be no public 

location available to attend the meeting; however, the public may participate and provide public 

comment during the meeting by calling the number provided above.  Alternatively, you may email your 

public comments to the Recording Secretary Sally Lee at shlee@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to 

the scheduled meeting time. Your comments will then be read into the record during the meeting. 

 

   

 
Call to Order/Flag Salute  
 
Roll Call  

 
Public Comment 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the 
Committee; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  
Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker. 
 

 
 
 

(Continued) 

 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
mailto:shlee@ieua.org


Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting Agenda 
July 7, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

Additions to the Agenda 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 

two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 

unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 

need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

1. Technical Committee Report (Oral)

2. Action Item
A. Approval of June 2, 2022 Policy Committee Meeting Minutes

3. Informational Items
A. Regional Contract Negotiation Update (Oral)
B. IEUA Reserves Review - Wastewater Funds 

4. Receive and File
A. Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge Update
B. Building Activity Report
C. Recycled Water Distribution – Operations Summary

5. Other Business
A. IEUA General Manager’s Update
B. Committee Member Requested Agenda Items for Next Meeting
C. Committee Member Comments
D. Next Meeting – August 4, 2022 

Adjourn 

DECLARATION OF POSTING 
I, Sally Lee, Executive Assistant of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water District, hereby certify that, 

per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the Agency’s main office, 6075 

Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at least seventy-two (72) hours 

prior to the meeting date and time above.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 

meeting, please contact Sally Lee at (909) 993-1926 or shlee@ieua.org 48 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:shlee@ieua.org


        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4D 



 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING 

11:00 a.m. – June 23, 2022 
Mr. Jim Curatalo, Chair 

Mr. Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair 
At The Offices Of 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Note:  All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.   There will be no 
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action.  
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
1. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held May 26, 2022 (Page 1) 
2. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Special Meeting held May 26, 2022 (Page 6) 

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Receive and file as presented: 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of April 2022 (Page 9) 
2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of April 2022 (Page 19) 
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022 (Page 22) 
4. Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period April 1, 2022 through  

April 30, 2022 (Page 25) 
5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022 (Page 29) 
6. Cash Disbursements for May 2022 (Information Only)  (Page 55) 
 

C. APPLICATION:  LOCAL STORAGE AGREEMENTS (ONAP) (Page 66) 
 Approve the proposed agreements. 
 

D.   APPLICATION: WATER TRANSACTION (Page 75) 
Approve the proposed transaction.  
The Purchase of 500 acre-feet of water from City of Chino by Monte Vista Water District. The 
purchase is made from City of Chino’s Excess Carryover account. 
 
 
 



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting   June 23, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

E. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN RAUCH COMMUNICATION
CONSULTANTS INC. AND CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER (Page 83)
Approve and authorize the General Manager to execute the contract on behalf of Watermaster.

F. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN APPLIED COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES
AND CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER (Page 106)
Approve and authorize the General Manager to execute the contract on behalf of Watermaster.

G. FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 PAY SCHEDULE (Page 129)
Adopt the FY 2022/23 Pay Schedule.

H. RESOLUTION 2022-06 AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS UNDER
BROWN ACT (Page 133)
Adopt Resolution 2022-06 Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings under the Ralph M. Brown
Act.

II. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. 2021 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PRADO BASIN HABITAT SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

(Page 139)
Receive and file.

B. AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, 
GENERAL MANAGER (Page 279) No recommendation. Public Board discussion, deliberation, 
and possible action on proposed employment agreement amendment.

III. REPORTS/UPDATES
A. LEGAL COUNSEL

1. San Bernardino Superior Court Emergency Order
2. August 31, 2022 Hearing
3. Governor’s Executive Order N-7-22
4. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit

B. ENGINEER
1. Safe Yield Reset Methodology Update

C. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
1. FY 2021/22 Ongoing Auditing Activity by Fedak & Brown, LLP

D. GENERAL MANAGER
1. Regional Supply/Drought Update
2. July Meeting Schedule
3. Other

IV. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

V. OTHER BUSINESS

VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION – POSSIBLE ACTION
Pursuant to Article II, Section 2.6, of the Watermaster Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may 
be held during the Watermaster Board meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action.

1. General Manager Performance Evaluation



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      June 23, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – PENDING LITIGATION: 
a) Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, et al. v. Chino Basin Water Conservation District, et al., San 

Bernardino County Superior Court Case No: CIVDS1933655 
b) Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino et al., San Bernardino County Superior 

Court Case No: RCVRS51010 
c) Chino Basin Municipal Water District et al. v. City of Ontario et al., California Court of Appeal 4th 

Appellate District Case No: E079052 
 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER* 

 06/23/22 Thu    11:00 a.m.  Watermaster Board  
 07/20/22 Wed     9:00 a.m.  Safe Yield Methodology Update – Peer Review Workshop No. 2 
 08/11/22 Thu      9:00 a.m.  Appropriative Pool Committee 
 08/11/22 Thu    11:00 a.m.  Non-Agricultural Pool Committee 
 08/11/22  Thu      1:30 p.m.  Agricultural Pool Committee 
  08/18/22 Thu 9:00 a.m.      Advisory Committee 
 08/25/22     Thu    11:00 a.m.  Watermaster Board 
 
*NOTE:   Watermaster will be dark in July 2022; staff stands ready to assist with any special meetings as 

requested. All regularly scheduled meetings will resume in August 2022.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4E 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY 

July 7, 2022    2:00 p.m. 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 

All documents available for public review are on file with the Authority’s 

Secretary located at 3550 E. Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA  91761 

According to the directives from the California Department of Public Health and Executive Order N-08-21 issued 
by Governor Gavin Newsom, members of the public are invited to participate via video or teleconference 

To join teleconference:  

Dial-in #:  (669) 900 6833  Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101     Passcode: 380557 

To join video conference:   

Click on link:  Join Zoom Meeting 

Or copy URL:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09 

Or go to  https://zoom.us/   Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101   Passcode: 380557 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Chino 
Basin Desalter Authority; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.   

Under the provisions of the Brown Act, the CDA Board is prohibited from taking action on non-agendized matters.  
However, Board Members may respond briefly or refer the communication to staff.  The CDA Board may also 
request the Secretary to calendar an item related to your communication at a future CDA Board meeting. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require two-
thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of 
those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the 
attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

ACTION ITEMS 

Prior to action of the CDA Board of Directors, any member of the audience will have the opportunity to address the 
CDA Board on any item listed on the agenda, including those on any consent calendar.    

1. CHINO II DESALTER PELLET SLURRY PUMPS AND ASSOCIATED PIPING
PROJECT DESIGN SERVICES
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO

Staff Recommendation:

1. Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Carollo Engineers for design of
the Pellet Slurry Pumps and Associated Piping Project in the not-to-exceed
amount of $122,553; and

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to finalize and execute the Agreement and
approve authorized expenditures up to a not-to-exceed total of $135,000.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://zoom.us/
https://zoom.us/


July 7, 2022 – Regular Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting      Page 2 of 3 

2. CONTRACT WITH EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES FOR SUPPLY AND
DELIVERY OF GRANULAR ACTIVATED CARBON (GAC)
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO

Staff Recommendation:

1. Approve a contract with Evoqua Water Technologies for supply and delivery of
Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) in the not-to-exceed amount of $360,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to finalize and execute the contract and
approve authorized expenditures up to a not-to-exceed amount of $360,000.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial to be acted upon by the Board at one 
time without discussion.  If any Board member, staff member, or interested person requests that an item be 
removed from the Consent Calendar, it will be moved to the first item on the Action Items 

3. MINUTES OF JUNE 2, 2022 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

4. RESOLUTION 2021-16 PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, RATIFYING THE
PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY EXECUTIVE ORDERS N-25-20, N-
29-20 AND N-35-20, AND AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS
FOR A THIRTY (30) DAY PERIOD PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve Resolution 2021-16, proclaiming a local emergency, ratifying the
proclamation of a state of emergency by Executive Orders N-25-20, N-29-20 and N-
35-20, and authorizing remote teleconference meetings for a thirty (30) day period
pursuant to Brown Act provisions

5. REVIEW OF CURRENT INVESTMENT POLICY
Report by: Michael Chung, CDA CFO/Treasurer

6. TREASURER'S FINANCIAL AFFAIRS REPORT
Report by:  Jose Garcia, CDA Principal Accountant

7. TREASURER’S REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS
Report by:  Jose Garcia, CDA Principal Accountant

8. BUDGET VARIANCE REPORT
Report by:  Jose Garcia, CDA Principal Accountant

9. INVESTMENT REPORT
Report by: Jose Garcia, CDA Principal Accountant

INFORMATION ITEMS 

10. QUARTERLY OPERATIONS REPORT
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO

11. EMERGENCY SERVICES TO  PERFORM PIPELINE REPAIRS AT CHINO I
DESALTER UPDATE
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO

12. EMERGENCY SERVICES TO MAKE REPAIRS TO THE SEWER LINE AT THE CHINO
II DESALTER UPDATE
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO



July 7, 2022 – Regular Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting      Page 3 of 3 

STAFF COMMENTS 

i. Deputy CDA General Counsel, Allison Burns

ii. CDA CFO/Treasurer, Michael Chung

iii. CDA General Manager/CEO, Thomas O’Neill

CLOSED SESSION 

The Authority may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider litigation matters, personnel matters, or other matters 
as provided for in the Ralph M. Brown Act (Section 54950 et seq., of the Government Code). 

13. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION:
CONSIDERATION OF INITIATION OF LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT
CODE SECTION 54956.9(D)(4)

(ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

14. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION:
SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTION 54956.9(D)(2)

(ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

ADJOURN 

Declaration of Posting 

I, Casey Costa, Executive Assistant to the Chino Basin Desalter Authority, hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been 
posted by 2:00 p.m. at the Chino Basin Desalter Authority’s main office, 3550 Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA on 
July 4, 2022. 
_____________________________________ 
Casey Costa, Executive Assistant 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodations in order to participate in this meeting or for package materials in 
an alternative format should telephone Executive Assistant Casey Costa at (909) 218-3730, at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation.  All accommodation requests will 
be handled swiftly and resolving all doubts in favor of access  Copies of records provided to Board Members which relate 
to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from Chino Basin Desalter Authority at 3550 
Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA 91761. 



GENERAL 
 MANAGER’S 
       REPORT 



• 

• 

• 

• 

•



 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/n51y3hbzl3vw08h/22172%20GM%20Report%20-%20July%202022%20-%20Attachment%201.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/n51y3hbzl3vw08h/22172%20GM%20Report%20-%20July%202022%20-%20Attachment%201.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/jc1apjnat6i2d7r/22172%20GM%20Report%20-%20July%202022%20-%20Attachment%202.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/jc1apjnat6i2d7r/22172%20GM%20Report%20-%20July%202022%20-%20Attachment%202.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/p9m50xwk4fqifqx/22172%20GM%20Report%20-%20July%202022%20-%20Attachment%203.pdf?dl=0


 
 

  
 
 
 

 Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 
  Project Name 

Projected  
Bid Opening 

Date 

Projected 
Bid Award 

Date 

 Sep-22   

1 EN17042.00  Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs 8/29/2022 9/21/2022 

2 EN21051.00  Ely Monitoring Well 7/20/2022 9/21/2022 

 Oct-22   

3 RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements  8/26/2022 10/19/2022 

4 EN0000000066  Preserve Lift Station Improvements 8/29/2022 10/19/2022 

5 EN20064.00  NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement 8/31/2022 10/19/2022 

 Nov-22   

6 EN22041.00  RP-1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement 9/29/2022 11/16/2022 

7 EN23002.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements 10/4/2022 11/16/2022 

 Dec-22   

8 EN13016.05  SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1) 10/24/2022 12/21/2022 

9 EN17006.00  CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements 10/25/2022 12/21/2022 

 Feb-23   

10 EN21056.00  RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building 1/4/2023 2/15/2023 

 Apr-23   

11 EN21053.00  RP-1 Old Effluent Structure Rehabilitation 2/12/2023 4/19/2023 

12 EN22022.00  RP-1 Air Compressor Upgrades 2/23/2023 4/19/2023 

 Jul-23   

13 EN15002.00  1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup 5/8/2023 7/19/2023 

14 EN21041.00  RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well Passive Overflow Line 5/12/2023 7/19/2023 

15 EN22031.00  RP-1 Intermediate Pump Station Electrical improvements 5/11/2023 7/19/2023 

Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 



 
 

    

  

  

Agency-Wide 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

1 
EN20034.03 Solids Handling Facility Evaluation          279,595               228,865  On-Time Consultant 

Contract Award 
  

2 EN22040.00 NFPA 70E Arc Flash Labels            82,891               210,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

3 EN19024.00 Regional System Asset Management (Assessment Only)       2,686,102            3,590,419  On-Time Pre-Design   

4 EN19023.00 Asset Management Planning Document          664,842               977,036  On-Time Pre-Design   

5 PA22003.00 Agency Wide Paving            54,716            3,735,000  On-Time Design   

6 EN20038.00 Agency Wide Pavement Management Study          194,293               300,000  On-Time Design   

7 EN19051.00 RW Hydraulic Modeling          117,534               235,537  On-Time Design   

8 FM21005.01 Structural Agency Wide Roofing Phase III          206,418           2,600,000  On-Time Construction   

9 
EN21036.01 CB-11 Turnout Cabinet Repairs          130,903               100,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 
Project requires SCE to pull back cables prior to the contractor removing SCE and IEUA electrical 
cabinets and demolish concrete pad. Project was delayed due to response time from SCE. Recovery is 
not possible. 

10 EN19030.00 WC Asset Management (Assessment Only)            87,510               313,747  On-Time Construction   

11 
EN22043.00 Agency Wide Chemical Containment Area Rehabilitation Phase 2          257,541               385,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

12 EN22045.00 New Regional Project PDR's                       -              2,500,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total       4,762,345          15,175,604    

  

65%3%

32%

Design Schedule Performance

On-Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

67%
0%

33%

Construction Schedule Performance

On-Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

Active Capital Improvement Project Status 



 
 

Carbon Canyon  

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

13 
EN17006.00 CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements       4,274,765          26,103,299  Recovery in 

Progress 
Design 

The project's bid and award is delayed due to the pending approval of funding from WIFIA, the 
addition of the ammonia control design, and the issuance of the AQMD Permits. The project will be 
rebaselined at the start of construction. 

14 
EN22054.01 CCWRF Fire Hydrant Repairs               7,784                 90,000  On-Time 

Design 
 The construction contract was awarded in June 2022. The project will be re-baselined with the 
Contractor’s approved schedule. 

15 EN17006.01 CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements            12,970               700,000  On-Time Construction 
 

16 EN22055.02 CCWRF Vault Rehab and Pavement Repair               5,845                 60,000  On-Time Construction   

    Sub Total       4,301,364       26,953,299    

Chino Desalter Authority (CDA) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

 
 

None to report currently. 0 0    

    Sub Total                       -                           -          

Collections 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

17 EN21058.00 Regional Sewer-Hydraulic Modeling            87,098               100,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

8 
EN20064.00 NSNT Odor Complaints Mitigation          890,641            2,837,200  

Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award 
Due to the current market the Engineer’s estimate is now over $2M and a Request for Qualifications is 
being sent out to pre-qualify contractors prior to the bid and ward phase.  The project will be re-
baselined at construction contract award. 

19 

EN22015.00 Collection System Upgrades FY 21/22          248,890               500,000  
Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

Construction completion is a result of City of Chino permit issuance delay. Construction is scheduled 
to be completed in July 2022.  Recovery is not possible. 

20 

EN22014.00 NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 21/22          130,387               200,000  
Behind 

Schedule Construction 

Construction completion is a result of City of Chino permit issuance delay.  Construction is scheduled 
to be completed in July 2022.  Recovery is not possible. 

21 

EN19025.00 Regional Force Main Improvements       1,605,199           4,800,000  
Behind 

Schedule Construction 

To avoid bypassing the San Bernardino Lift station during the rainy season, construction was 
scheduled to resume in May 2022.  Construction has been further delayed because the County has not 
approved the traffic control plans. Construction is estimated to resume early August.  Project will be 
re-baselined once traffic control is approved, and Contractor can mobilize. 

22 EN19028.00 NRW Manhole and Pipeline Condition Assessment          615,313               915,000  On-Time Construction   

23 EN22059.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-NRWS               3,398               150,000  On-Time Construction   

24 EN19027.00 NRW Pipeline Relining Along Cucamonga Creek       1,855,086           2,330,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

25 
EN22002.00 NRW East End Flowmeter Replacement       3,452,192           3,600,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

26 EN22039.00 RP-4 SCADA Performance Improvement               1,841            1,012,000  N/A Not Started   

27 EN22046.00 New NRW Project PDR's                       -                 500,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total       8,890,044        16,944,200        

Groundwater Recharge 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

28 
EN21057.00 Recharge Basin Clean-up of Illegally Dumped Materials            16,872               245,538  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

29 EN21051.00 Ely Monitoring Well          140,031               684,999  On-Time Design   



 
 

Groundwater Recharge (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

30 
RW15003.03 Montclair Basin Improvements          354,213            1,788,100  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
The project is still finalizing permits with CDFW. The project will continue to award construction 
contract in August 2022. The project will be rebaselined as the start of the construction. 

31 
RW15003.05 RP-3 Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 21)       1,603,573            1,819,300  

Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 
Due to unforeseen field conditions, additional work with the contractor is extending the project 
completion to July 30, 2022. The contractor is relocating a utility conflict which was not identified in 
the plan set. 

32 RW15003.06 Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Improvements        7,540,439         20,220,952  On-Time Construction   

33 
RW15004.00 Lower Day Basin Improvements       3,985,883           4,008,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

34 EN22050.00 GWR Basin PLC Upgrades                       -                 900,000  N/A Not Started   

35 EN22051.00 Jurupa Basin VFD Upgrades                  117               300,000  N/A Not Started   

36 EN22049.00 GWR-RW OIT Upgrades                       -                    56,100  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total    13,641,129         30,022,989        

Headquarters 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

37 
EN20008.00 HQ Parking Lot FY19/20          536,888               590,000  Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

Contractor had to self-perform select tasks originally scheduled to be completed by sub-contractor. 
Contract extended to 7/23/22.  Contractor currently working on punch-list.  No major tasks remaining. 

38 EN20040.00 HQ Driveway Improvements          410,904               571,213  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction Contractor had to self-perform select tasks originally scheduled to be completed by sub-contractor. 
Contract extended to 7/23/22.  Contractor currently working on punch-list.  No major tasks remaining. 

    Sub Total         947,792            1,161,213        

Lift Stations 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

39 EN22020.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades            56,748            2,500,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

40 EN22037.00 Prado De-Chlorination Station Inundation Protection          114,564               380,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design Schedule delay due to delay in kick-off of hydraulic modeling task.   Projected project completion by 
end of July 2022.  

41 
EN0000000066 Preserve Lift Station Improvements          155,548                           -    

Behind 
Schedule 

Design 
After delays during the RFP process and drafting a reimbursement agreement between IEUA and 
Chino, there were additional delays due to unforeseen complications with the HVAC design. Project is 
in final design and will be re-baselined upon construction contract award. 

42 
EN23002.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements       1,395,166          19,094,788  

Behind 
Schedule 

Design 
The delays to the schedule are attributed to addressing the City of Ontario’s comments in addition to 
awaiting the WIFIA funding approval and availability. The project will be re-baselined at construction 
contract award. 

43 FM21005.02 Prado Dechlor Roofing Assessment            17,016                  50,000  On-Time Design   

44 EN22048.00 PLS Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization               9,579               110,000  On-Time Construction   

    Sub Total       1,748,621        22,134,788        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

45 
EN22022.00 RP-1 Air Compressor Upgrades            56,964           1,750,000  Behind 

Schedule Pre-Design 
The Consultant is currently addressing IEUA Stakeholder comments for the Preliminary Design Report. 
The project will be re-baselined after PDR is finalized and approved and a project charter will be added 
to the timeline. Schedule recovery will not possible. 

46 

EN22027.00 RP-1 Repurpose Lab            93,169           1,847,400  
Behind 

Schedule Pre-Design 

Planning documents including the Project Charter preparation is taking longer than anticipated. There 
shall be agreement on the scope of work, budget, and schedule by all internal stakeholders. Once the 
Charter is approved, the extensive planning will result in a reduction to the design period which will 
likely place the schedule back to baseline. 

47 EN22031.00 RP-1 Influent Pump Station Electrical Improvements          178,934           3,000,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

48 EN22032.00 RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades            97,812               155,000  On-Time Pre-Design   



 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

49 

EN21053.00 RP-1 Old Effluent Structure Rehabilitation          142,851            1,480,507  

Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design 

This project is part of an RFP for consulting services to develop Predesign for five (5) projects which 
took longer to develop due to extensive field coordination and scope verification with the 
stakeholders. Further refining of the project budget and schedule after the completion of the 
Predesign Report and during the Project Charter, resulted in schedule delays. Schedule will be re-
baselined once a consultant is onboarded to complete the design.  

50 
EN21056.00 RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building            58,258               450,000  Behind 

Schedule 
Pre-Design 

The Preliminary Design Report had to be revised to address comments from IEUA Stakeholders. The 
PDR is now finalized and approved, and the Project will be re-baselined.  

51 EN20051.00 RP-1 MCB and Old Lab Building Rehab          179,434            2,646,161  On-Time Pre-Design   

52 EN22041.00 RP-1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement            71,405               141,000  On-Time Design   

53 EN22044.00 RP-1 Thickening Building & Acid Phase Digester       1,678,456       100,000,000  On-Time Design   

54 
EN22021.00 RP-1 Digester Area Utility Water (UW) Line Replacement               6,887               100,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award 
Scope of work understanding with Operations was delayed due to staff availability. Scope of work is 
expected to be finalized soon, with the project going out to bid June 2022. Project will be re-baselined 
upon construction contract award. 

55 
EN13016.05 SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1)       3,867,423           3,800,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award 
The project is behind schedule because the RP-4 SCADA migration was re-sequenced and completed 
before RP-1.  The project will be re-baselined once the construction contract is awarded for RP-1.  The 
project is being expedited as much as possible; schedule recovery is not possible. 

56 
EN22034.00 RP-1 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization            14,696               240,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Due extending out the bid phase to onboard a contractor and equipment lead times, construction is 
expected June - September 2022. 

57 EN11039.00 RP-1 Disinfection Pump Improvements       1,524,572          12,997,043  On-Time Construction   

58 EN21042.00 RP-1 East Influent Gate Replacement          137,598               625,000  On-Time Construction   

59 

EN18006.00 RP-1 Flare Improvements       7,105,803           9,200,000  

Behind 
Schedule Construction 

Due to conflict with numerous underground utilities, part of the original design such as equipment 
foundations and mechanical gas piping could not be constructed. Also flare control panels and PLC 
upgrades were initiated by IEUA. Redesign of multiple systems resulted in schedule delays, change 
orders and overhead cost claimed by the Contractor. Project completion is now anticipated in August 
2022.  Schedule recovery is not possible. 

60 

EN17042.00 Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs       5,467,744            7,828,439  

Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Digester 7 condition assessment and predesign effort were delayed waiting for Digester 6 to be put 
back in full operation. Digester 6 delayed the project due to issues with the coating subcontractor and 
multiple operational constraints. Digester 7 Final Design is currently in progress including added scope 
for sludge circulation pump installation. Recovery is not possible. The Project will re-baselined after 
construction contract award. 

61 EN22057.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-SEWER               4,096                  50,000  On-Time Construction   

62 EN22053.07 RP-1 Single Line Diagrams               1,465                           -    0.00% Construction   

63 
EN19043.00 RP-1 Centrifuge Foul Air Line          373,109               445,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

64 
EN17082.00 Mechanical Restoration and Upgrades       9,694,402          10,146,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

65 
EN20041.00 RP-1 TP-1 Bleach Mixing Repairs          675,175               755,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

66 EN22025.00 RP-1 Dump Station                  126            2,121,100  N/A Not Started   

67 EN19009.00 RP-1 Energy Recovery                  408            4,425,000  N/A Not Started   

68 EN22030.00 Replace Anoxic Mixers with More Energy Efficient System                       -                 840,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total    31,430,789      165,042,650        

  



 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

69 EN21041.00 RP-4 Contact Basin Cover & Wet Well Passive Overflow Replacement          237,834           4,334,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

70 EN22042.00 RP-4 Ammonia Analyzer and Support System          389,067               620,000  On-Time Construction   

71 
EN17110.00 RP-4 Process Improvements    12,667,499          13,180,691  

Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 
This project’s contract was extended 194 days due to the addition of the new aeration blowers and 
delays associated with PlantPax and SCADA programming and procurement delays due to COVID. 
Recovery is not possible. 

72 
EN17110.03 RP-4 Aeration Basin Wall Repair       5,035,872            5,052,448  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

73 EN17043.00 RP4 Primary Clarifier Rehab       4,747,139            7,046,136  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

    Sub Total    23,077,412        30,233,275        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

74 EN22033.00 RP-5 Emergency Generator Load Bank Installation            15,477               145,000  On-Time Construction   

75 EN19001.00 RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd    89,767,320       245,000,000  On-Time Construction   

76 EN19006.00 RP-5 Biosolids Facility    99,041,327       205,000,000  On-Time Construction   

    Sub Total  188,824,124      450,145,000        

Recycled Water 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 6/29 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

77 

EN15002.00 1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup          228,817            1,215,000  
Behind 

Schedule 
Project 

Evaluation 

The Consultant completed the work related to decontamination of the soil in one small spot near the 
east RW reservoir. The Consultant also received DTSC’s approval for sampling and analyzing the soil 
around the CS/DO tanks which would the location for the potential installation of two new RW tanks if 
Ares’ (developer) proposal is accepted by IEUA. Recovery is not possible. 

78 EN21045.00 Montclair Force Main Improvements          263,065           6,800,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

79 EN22058.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-RW               3,318               140,000  On-Time Construction   

80 
EN20022.00 1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades          252,596               300,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

    Sub Total          747,796          8,455,000        

    Overall Totals  278,371,413      766,268,018        

  



 
 

 

FY21/22 Emergency Projects 
  Project ID Contractor Task Order Description  Location TO # Original Not-to-

Exceed /Estimate 
Actual Cost thru 

6/29 
Date of 
Award 

Status 

Agency Wide 

1 EN22016.01 Mike Bubalo Construction  Bon View Ave Agencywide TO-005 35,700 42,556 10/25/2021 Completed 

Sub Totals 35,700 42,556     

RP-1 

1 EN22017.03 Mike Bubalo Construction Recycled Water Line Repair for RP-1 RP-1 TO-0004 21,710 16,684 8/10/2021 Completed 

2 EN22017.04 W.A. Rasic Construction PL Leak Investigation & Repair at RP-1 RP-2   46,000 7,156 8/11/2021 Completed 

3 EN22019.01 W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc. RP1 Scum Valve Replacement RP-1 TO-0030 16,475 14,061 8/19/2021 Completed 

4 EN22019.02 
Custom Conveyor/Schwing Bioset 
Inc Vertical Conveyor Repairs at the RP1 Dewatering Bldg. RP-1 N/A 75,000 34,969 11/30/2021 Completed 

5 EN22019.03 W.A. Rasic Construction PL Leak Investigation & Repair at RP-1 RP-1 TO-31 46,000 306 12/1/2021 Completed 

         Sub Totals 205,185 73,176     

CCWRF 

6 EN22017.01 W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc. CCWRF Secondary Clarifier and Headworks Leak Repair CCWRF TO-0028 15,888 15,103 7/22/2021 Completed 

         Sub Totals 15,888 15,103     

Recycled Water 

7 EN22017.02 W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc. 42" 1158 RW Leak RW TO-0029  236,000 356,086 7/22/2021 Completed 

         Sub Totals 236,000 356,086     

        Grand Total 492,773 486,920     

 

June Emergency Project(s) 

Contractor Task Order 
Description  

Details of the Circumstances/Cause of Emergency Scope of Repair Location Date of Call 
Out 

Not-to-Exceed /Estimate 

  
N/A 

        
  

 

Emergency Projects 



WORKSHOP 
ITEM 

9A



July 2022

1

Chino Basin Program

PARTNERS



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCurrent Conditions

2

• Today, the Chino Basin relies upon 
imported water from the State 
Water Project (SWP) for 30% of its 
water supplies

• Sometimes, drought restrictions 
limit the amount of water 
available from the SWP

• What will we rely on when water 
imports are limited?

30%
SWP



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountChino Basin Program

3

Chino Basin Program (CBP) adds 
infrastructure so we can treat and 
store water locally:
• CBP builds Advanced Water 

Purification Facilities to treat 
recycled water, providing access to 
currently untapped supply

• CBP builds injection and 
extraction wells to store and 
retrieve the treated water

• CBP builds a distribution system 
to convey the treated water



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCBP– Local Facilities Overview

Facilities:
• 15,000 AF/year AWPF at RP‐4

• Advanced treated recycled water pipeline

• 15,000 AF/year Injection wells

• 6,000 AF/year external water supply sources

• 40,000 AF/year Extraction wells

• Potable water pipelines & Reservoir

• Interconnection to Metropolitan’s Rialto 
Pipeline

4

Put

Take



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountIEUA Staff Continue to Prepare for CBP 
Implementation

The CBP adds significant assets to 
IEUA

• Advanced Water Purification Facility 
(AWPF)

• External Recycled Water Resources
• AWPF Treated Water Conveyance
• Injection and Monitoring Wells
• Potential “Take Facilities”: Extraction 

wells, MWD connections, Distribution 
system

$385

$263

CBP Cost Allocation, 2019 $M

PUT Facilities TAKE Facilities



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountIEUA Is Familiar with Traditional (Design‐
Bid‐Build) Project Delivery

6

• Roles of Other Entities and Off‐Ramps

Project Initiation Preliminary 
Design Final Design Bidding Construction

En
gi
ne

er
in
g 

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt

En
gi
ne

er
in
g 

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt

En
gi
ne

er
in
g 

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt

En
gi
ne

er
in
g 

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt
 (E

SD
C)

En
gi
ne

er
in
g 

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Q
A

Co
nt
ra
ct
or

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Te

ch
ni
ca
l R

ev
ie
w
s

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Te

ch
ni
ca
l R

ev
ie
w
s

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Te

ch
ni
ca
l R

ev
ie
w
s

Off‐Ramp Off‐RampOff‐Ramp



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountAlternative Project Delivery Provides 
Flexibility and Schedule Control

7

Project Initiation Bridging 
Document

Design‐Build 
Entity 

Procurement

Design and 
Price 

Development

Guaranteed 
Max. priceInnovation Construction

En
gi
ne

er
in
g 

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt

En
gi
ne

er
in
g 

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt

De
sig

n‐
Bu

ild
 

En
tit
y

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Q
A

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Te

ch
ni
ca
l R

ev
ie
w
s

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Pr
oc
ur
e.
 o
f D

B 
En

tit
y

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Ad

d.
 P
er
fo
rm

. R
eq

ui
re
.

De
sig

n‐
Bu

ild
 

En
tit
y

De
sig

n‐
Bu

ild
 

En
tit
y

De
sig

n‐
Bu

ild
 

En
tit
y

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Te

ch
ni
ca
l R

ev
ie
w
s

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Te

ch
ni
ca
l R

ev
ie
w
s

Pr
og

. M
an

./
  O

w
n.
 E
ng

.
Te

ch
ni
ca
l R

ev
ie
w
s

Off‐Ramp Off‐RampOff‐Ramp Off‐RampOff‐Ramp

• Roles of Other Entities and Off‐Ramps



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop Count

• Preliminary Design and updated 
cost estimates are being prepared 

• Regulatory agencies interactions
• Division of Drinking Water 

(May and June)
• Regional Water Quality Control 

Board (being scheduled)
• Solicitation for Program 

Management/Owner Engineering 
Services

Concurrent Activities Allows IEUA 
Flexibility for Future Adjustments

8



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop Count

• Staff augmentation: Projectized
• Owner Engineering: Subject matter 

experts
• Coordination with a third‐party legal 

team
• Support IEUA with land acquisition 
• Support with funding applications, 

public outreach, and compliance
• Preparation of an asset management 

plan for all new facilities

Program Manager Areas of Services

9



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountMultiple Delivery Approaches Can Be 
Implemented for CBP Elements

• Pump Stations/ 
Reservoirs/ 
Wells

• Pipelines

Design Bid 
Build

• AWPF + 
Brineline

• Pipelines

Progressive 
Design 
Build

The Program Manager will 
support with: 

• Determination of delivery method
• Exercising options for offramps
• Prequalification
• Contracts negotiations



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountThe PM/OE Solicitation Process 
Will Extend till Q2 of 2023

11

Step Date
Announcement of Pending Solicitation 7/26/2022
Request for Qualifications 8/16/2022
Industry Presentation 9/12/2022
RFQ Due Date 10/18/2022
Interviews to shortlist 11/17/2022
Shortlist 12/5/2022
Request for Proposal to Shortlist 12/12/2022
Proposals Due Date 1/31/2023
Interviews 2/28/2023
Notice of Intent to Select 3/15/2023
Negotiate Scope and Terms with Selected Team 4/15/2023
Award 5/15/2023



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCBP Preliminary Design Schedule
Project Components

12

2022 2023 2024

spring summer fall winter spring summer fall winter spring summer

Rialto RW external supply 

Advanced Water 
Purification Facility

15,000 AF Injection Wells 

40,000 AF Extraction Wells 

CBP Interconnection to 
MWD Rialto Pipeline

JCSD RW external supply 

Preliminary Design Work Design/Construction. ‐‐> Start Up: 2028



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCBP Agreements Schedule

13

Summer 2023

Finalize 
Participating 
Agency 
Agreements

Finalize 
Resource 
Agency 
Agreements

Pre‐Design for 
facilities to 30%

CWC Final Funding 
Award

Fall 2023Nov‐Dec 2021

CWC Feasibility 
Determination

Receive comments 
on draft EIR





Winter 2022

CBWM Coordination 
& Review

Draft Agreement 
Terms – Resource 
Agencies:
• CDFW
• DWR 
• Metropolitan

Spring 2022

Certify EIR

Local 
Participating 
Agency 
Commitments
Phase I

Metropolitan 
Agreement 
Phase I









Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountUpcoming Events

14

• July 26th  Post Announcement for Engineering Program 
Manager on PlanetBids

• August 4th Info Workshop for Water and Wastewater Policy Makers 
Chino Hills Community Center 
4:00 pm to 5:00 pm

• August 17th CBP Expo
IEUA Event Room 
8:00 am to 9:45 am



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop Count

Questions?

15



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop Count

16

Additional Information & Reference Materials



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCBP PUT Facilities Overview: 
AWPF, Injection Wells & Pipelines

17

Advanced Water Purification Facility @ RP‐4
• Treatment process: MF/RO/UV‐AOP
• Capacity of 17,000 AF/Y; 15,000 AF/Y Product 

Water
• Pump Station
• Brine disposal to north NRWS

Pipelines: 7 miles, 8”‐30” to injection wells
Injection Wells in Chino Basin MZ‐2
• 16 injection wells
• 4 monitoring wells
• 2.5MG equalization tank

Location: Rancho Cucamonga, Chino Basin 
MZ2



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCBP PUT Facilities Overview:
City of Rialto Recycled Water Interconnection

18

Water Supply: 3,500 AF/Y (6.2 MGD) 
May‐Oct

Pipeline
• 11 miles of 24” 
• Connection to AWPF at RP‐4
• Location: Rialto, Fontana, Rancho Cucamonga

Pump Station: 11.7 MGD at Rialto WWTP



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCBP PUT Facilities Overview:
JCSD/WRCWRA Recycled Water Interconnection

19

Water Supply: 2,500 AF/Y (4.5 MGD) 
May‐Oct

Pipeline
• 3 miles of 24”
• Connection to IEUA’s 930 Zone (north of 

930/800 PRV)
• Location: Eastvale, Chino, Ontario

Pump Station: 7 MGD in WRCWRA plant

(under discussion)



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCBP TAKE Facilities Overview:
Extraction Wells, Potable Water Pipelines & Reservoir

20

Wells: 
• 17 wells (12 operating, 5 redundant)
• 2,000 gpm capacity for each well
• 40,000 AF annual pumping capacity
• Location: Rancho Cucamonga, Fontana, 

Ontario

Pipelines:
• 12 miles of 12” to 48” collector pipelines
• 5MG storage tank
• Booster pump station



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountCBP TAKE Facilities Overview:
MWD Rialto Pipeline Interconnection

21

Connection capacity of 10,000 AF/Y

Location: Lloyd Michaels Treatment Plant 
clearwell to the Rialto Pipeline

Pipeline: 0.8 miles of 24” with a 24” 
interconnection



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountImported Water Supplies Comparison

22

IEUA Water Agency FY 20/21 Imported 
Water Purchases % Water Supply

Chino 4,700 22%

Chino Hills 1,500 10%

CVWD1 34,400 69%

FWC1 14,400 35%

MVWD2 6,100 72%

Ontario 5,900 14%

Upland 4,400 23%

Total 71,400

Notes: 
1 Includes MWD Tier 1 Imported Water & Dry Year Yield purchases
2 MVWD imported water includes sales to Chino Hills



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop Count

Contracting Agency

Base 
Entitlement 
Allocation 

(AF)

Direct Use 
(AF)

Groundwater 
Recharge (AF)

Total Recycled 
Water Use (AF)

Unused Recycled 
Water Entitlement 

(AF)

Chino 6,207 5,643 0 5,643 564

Chino Hills 5,055 1,668 1,463 3,132 1,923

CVWD 13,194 1,222 5,616 6,838 6,356

Fontana 11,004 425 3,185 3,610 7,394

Montclair 2,546 343 737 1,080 1,466

Ontario 12,854 8,556 3,721 12,276 578

Upland 5,289 772 1,531 2,303 2,986

IEUA & SB County 905

Creek Discharge 20,364

Total 56,150 39,897 16,253 34,882 21,267

Typical Recycled Water Use 
(Based on FY 2020‐21)

23



Now is the Time to Make Every Drop CountImported Water Offset Scenario with CBP 
Facilities

24

Average Imported Water 
Purchases CBP Call Year Critically Dry/Drought 

(Non‐Call Year)

Agency 1 10,000 AF 10,000 AF 10,000 ‐ 13,000 AF

Agency 2 30,000 AF 20,000 AF 20,000 – 27,000 AF

MWD ‐ 10,000 AF ‐

Total 40,000 AF 40,000 AF 40,000 AF


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Agenda 5
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Consent Item 1D
	Consent Item 1E
	Consent Item 1F
	Consent Item 1G
	Consent Item 1H
	Action Item 2A
	Action Item 2B
	Information Item 3A
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C
	Information Item 3D
	Information Item 3E
	Information Item 3F
	Information Item 3G
	Information Item 3H
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4A
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4B
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4C
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4D
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4E
	General Manager's Report
	Workshop Item 9A



